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Forward-looking statements

Some information in this report may contain forward-looking statements which include statements 
regarding Company’s expected financial position and results of operations, business plans and 
prospects etc. and are generally identified by forward-looking words such as “believe,” “plan,” “anticipate,” 
“continue,” “estimate,” “expect,” “may,” “will” or other similar words. Forward-looking statements are 
dependent on assumptions or basis underlying such statements. We have chosen these assumptions 
or basis in good faith, and we believe that they are reasonable in all material respects. However, we 
caution that actual results, performances or achievements could differ materially from those expressed 
or implied in such forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update or revise any 
forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.
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remains our credo, supported by prudent 
strategies and agile execution.

Notwithstanding operational hardships, FY’22 saw us 
strengthen our mission of helping Indians own their dream 

homes. We continued to serve thousands of customers 
during the year, especially the underserved segments  

of society.

We are expanding and deepening our national footprint, 
engaging more with our customers, reinforcing our systems 
and processes and decentralising our credit functions with 

multiple control points.

Our teams are empowered to take quick decisions, leading 
to faster TATs and a high-quality portfolio. We have crossed 

many significant milestones during the year, growing our 
brand reputation and recall.

With our proven ability to underwrite diverse customers, our 
strategies are now geared towards building momentum on all 

fronts and driving growth.

B U I L D I N G

D R I V I N G



Investing
Nation

B U I L D I N G
I N

Founded by Shri Ramamurthy 
Thyagarajan in 1974, Shriram Group 
is today among the leading financial 
services companies in India. Starting 
as a chit funds business, the Shriram 
Group has grown into H 1 Lakh + 
Crore conglomerate with diverse 
presence in financial services with 8 
companies serving more than 21.5 
Million lives in India. 

With a purpose to ‘serve 
the underserved’, Shri R. 
Thyagarajan has built a group 
with combined assets under 
management (AUM) exceeding 
H 1.75 Lakh + Crore, run by 
74,500 employees and 3950 
offices nation-wide. 

A Padma Bhushan awardee in 2013 
in the field of trade and industry, 
Shri R. Thyagarajan’s humility, 
determination and foresight  
have enabled him to build  
Shriram Group as a successful  
culture-driven conglomerate. 

Shri R. Thyagarajan
Founder, Shriram Group



Corporate 
information

Board of Directors 
Subramanian Jambunathan*

Managing Director & Chief 
Executive Officer 
 
Yalamati Srinivasa Chakravarti

Director, Non-Executive, Non-
Independent 
 
Venkataraman Murali

Director, Non-Executive, 
Independent 
 
Lakshminarayanan Priyadarshini

Director, Non-Executive, 
Independent

Key Managerial Personnel 
Subramanian Jambunathan

Managing Director & Chief 
Executive Officer 
 
Gauri Shankar Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer 
 
Puja Shah

Company Secretary

Statutory Auditors	  
M/s T. R. Chadha & Co. LLP,

Chartered Accountants 502, 
Marathon Icon, Off. Ganpatrao 
Kadam Marg, Opp. Peninsula 
Corporate Park, Lower Parel, 
Mumbai 400 013.

Beacon Trusteeship Limited

CIN: U74999MH2015PLC271288 
Address: 4C & D Siddhivinayak 
Chambers, Gandhi Nagar, Opp 
MIG Cricket Club, Bandra (East) 
Mumbai Mumbai City MH 400051 
Telephone: +91 (022) 26558759  
E-mail: compliance1@
beacontrustee.co.in 
Website: https://beacontrustee.
co.in/

Bankers

Axis Bank Limited 
Aditya Birla Finance Limited 
Bank of Baroda 
Bank of India 
Bank of Maharashtra 
Canara Bank 
CSB Bank Limited 
Central Bank of India 
DCB Bank Limited 
Federal Bank Limited 
HDFC Bank 
IDBI Bank Limited 
ICICI Bank Limited 
Indian Bank 
Karnataka Bank Limited 
LIC Housing Finance Limited 
National Housing Bank 
Punjab and Sind Bank 
Punjab National Bank 
RBL Bank 

Qatar National Bank 
South Indian bank Limited 
State Bank of India 
UCO Bank 
Ujjivan Small Finance Bank Limited 
Union Bank of India

Registered Office

No. 123, Angappa Naicken Street, 
Chennai- 600 001.

Corporate Office

Wockhardt Towers, East Wing, 
Level-3, C-2, G-Block, Bandra-
Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), 
Mumbai - 400 051

Trustees 
Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

CIN: U74999PN1997PLC110262 
Address: GDA House, Plot No. 85, 
Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road, 
Pune - 411 038  
Telephone: +91 (020) 2528 0081 
Fax: +91 (020) 2528 0275  
E-mail: dt@ctltrustee.com 
Website: www.catalysttrustee.com

*Readers are advised that Subramanian 
Jambunathan and Ravi Subramanian are 
one and the same person.



Fast-tracking growth, 
fulfilling home aspirations  
Shriram Housing Finance Limited (SHFL) is among the country’s 
fastest growing affordable housing finance companies. 

Promoted by Shriram City Union 
Finance, SHFL is part of Shriram 
Group, a leading financial services 
conglomerate. Founded by R. 
Thyagarajan, AVS Raja and T. 
Jayaraman, the Shriram Group 
leads with financial services across 
commercial vehicle financing, 
consumer and enterprise finance, 
retail stock broking and distribution of 
investment, and insurance products. 

SHFL commenced operations in 2011, and has fast-tracked its growth to 
be amongst the largest affordable housing lender in the country today. 
Alongside fulfilling the dream of owning a home, serving the customers, 
thus strengthening our national footprint and building a diverse and granular 
portfolio with decentralised underwriting practices. With an industry-leading 
asset quality and robust AUM, we continue to set new benchmarks and 
records, despite challenges. 

Vision

Mission 

Housing for All  
Implementing the National Vision of 
‘Housing for All’ in our ‘Shriram’ way by 
reaching out to all section of the population 
with innovative home loan schemes.

Finding Ways to Funding Homes  
To serve the under-served population of 
the country in fulfilling their aspiration of 
owning a dream home by ‘Finding Ways 
to Funding Homes’.

Annual Report 2021-2202



Our Values

Present in 15 states 
with 103 branches 
and 200 Griha Poorti 
touch-points to 
improve the lives of 
40,000+ customers 
through our offerings

Integrity 

Passion 

Empathy Agility 

Trust 

Statutory Reports Financial Statements
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Making 
an impact 
since 
2011…

H8,265 Crores H1,930 Crores

787

Disbursed towards 
Empowering small and 
medium business owners 
to own a home  

Disbursed towards 
Assisting salaried people 
to have their own homes

Employee 
Count

103
Branches

60% 81%

104%

10-year CAGR of Net 
worth 

Of loans under 
Rs. 25 lakhs

10-year CAGR of total 
revenue

200
Grihapoorti Touchpoints

Annual Report 2021-2204



H5,355 Crores H1,158 Crores

36% 101%

H549.2 Crores

30%

Total Income 

H80.3 Crores

29%

Profit After tax

AUM

H119.9 Crores

15%

Pre-Provisioning 
Operating Profit 

Net Worth 

H2.82
Earnings Per Share 

30.9% 

+790 
bps

Capital Adequacy Ratio

…to deliver 
superior 
performance 
consistently

Y-o-Y growth

Statutory Reports Financial Statements
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Our universe keeps 
getting better, every year

Nov 2010  
Commencement of business

Aug 2011  
Registered as HFC under the 
National Housing Bank

July 2013  
First round of equity infusion, 
completed by SCUF & Valiant  
(H 200 Crore)

Aug 2014  
Raised first bank loan at credit 
rating of CARE

Mar 2013 
AUM of

Oct 2014 
AUM of

Sep 2015 
AUM of

H100 Crore

H500 Crore

H1,000 Crore

AA+

Initial phase Growth phase

Annual Report 2021-2206



Nov 2018  
New Leadership team in place

Oct 2020  
New Brand Identity

Mar 2021  
Recognised as ET Best 
BFSI Brands 2021

Apr 2019  
Rated AA by CRISIL

Dec 2019 
AUM of

H2,000 Crore

Oct 2021  
Capital Infusion by SCUF 

resulting in total inflow of 
H500 Crore in FY’22

H300 Crore

Nov 2020 
AUM of

H3,000 Crore

July 2021 
AUM of

H4,000 Crore

SHFL 2.0-Refreshed approach and business strategy

H200 Crore 
Capital Infusion by SCUF

H2,739 Crore

Highest ever annual  
disbursal of 

Feb 2022  

AUM

H5,000 Crore

March 2022  

PBT

First time since inception 

H100 Crore

First time below 1% on AUM

90+ DPD Loans

May 2021

Statutory Reports Financial Statements
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Expanding our 
countrywide reach

Focus States

New Geographies

08 Annual Report 2021-22



FY’22 Disbursal (in %)

2%

9%
1%

3%

10%

12%

7%

6%

3%

8%

9%

3%

21%

18%

25%

23%

9%

4%

3%

2%

10%

2%

States

AP & TG

Delhi

Gujarat

Karnataka

Kerala

Madhya Pradesh

Maharashtra

Punjab

Rajasthan

Tamil Nadu

West Bengal

AUM as on Mar’22 (in %)

10%

Including Buyout in respective state

Including Buyout in respective state

AP & TG

Delhi

Gujarat

Karnataka

Kerala

Madhya Pradesh

Maharashtra

Punjab

Rajasthan

Tamil Nadu

Uttar Pradesh

West Bengal

States
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Our model of sustainable value creation

Since inception we have contributed towards empowering 
people with home ownership. Our resilient and robust business 
model has led us to a fast-growing housing finance company 
offering tailored solutions to stay ahead of the curve. 

Input

Our 
Vision

Our 
Mission 

Our Values

Diversified 
and granular 
portfolio

Strengthening 
footprint

Diversified  
customer 
base

Deploying 
state-of-the-art 
technology

Robust risk 
management 
framework

Our offerings

Home loan

Financial resources 

D 1,158 Crore Net worth 
D 3,897 Crore of 
borrowings

Human resources    

787 Employees

1,500+ Network Partners

Infrastructure   

4 zonal centres

103 Branch/sales offices

2 Outbound / Inbound 
Call centre

Expertise    

Guided by 45+ years of 
experience in financial 
services of Shriram Group

Loan against 
property

Our growth 
strategies

Construction 
Finance

Annual Report 2021-2210



Output Outcomes

Shareholders 

D 549 Crore Total Income 

D 80 Crore Profit After Tax

Employees   

276 People recruited during FY’22

D 10.21 Crore Revenue per employee

Customer serviced   

40,000+ Customer served till date

Disbursed D 2,739 Crore in FY’22

Digital    

10,000+ Downloads of SHFL Loans App

3,700+ Active users on SHFL Loans App

200+ Employees online induction conducted

500+ Channel partners trained online

	� Continuous value creation for stakeholders

	� Constant business growth

  Certified Great Place to Work

	� Robust collection efficiency  

	 High asset quality 

	 Growing branch network 

	 Decentralised credit underwriting

	� Enhanced overall working efficiency of our 
processes 

	� Smarter and secure platforms for enriching 
customer experiences

	 Improved customer service 

	� Uplifting the communities in which we operate

	 IVR calling 

	 Digital onboarding

	 Online payments

Statutory Reports Financial Statements
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Growing with conviction

Given the growing trends in urbanisation, nuclearisation, 
remote work culture, a largely young ambitious population, 
and growing access to low-cost finance, India’s housing 
sector is bound to grow.

The recovery of the economy 
from the impact of the pandemic 
has led to an increase in 
employment opportunities. 
Resumption of operations in 
businesses, especially in medium 
and small enterprises also 
contributes to the consumption 
story of the nation. India’s GDP 
growth is projected to be at 
8-8.5% for FY23, making it one of 
the fastest growing economies 
in the world. A greater thrust on 
favourable regulatory policies 
will further help withstand 
uncertainty of macroeconomic 
factors, and sustain long-term 
economic growth of the country. 
This will transform the real estate 
story, increasing the demand for 
housing among a larger section 
of the population.  

For sumptuous living, work-life 
balance, better well-being and 
future stability, a significant 
portion of the young workforce 
is currently investing in real 
estate in Tier 2 and 3 cities. While 
pent-up demand has kept the 
industry afloat, the rebound in 
economic activity will offer a 
further boost to the long-term 
rehabilitation of asset quality of 
housing loans. The affordable 
housing segment is predicted to 
increase significantly and drive 
the growth of housing finance 
sector in short-term.

A generational shift in buying 
property is underway, with 
millennials beginning to 
purchase residential real estate. 
After the pandemic, people are 
more prone to buying homes 
close to their hometowns and 
places which support a healthy 
lifestyle. With increasing options 
for remote working, the demand 
for open and green spaces 
is on the rise. The country is 
experiencing reverse migration 
with the youth choosing to live 
in smaller and quieter cities. 

Revival of economic 
activities

Increased demand 
for housing 

A shift towards first-
time borrowers

Annual Report 2021-2212



The Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana 
and Housing for All are some 
of the policies introduced by 
the Government to drive the 
demand for affordable property 
among people. The affordable 
housing sector is projected to 
grow at a CAGR of 15-20% over 
the next 5 years. Additionally, 
with favourable macroeconomic 
factors and low-interest rates, 
the affordable housing segment 
is expected to experience long-
term growth.

The existing low home loan 
interest rate and risk-weight 
requirements for individual 
housing loans will continue to 
be demand catalysts for the 
housing sector. This would 
drive the residential real estate 
market growth with finance 
institutions positioned to assist in 
competitive lending rates. 

Digitisation has increased access 
to multiple services, including 
finance, which were restricted 
to brick-and-mortar model. 
This has empowered more 
customers to access finance with 
the convenience and reduced 
the TAT for financial providers. 
Initiatives like the digital locker 
have streamlined paperless 
KYC documentation and is 
transforming the industry for 
sustained growth.  

Regulatory framework 
supporting affordable housing

Low-interest rate translating 
into low cost of capital

Digitisation 

Statutory Reports Financial Statements
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Managing Director  
& CEO’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

With the waning of the pandemic 
along with its subsequent variants, 
the world is gradually picking up after 
the ruptured societal structures and 
the slack in the economy. There is a 
rebound in consumer demand and 
consumer confidence. However, 
the mounting geopolitical tension in 
Europe and the subsequent sanctions 
by western and European countries 
are bedevilling the global economy by 
driving up oil and commodity prices 
while weighing heavily on the global 
supply chain and causing critical 
shortages of several commodities. 

In India, supply struggling to match 
the rapid recovery in demand, is 
exacerbating the already soaring 
inflation. Despite the challenges, high-
frequency indicators like passenger 
traffic and merchandise export, 
point toward a healthy revival of the 
economy towards pre-pandemic 
levels. Apart from the oil price hikes, 
mounting geopolitical tension is less 
likely to have a detrimental effect 
on the economy. In fact, supply 
chain strategies like ‘China plus 
one’ and ‘Russia plus one’ aimed at 
diversification of businesses into other 
geographies could prove beneficial to 
several Indian companies.

Withstanding commodity price hikes, 
one of the sectors that exhibited a 
remarkable revival is the housing 
and real estate sector. The revival 
is primarily driven by demand 

Being one of the largest 
affordable housing player, 
our Company is prepared 
to ride the tide and grow at 
double the rate of industry 
growth owing to our 
differentiated strategy.

Annual Report 2021-2214



consolidation towards reputable 
developers, changing attitude of the 
public towards homeownership, 
adoption of digital technologies 
and disciplined new home supply. 
Post the pandemic, we witnessed 
an unprecedented surge in demand 
for homes and residential properties 
reaching beyond pre pandemic levels.

The said demand for housing and real 
estate in tandem with historically low 
interest rates caused a momentous 
surge in demand for home loans, 
which is set to surpass pre-pandemic 
levels by the end of the year. The 
industry is expecting the demand to 
increase regardless of whether the 
interest rates increase later in the year. 

In addition, the loan book of affordable 
housing finance firms is expected 
to grow by 17-20% this fiscal year, 
thanks to the government’s increased 
focus on housing and a favourable 
tax system that reinforces the growth 
outlook. 

Being one of the largest affordable 
housing player, our Company is 
prepared to ride the tide and grow 
at double the rate of industry growth 
owing to our differentiated strategy. 
We are now one of the fastest-growing 
HFCs, with the widest distribution 
network for an affordable HFC, robust 
AUM size, sustained profitability, 
and a customer-centric strategy. 
As a testimony to our growth, the 
company’s assets under management 
have crossed H 5000 Crore this year.

Our Company’s growth is founded 
upon the fact that we cater to the 
‘Aam Aadmi’, which is in line with the 
government undertaking to provide 
affordable housing for all by the end 
of 2024. Even during the pandemic, 
our Company stood by its customers, 
providing support and forbearance 
against monetary impediments. This 

helped us fortify our brand loyalty. In 
FY’22, holding company SCUF injected 
Rs 500 Crore to further aid SHFL’s 
development and growth. This has 
improved SHFL’s credit rating, providing 
more liquidity, reduced funding costs, 
and favourable operating metrices.

Our understanding of the local markets 
makes us a formidable player in the 
housing finance sector. Our portfolio 
comprises of 65% housing loans, 
of which a significant majority are 
affordable home loans catering to the 
economically weaker sections placing 
us well within the affordable housing 
boom. Playing into our distribution 
strengths, your Company has entered 
into a co-lending partnership with 
the State Bank of India. This will drive 
our market presence and align to our 
long-term philosophy of serving the 
underserved with access to financial 
resources.

On the operational side, we 
implemented a speed-oriented 
operating paradigm at the company 
level. We have built agile, empowered 
workforce with an interdisciplinary 
talents that utilise analytics to drive 
test-and-learn techniques while 
making quick judgments. To absorb 
abrupt shocks and stay on track, we’ve 
included customer-centric strategies, 
real-time data analysis, and developed 
a more customised model. 

Recognising the increasing 
dependence of consumers on digital 
technology to avail products and 
services, we quickly pivoted to find 
novel ways to connect with customers 
and launched a customer service app 
offering a host of services to new and 
existing customers. 

On the back of a 36% rise in AUM this 
fiscal to reach roughly at H 5,300+ 
Crore, we have set a target of doubling 
our loan book to H 10,000 Crore by 
FY’24. 

Understanding the group’s extensive 
network in Tamil Nadu, Andhra 
Pradesh, Telangana, and Karnataka, we 
have oriented a dedicated distribution 
strategy to focus on these four 
southern states. Maharashtra, Gujarat, 
Delhi, and Rajasthan are also cardinal 
areas for our future plans, accounting 
for 88% of AUM in March 2022, 
together with the southern states. By 
expanding deep and broad in these 
geographies, we are confident to 
sustain our market share.

At the heart of our success lies 
the commitment and persistence 
demonstrated by our employees 
towards delivering their best. I want to 
take a moment to express my heartfelt 
gratitude towards all our dedicated 
stakeholders for their continuous 
support, faith, and encouragement. 
As we position ourselves for the long 
run, Shriram Housing Finance Limited 
remains confident about sustaining 
excellence and expanding its  
growth path.

Regards,

Ravi Subramanian 
Managing Director & CEO
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Message from the CFO

Dear shareholders,

It brings me great pleasure in 
presenting the financial highlights of 
our Company for the FY’22. In a year 
defined by the global pandemic and 
geopolitical upheavals, FY’22 was truly 
a milestone year for our Organisation. 
We successfully navigated the 
unprecedented headwinds and 
delivered a strong performance.

Our total revenue in the year under 
review is H 549 Crore. While, our 
PBT stands at H 109 Crore in FY’22 in 
comparison to H 84 Crore in FY’21, 
registering a growth of 30%. Our PAT 
increased by 29% YoY to H 80 Crore in 
FY’22.  We crossed the H 5,000 Crore 
milestone in assets under management 

We crossed the  
J 5,000 Crore milestone in 
assets under management 
(AUM) in Quarter 4 of 
FY’22, thereby also 
recording 36% YoY growth 
in FY’22

Annual Report 2021-2216



(AUM) in Quarter 4 of FY’22, thereby 
also recording 36% YoY growth in 
FY’22. With a focus on widening 
distribution network and expand 
our customer base, we aim to reach  
H 10,000 Crore AUM in FY’24. Among the 
many firsts, it gives me immense proud 
to inform that SHFL recorded a PBT of 
H 100+ Crore in a year – a feat recorded 
for the first time in the history of  
the company. 

The strength in profitability is a result of 
strong disbursals we have made during 
the year. During the year loans worth H 
2,739 Crore were disbursed as against 
H 2,195 Crore in FY’21. Our 90 Days 
Past Due (DPD) loans fell below 1% of 
AUM for the first time, demonstrating 
our close engagement with customers 
and our strong collection mechanism. 
In this context, I would also like 
to mention about our collection 
efficiency that reached 102% for March 
2022. 

In the fiscal, we received funding of  
H 500 Crore from NHB depicting trust 
of the regulator in our organisation 
and our strong corporate governance. 
We have also signed a co-lending 
agreement with SBI, for priority 
sector affordable home loans. We 
believe, this partnership will help us 

strengthen our distribution network 
allowing us to extend our credit reach 
to additional home loan borrowers of 
the unserved as well as underserved 
segments. Leveraging our strengths, 
this collaboration will help us get closer 
towards our objectives of serving the 
‘Aam Aadmi’ and financial inclusion.

Going ahead, we are restructuring 
our business strategies in order 
to expand and diversify our loan 
portfolio. We continue to focus on 
housing finance under our new 
offerings, like loans against property 
and relatively minimum portfolio  
construction finance. 

With financial inclusion gaining 
traction on ground and a pickup in 
the economy along with positive fiscal 
measures, we expect the demand for 
housing finance to grow. With the 
affordable housing and mid-market 
segment witnessing strong demand 
in tier 2 and tier 3 cities, we have our 
strategies well in place to capitalise on 
the emerging opportunities. 

In line with the rising opportunities, 
the capital infusion of H 500 Crore 
received from our parent company 
Shriram City Union Finance will 
help us fulfil our growth plans with  
balanced aggression.

Shriram group has been pioneer 
in providing innovative financial 
products to cater to the financial 
demands of common man. We 
would continue building on this ethos 
keeping the focus on the affordable 
home loan segment and cross selling 
across Group’s customer base. Our 
transformed operating architecture, 
infused capital to drive growth, strong 
Governance and robust balance sheet 
gives us confidence to look forward to 
the coming financial year.

Regards,

Gauri Shankar Agarwal   
Chief Financial Officer

The strength in profitability is a result of strong disbursals we 
have made during the year. During the year loans worth H 2,739 
Crore were disbursed as against H 2,195 Crore in FY’21. Our 90 
Days Past Due (DPD) loans fell below 1% of AUM for the first time, 
demonstrating our close engagement with customers and our 
strong collection mechanism.
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(H in Crore)

Total Disbursement  
and Growth

2,739 

2,195

1,127

758 758

(H in Crore)

Asset Under  
Management growth

FY’18* FY’19 FY’20 FY’21 FY’22

5,355

3,929

2,305
1,785 1,848

(In %)

Construction Finance

FY’18* FY’19 FY’20 FY’21 FY’22

6

3

5

9 9

FY’18* FY’19 FY’20 FY’21 FY’22

(H in Crore)

Total Revenue

FY’18* FY’19 FY’20 FY’21 FY’22

549

422

366

272
291

(In %)

Loan Against Property

FY’18* FY’19 FY’20 FY’21 FY’22

2929

35

27

31

(H in Crore)

PAT

FY’18* FY’19 FY’20 FY’21 FY’22

80 

62

47

29

17

(in %)

Yield on assets

FY’18* FY’19 FY’20 FY’21 FY’22

14.4

16.7

18.6

14.8 15.8

Delivering amid challenges

Portfolio mix

(In %)

Home Loan

FY’18* FY’19 FY’20 FY’21 FY’22

65
68

60
64 60

*IGAAP

Note: Numbers have been re-arranged/re-grouped wherever necessary

Net Worth

FY’18* FY’19 FY’20 FY’21 FY’22

1,158

576
513

453 466

(H in Crore)
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(In %) (H in Lacs) (In %)

NIM Profit per employee Cost to income ratio

7.1

10.2

55.38.5
7.6 51.3

10.3

5.8

55.28.9

3.2

61.0
8.8

FY’18* FY’19 FY’20 FY’21 FY’22 FY’18* FY’19 FY’20 FY’21 FY’22 FY’18* FY’19 FY’20 FY’21 FY’22

2.5

68.7

Note: Numbers have been re-arranged/re-grouped wherever necessary*IGAAP

FY’18* FY’19 FY’20 FY’21 FY’22 FY’18* FY’19 FY’20 FY’21 FY’22

(In %) (In %)

Gross stage 3 assets	 Net stage 3 assets

1.1#

0.6

1.7

0.8#

0.5

1.3
1.9 1.5

2.4 1.9

5.0 3.7

2.8 2.2

Gross and Net stage 3 assets (NPA)

#1.1% - Does not include impact 
of RBI Circular dated 12th Nov’21

#0.8% - Does not include impact 
of RBI Circular dated 12th Nov’21

(In %) (In %)

ROA ROE

2.1
8.5

2.5 11.6
2.4

9.6

1.5
6.6

0.9 3.6

FY’18* FY’19 FY’20 FY’21 FY’22 FY’18* FY’19 FY’20 FY’21 FY’22
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Decentralised credit underwriting

We are strengthening our underwriting framework by leveraging our strong 
market understanding and product portfolio. Our robust underwriting 
parameters have helped us build a quality asset portfolio. At the branch level, 
teams are empowered to take ownership of underwriting decisions, resulting 
in shorter response times (TAT) and higher-quality portfolios. We also have a 
watertight underwriting that aids in keeping the asset quality in check.

Disbursal FY’22

New to credit

<50%

60-70%

<=700

>700

50 – 60%

>70%

HL

NHL

Non Salaried

Salaried

60% 12% 6%

19% 19% 48%

40% 82%

81% 16% 17%

Product mix CIBIL score band

Customer category LTV
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Portfolio  

New to credit

<50%

60-70%

<=700

>700

50 – 60%

>70%

HL

NHL

Non-Salaried

Salaried

65% 14% 8%

21% 17% 48%

35% 77%

79% 17% 19%

Product CIBIL score band

Customer category LTV

Decentralised credit function 
with multiple checkpoints

Independent verifications at 6 levels

	 Legal and title search 
	 Bureau checks (CIBIL + CRIF)
	 PD by credit manager 
	 Field investigation reports
	 Technical valuation of property 
	 Hunter checks + RCU team 

Exhaustive analytics in collaboration 
with bureaus and Comprehensive 
Quant checks

Business 
intelligence and 
decision enabler

Data scrub for 
deeper analysis

Credit insights 
platform

Hunter – fraud 
prevention tool 
data scrub for 
deeper analysis

Credit information 
report (CIR)
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Aiming for the Mission I’m-Possible

With the endeavour to penetrate more cities and fulfil 
aspirations of people of having their own dream house, 
we are leveraging the extensive Shriram Group network of 
branches and massive customer franchise. 

Our initiative – ‘Griha Poorti’ is 
aimed at offering housing finance 
to the group customers and further 
strengthening the group offerings 
for existing customers. We initially 
launched Griha Poorti in Andhra 
Pradesh and Telengana and now we 
are working towards replicating the 
same concept across all the group 
branches across the country. 

3,950 
Branches of Shriram group 
as on 31st March 2022

178
Branches of SCUF in AP and 
TG covered under Griha Poorti 
as on 31st March 2022

22
Branches of STFC in Gujarat 
covered under Griha poorti as 
on 31st March 2022

H128 Crore
Disbursals in FY’22

The way forward 40 branches of STFC in Gujarat is 
cross selling home loans under 
Griha Poorti. In the long-run, we are 
targeting to expand the initiatives to 
all branches of STFC. 

Customer outreach will be driven at 
the branch level to ensure maximum 
reach. Various initiatives such as tele-
calling, mobile messaging and walk-in 
assistance will be deployed to assist 
the branches in selling. SHFL sales 
personnel in the branch will also assist 
new-to-group customers through 
open market sourcing of home loan 
leads in the branch neighbourhood. 
Additionally, we leverage the enviable 
network of Shriram General Insurance 
agents to further expand our reach. In 
turn, we will also cross-sells property 
insurance policies written by SGIC 
with home loans; thus, completing 
the synergistic ecosystem.

We are also eyeing on expanding 
our reach further by utilising the 
distribution network of Shriram 
Transport Finance (STFC) in the 
short run. In the first phase, over 

SHFL footprint in 178 SCUF 
branches in AP/TG
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Robust collection process 

Collection Efficiency

Q4 FY’22Q3 FY’22Q2 FY’22Q1 FY’22Q4 FY’21

102%100%100%97%
102%

Well manned  
in-house collection 

system in place 

Differentiated 
strategy for each 

bucket with defined 
roles

In-house team to 
ensure smooth 

collection process 
via telemarketing and 

app-based reminders to 
customers 

Extensive focus on 
digital collections

Our approach to ensure strong collection 

Strengthening our 
approach through 
optimum mix 
of in-house and 
external teams

In-house team include:

	 National collection manager

	 Regional collection 
manager

	 State collection manager

	 Area collection manager

	 Branch collection manager

	 BOT based collection

Customer service:

	 Customers will be assisted 
via mobile app,customer 
portal and dedicated  
call centers 

Benefit of external agencies:

	 Strong geographical reach

	 Extensive local connects

	 Low cost

Note:   
CE is calculated as : Total amount collected 
(including OD EMI but excl. Foreclosure/
prepayments)/Total Billing for the month
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Building a digital ecosystem 

We have built a robust digital infrastructure that 
complements our on-ground infrastructure. It enables a 
seamless experience for our customers. 

Applications

Loan origination 
system

Collection 
system

Analytics

Loan 
management 
system

CRM

Document 
management

Loan Summary

Payments 

Requests

Download Interest Certificate

SHFL Loans App/
customer portal
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eNACH 

CKYC 

Score Cards Voice BOT Digilocker

Video PD

Geo tagging of property

Digital IMD 

Griha Poorti App

Data entry and 
documentation

Realtime bureau and 
eligibility

Services
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As a result-focused and people-oriented 
organisation, we strive to build a work environment 
that is diverse, open and helps employees strike a 
balance between professional and personal lives. 

Our People. Our Strength. 

Our people remain at the core of 
our business and we constantly 
invest towards upgrading their skills 
and knowledge, keeping them at par 
with changing market environment. 
Our employees, new as well as 
existing, undergo intensive training 
in order to deliver quality services to 
our customers. The need to deliver 
quality service is emphasized at 
every opportunity.

Additionally, we also continue 
to invest in providing a positive 
workplace environment in which 
our employees can grow and thrive. 
We are also investing significantly 
towards digitising our operations 
with the aim to increase the overall 
efficiency of our processes and 
people alike. We also equip our 
employees, especially the sales 
team, with Tablet pre-loaded with 
the various key applications such as 
Griha Poorti App for quick data entry 
and seamless onboarding  
of customer.

During the year under review, we 
were recognized and certified as a 
‘Great Place to Work®’ by the Great 
Place to Work® Institute, which 
is a remarkable milestone for us. 
This achievement reflects on our 
committed and zeal to become the 
‘Employer of Choice’. 

787

355

Employees as on  
31st March 2022

Sales force as on  
31st March 2022
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Christmas Celebration

Diwali Celebration

Annual event : Ignite 2022

Women’s Day Celebration
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Board of Directors 

Subramanian moved in as MD & CEO of 
Shriram Housing in Nov 2018. He has 
an experience of over 3 decades in the 
banking and financial services sector 
across organizations like HSBC, Citibank 
& ANZ Grindlays. He has successfully led 
independent businesses with complete 
P&L accountability for over a decade, and 
has served in senior management roles in 
diverse functions ranging from business 
process, reengineering to heading 
businesses. 

He joined the Shriram Group in the year 
2010 as an Executive Director in Shriram 
City and was involved in building and 
growing the SME lending business before 
moving into this new role. 

Mr. Subramanian holds a Management 
degree from IIM – Bangalore. 

Murali is a Non-Executive, Independent 
Director on the Board of SHFL. He holds 
degrees of Bachelors of Commerce, 
from Vivekananda College, Chennai. 
He is a fellow member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and an 
associate member of the Institute of Cost 
and Works Accountants of India and has 
to his credit more than three decades of 
experience in the relevant fields. He has 
been elected as Central Council Member 
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India for four terms in succession for the 
periods from 2004-2016 and secured sixth 
consecutive record win in ICAI elections 
from the Southern Region. He has been on 
the Board since July 2013.

Ravi Subramanian

Venkataraman Murali
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Y.S. Chakravarti is a Non-Executive, Non-
Independent Director on the Board of 
SHFL. He holds a Bachelor degree in 
Commerce, and is an astute retail finance 
professional with proven business skills 
and leadership ability. He has worked in 
various assignments in the field of financial 
services for over the last 25+ years. He is a 
Managing Director & CEO of Shriram City 
Union Finance Limited. 

Priyadarshini is a Non-Executive, 
Independent Director on the Board of 
SHFL. She holds a Post Graduate Diploma 
in Business Management (Marketing 
& Finance) and has a B.A. Honours 
(Economics) degree from Delhi University. 
In a career spanned over two decades she 
has a diverse work experience with local 
and global players such as HSBC, ABN 
AMRO, ICICI Bank, Reliance Industries, GE 
India, IFCI and ONICRA. She has a wide 
experience in a variety of leadership roles in 
Business Development, Corporate & Retail 
sales, Corporate Banking, Key Account 
Management Business Strategy. She has 
been on the Board since October 2018.

Yalamati Srinivasa Chakravarti

Lakshminarayanan Priyadarshini
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Management team 

G.S. is a dynamic professional with over  29  years of experience in 
Fund Mobilisation, Treasury Management, Planning & Strategy, 
Budgeting, Accounts, Compliance, MIS and Operations. He 
has worked in various areas in conceptualising & executing 
financial procedures with Working Capital Management, Profit 
Monitoring and building Internal Financial Controls. His last 
role was with Magma Group as Group Treasury Head where 
he was responsible for Treasury Function for entire group with 
additional role of CFO for Magma Housing Finance Limited. 
He is a rank holder Chartered Accountant and enjoys excellent 
relationship with various Banks and Financial Institutions along 
with debt capital market.

G S  
Agarwal

Chief Financial 
Officer

Shivram is a seasoned professional with a rich and diversified 
experience of over 26 years in managing credit and risk 
function across various product lines. His last assignment was 
with Reliance Commercial Finance Limited as Head-Policy 
and Risk for SME products. Prior to that, he was associated 
with Muthoot Housing Finance, Bajaj Finance and ABN AMRO 
Bank where he managed Credit and Risk function for various 
products viz Housing, Mortgages and Construction equipment. 
Shivram is a Commerce graduate and has done his MMS in 
Finance from K. J. Somaiya Institute of Management Studies 
& Research, Mumbai. He has been associated with SHFL  
 since May 2019.

Shivram 
Jagadeswaran

Chief Credit Officer

Nagendra comes with close to 24 years work experience, 
16 of which have been with Citigroup & HSBC in consumer 
banking. In his career, he has held varied Sales leadership 
positions across consumer finance, unsecured lending 
(Cards & Personal Loans), Debt Management, Acquisition, 
Mortgages, Insurance, Liability & Customer Service. 
Nagendra joined Shriram City Union Finance Limited in Oct 
2017, where he served as the Business Head of Unsecured 
Loans and Corporate Loans, before moving into this new 
role at SHFL in Nov 2018. He holds an MBA degree from  
Symbiosis University Pune.

Nagendra  
Singh

Chief Business 
Officer

Easwaran is a senior Human Resource professional with around 
28 years of global HR experience spanning across countries 
and over industry verticals such as Banking & Financial 
Services, IT, ITES, Retail, Logistics & Services sectors. Easwaran 
has earlier worked in senior roles with reputed organizations 
such as Barclays Bank (in India & Mauritius), Development 
Credit Bank, Bank Muscat International (Bahrain), Azizi Bank 
(Afghanistan), VFS Global Services, Capita plc, etc. He holds a 
master’s degree from Symbiosis University Pune and has been 
associated with SHFL since March 2019.

Easwaran 
Krishnan

Head -Human 
Resources
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Satinder brings with him over 24 years of experience in Sales 
& Collections. He has previously been associated with reputed 
organizations like Reliance ADAG, India Infoline Housing 
Finance & Citigroup. In his last assignment with Reliance 
Commercial Finance Limited as Head Collections - Retail, he 
played a significant role in building a strong collection vertical 
managing both consumer & corporate loan book. Satinder is 
a Postgraduate by qualification and has been associated with 
SHFL since April 2019.

Satinder Singh 
Sidhu

Head - Collections

Umesh is a seasoned professional in Real Estate financing. He 
has over 21 years of experience in various business roles like 
Origination, Relationship Management, Credit Due Diligence, 
Portfolio Management and Risk Management. His professional 
expertise spans across product lines- Real Estate finance, 
Structured Finance, SME, Mid Corporate Banking and Retail 
Mortgages. His last assignment was with InCred Financial 
Services Ltd., where he served as the Director and Business 
Head (Real Estate Finance). His past experiences have been 
with ICICI Bank, Standard Chartered and TATA Capital. Umesh 
holds an MMS & MBA from Mumbai University and has been 
associated with SHFL since June 2019.

Umesh  
Waghade

Business Head - 
Construction 
Finance & 
Structured Lending 

Amit comes with an experience of 18 years in various capacities 
across BFSI industry and has an extensive experience of driving 
analytics driven strategies in consumer finance. He has worked 
across both B2B & B2C domains and has spent considerable 
time in Sales, Business Development and Strategy functions 
across companies like Citigroup & GE Capital. He joined 
the group in Jan 2018 as Sales Head for Personal Loans for 
Shriram City Union Finance. He was previously associated with 
Tata Teleservices as P&L Head for Mumbai region. He currently 
manages the Marketing, Customer Service & Insurance 
Distribution functions for SHFL. He also presently manages a 
few strategic projects for the parent company – Shriram City 
Union Finance Limited. Amit holds a Management degree 
from the Indian Institute of Management, Lucknow.

Amit  
Bhatia

Head – Marketing, 
Customer Service 
& Insurance 
Distribution

Christopher comes with a unique experience of working with 
a Regulatory Body and leading a Public Sector bank. In a career 
spanning over 26 years, he has worked for over 13 years with 
National Housing Bank and has in-depth domain knowledge 
in regulation and supervision of Housing Finance Companies, 
Project Finance, Housing Micro Finance and Retail banking. He 
joined SHFL in April 2015 and has since been heading the Audit 
and Compliance Department. Christopher is a gold-medallist 
in MSW (Personnel Management) from Loyola College, 
Chennai; holds an MBA degree in Finance and is a Certified 
Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers (CAIIB).

W. Christopher 
Robin

Head - Audit & 
Compliance
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Sulabh is a seasoned professional with an entrepreneurial 
mindset carrying over 22 years of rich global experience 
across Financial Services, Management Consulting, Residential 
& Commercial Real Estate in Multinational, NBFC and Startup 
environments. He has worked with reputed organizations 
including BNP Paribas, Citigroup, Standard Chartered, HSBC 
& Accenture Consulting across several Indian cities, Brazil & 
The UK, besides founding an innovative funded Start-up. He is 
a self-starter with extensive experience in Strategy, Sales, P&L 
Management, Product & Process Design, Marketing Strategy, 
SEO & Digital. A strong believer in success through People-
Process-Technology, he carries a big-picture orientation 
with a keen eye for detail, coupled with an analytical mind & 
sharp execution rigor. Proven ability to work with a knack of 
structuring the unstructured, Sulabh is APFFB certified from 
IIM Kolkata with an MBA from Amity Business School & B.Com. 
Hons. from Hansraj College, Delhi University.

Sulabh 
Singal 

Chief Risk Officer

Sandeep is a Digital Transformation leader with over 20 Years 
of cross functional experience across BFSI and Smart Card 
Industry. He has worked in formulating and implementing 
digital strategy, product and service roadmaps for Fullerton 
India Credit Company and IIFL Finance Limited. He has 
extensive experience in digital Payments, Credit cards , Digital 
Banking across companies like Standard Chartered Bank and 
ICICI Bank. He has joined SHFL in July 2021 as Chief Digital 
Officer and has been spearheading the digitization and 
innovation at SHFL. Sandeep is an Engineer who did his MBA 
from FORE School of Management, New Delhi.

Sandeep 
Ranjan 

Chief Digital Officer

Management team 
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Community welfare 

We, at SHFL, are always at the 
forefront of ensuring socio-economic 
development of the community in 
which we operate. Through our CSR 
initiatives, we voluntarily aim to enrich 
our local communities to ensure their 
development and uplift underserved 
communities. We also partner with 
various NGOs to further expand our CSR 
reach. During the year under review, 
we focused on promoting preventive 
healthcare, supporting students, 
especially differently-abled students, by 
providing SMART boards and ensuring 
availability of safe drinking water. During 
the challenging times of Covid-19, 
we supported the communities by 
distributing kits containing face masks, 
sanitisers, and hand gloves. 

H1.17 Crore
Amount spent towards 
CSR activities 

Focus Areas

C
o

vi
d-

19
 re

lief               Healthcare

          Education              Drinking w
at

er

Launch of new branches
Given the increasing need for affordable housing loans, we, at SHFL, are expanding our footprints far and wide across the country. 
Alongside of being established in few states, we are aggressively opening new branches and Griha Poorti in our focused states 
which includes Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, Tamil Nadu and Gujarat. During the year under review, we opened 21 new branches 
across Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, Madhya Pradesh and Tamil Nadu. Our targeted growth expansion strategy has enabled us to 
gain a deep consumer understanding for specific micro-market and a credible portfolio, which we believe will empower us to serve 
as strategic differentiators in the medium to long term.

Bagalkote

Mandya

Kakinada 

Theni 

Ratlam

Tirrupur
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Awards and recognition 

We were recognised as the best BFSI 
brands 2021 by The Economic Times

Best Talent & Diversity

Our CFO, G S Agarwal bagged 
awards in ‘CFO Innovation for 
Liquidity Management in BFSI’ 
and ‘CFO Innovation for Leverage 
Management in BFSI’ categories 
of CFO Vision & Innovation 
Awards 2021 

We are 
Great Place 
to Work®-
Certified in 
India, from 
February 
2022 to 
February 
2023

Recognised as the fastest 
Growing NBFC of the Year
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Overview of the Indian Economy

In 2022-23, while global factors are going negative, there 
is some loss of near-term growth momentum. Domestic 
growth drivers are steadily improving in the future. As per 
second advance estimates issued by National Statistical 
Office (NSO) on real GDP increased by 8.9 per cent in 
FY 2021-22. But amid the brightening horizons, the growing 
global tensions cloud our economic outlook. Although 
India’s direct trade exposure to conflict-affected nations 
is low, the war might stymie economic recovery through 
increased commodity prices and global spillover channels.

Furthermore, financial market volatility caused by monetary 
policy normalisation in advanced economies, renewed 
COVID-19 infections in some significant countries with 
heightened supply-side disruptions, and long-term 
shortages of critical inputs such as semi-conductors and 
chips pose downside risks to the outlook. Taking all these 
factors into account, real GDP growth for FY 2022-23 is now 
forecasted at 7.2 per cent, assuming crude oil (Indian basket) 
at US$ 100 per barrel in FY 2022-23.

The economic downturn resumed in Q3 of FY 2021-22 
and was aggravated by the appearance of the Coronavirus 
Omicron Variant in January 2022. There was a modest 
improvement during February, but in March 2022, there 
was a mixed picture. Despite decreased infections and 
the elimination of prohibitions, several contact-intensive 
activities have regained popularity. Several high-frequency 
indicators, including railway freight, GST revenues, toll 
collections, energy demand, fuel consumption, and capital 
goods imports, all increased in February 2022 and March 
2022. According to surveys, consumer confidence is rising, 
and households’ optimism for the coming year has increased 
with feelings. Business confidence is upbeat and supportive 
of a recovery in the economy.

In terms of non-food products, the recent increase in 
international crude oil prices offers a significant upside 
risk to inflation through direct and indirect consequences. 
A substantial increase in domestic pump prices might 
set off a broad-based second round of pricing pressures.  

A combination of high international commodity prices and 
increased logistical interruptions may drive up input costs 
in agriculture, manufacturing, and services. As a result, their 
impact on retail pricing necessitates ongoing monitoring 
and proactive supply management. Financial markets are 
expected to remain turbulent as risk premia rise, trade and 
capital flows diverge, and central banks respond differently. 
Inflation is currently anticipated to be 5.7 per cent in 2022-
23, based on these variables plus the assumption of a normal 
monsoon in 2022 and an average crude oil price (Indian 
basket) of US $ 100 per barrel.1 

Housing Finance Industry:

In FY22, the overall economy has recovered at a fast pace, 
the housing finance industry has witnessed a robust demand. 
Demand for bigger homes to support the work from home & 
hybrid working model, low and stabilized home loan interest 
rates have all boosted the demand for housing space. The 
demand was also fueled on account of the policy emphasis 
on low cost and affordable housing. As a result, the segment 
saw good traction and is expected to provide a much-
needed impetus to the overall industry.

Home loan demand has grown due to pent-up demand, 
lower borrowing rates, favourable government incentives, 
and developer discounts. In Q3 of FY 2021, Indian Housing 
loan market registered a growth of 9.6% y-o-y, in terms of 
total lending.2 According to CRIF High Mark data, the housing 
loan market has grown at a CAGR of 6.5% over the last three 
years.3 HFCs are expected to grow by 13% in FY 2022-23.

As per the report by CRIF High Mark, the affordable housing 
segment (with ticket size up to H 35 lakh) made up 90 per cent 
of the market by volume and nearly 60 per cent by value last 
year. AHFCs (affordable housing finance companies) have a 
total loan book of H 66,221 crore as of December 31, 2021, 
accounting for around 6% of the total loan book of housing 
finance companies (HFCs). 4 AFHCs are expected to witness 
strong loan growth as a result of increasing geographic 
penetration and possibility of increase in ticket size in FY 
2022-23.

1	 https://www.rbi.org.in/Scripts/BS_PressReleaseDisplay.aspx?prid=53535
2	 https://timesproperty.com/news/post/the-impact-of-housing-finance-on-affordable-housing-blid1446
3	 https://www.crifhighmark.com/news-events/news/2021/july/growth-of-home-loan-market-is-good-news-for-buyers
4	 https://economictimes.indiatimes.com/industry/banking/finance/affordable-housing-finance-companies-loan-book-to-grow-17-20-in-fy23-says-study/

articleshow/91289254.cms?from=mdr
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Contd..)

Growth Drivers

1.	 Increase in disposable income- As disposable income is 
increasing people are preferring to take a loan for their 
own homes rather than living in rental properties. 5

2.	 Urbanization-  As more population are settling in urban 
areas, the demand for homes are increasing, thus 
increasing the demand for loans.

3.	 Low interest- Low interest on housing loan has increased 
the affordability of the loans, thereby stimulating 
demand for the same.

Recent Developments in the Industry

1.	 In Budget 2022, government has allocated H 48000 
Crore under Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana urban and 
rural schemes, with affordable housing being the 
major focus. Around 80 lakh houses are expected to 
be completed by 2023.6 This will give a push to the real 
estate sector and developers who will help in building 
affordable homes.

2.	 Affordable housing has become one of the most 
dynamic sectors in the real estate industry. It is expected 
that AHFC will grow by 17-20% by FY23 which would 
make a significant segment under housing finance.

3.	 RBI has hiked repo rate by 40 bps in May 2022. This 
would increase the cost of funding for the banks. 
This is expected to result in rising of interest rates on  
home loans.

4.	 With spread of digitization, many housing finance 
companies are offering online services for home loans. 
This has increased accessibility for the consumers.

Challenges faced by the industry:7

•	 Liquidity

	 Excess liquidity in banking system has intensified 
competition on account of their sharpening focus on 
retail loans.

•	 Gross non-performing assets (GNPA):

	 On account of recent regulatory changes in respect 
of prudential norms on income recognition and asset 
classification, GNPAs are expected to increase.

•	 Rising inflation rate

	 High inflation rate raises the cost of funds for the banks 
as the interest rates for loans increases. As a result the 
interest rates for home loans also increases.

•	 Competition

	 Competition from banks and other players in the 
industry will always prove to be a challenge for the 
housing finance companies.

Outlook for Shriram Housing Finance Limited:

Shriram Housing Finance Limited has continued to transform 
itself showing significant improvement in all operational and 
financial parameters even during the unprecedented situation 
caused to COVID-19 pandemic. In FY22, the Company was 
one of the few HFCs in India, straddling segments and 
products with the help of Technology-enabled processes 
for efficiency and improved decision making.

The Company’s origination yield has increased by 20 bps 
during the year as the Company focuses on creating a 
quality loan book and onboarding high credit rating clients. 
The Company has improved on all financial metrics due 
to company development, rationalisation of operational 
expenditures, and high asset quality.

The Company has maintained a quality portfolio growth with 
its strong leadership team driving its position in significant 
target states while also expanding its reach by building 
branches in new areas.

Because of the sustained rise in demand, it will continue to 
focus on the emerging middle class and strive for an optimal 
asset balance. The Company will continue to investigate 
cross-selling opportunities, which will play a big part in the 
next leg of company’s growth since it is backed by the Shriram 
Group, which has a large, well-established customer base.

5	 https://www.zeebiz.com/india/real-estate/news-explained-key-factors-driving-home-loan-market-in-india-135983
6	 https://www.financialexpress.com/budget/budget-2022-gives-a-boost-to-affordable-housing/2422512/
7	 https://www.crisil.com/content/dam/crisil/our-analysis/reports/Ratings/documents/2021/12/looking-up-nbfcs-on-revival-path-post-pandemic-blow.pdf
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Financial Performance

Particulars (J in Crores) FY22 FY21

Total Income 549.17 422.34

PBT 109.14 84.24

Net Interest Income 267.67 210.79

PAT 80.34 62.38

AUM 5,355.01 3,929.44

Net worth 1157.59 576.47

Key Ratios

Particulars (%) FY22 FY21

Return on avg NW 8.51 11.56

Return on Assets 2.11 2.47

CRAR 30.89 23.03

Internal Control

Shriram Housing Finance Limited has implemented the 
necessary processes to enhance corporate sustainability and 
a healthy work environment.

It maintains an internal control system designed to give a 
high level of confidence about the efficacy and efficiency 
of its operating procedures, protection of assets and 
promotes openness and accountability while complying 
with applicable laws and regulations.

Internal auditors assess the effectiveness of the internal 
control system in collaboration with external audit firms 
authorised by the Company to perform statutory audits. 
Internal audit reports are presented to the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee, on a periodic basis. The Audit 
Committee reviews the performance of the compliance 
functions, the effectiveness of controls and compliance 
with regulatory guidelines and gives such directions to the 
Management as necessary/considered appropriate.

Human Resource:

Shriram Housing Finance Limited is committed to creating a safe, 
inclusive, and long-term working environment for its workers. The 
Company is devoted to attracting and maintaining talent, which is 
critical to attaining its objectives. It was also granted a ‘Great Place 
to Work’ certification for its efforts to build a performance-driven 
and people-centric franchise. The Company is committed to 
acquiring the best employees and giving equitable opportunities 
for professional progress by matching their aptitude, goals,  
and drive.

Shriram Housing Finance Limited makes every effort to acquire 
and retain the best talent. The Company’s HR recruiting 
process is extensive, encompassing many evaluation stages 
to guarantee the perfect fit for the Company’s culture and 
open jobs within the organisation. The Company strives 
to provide equitable work opportunities for all workers 
and promote workplace diversity while taking appropriate 
actions to improve employee happiness and engagement. 
The Company guarantees that its talent pool is thoroughly 
assessed through its performance management system.

This enables the Company to provide a proper career path for 
its employees while also adequately rewarding top achievers.

COVID-19 Initiative

Shriram Housing Finance Limited continues to work proactively 
in safeguarding the well-being of its employees and providing 
them all the assistance they require during the ongoing 
pandemic. The Company has implemented extensive safety 
measures in the workplace to prioritise the safety of its employees 
and their family members. The Company has vaccinated all 
their staff and their immediate family members through mass 
vaccination drives undertaken at various locations.

In a unique initiative, the Company has taken a step ahead 
and announced to reimburse the cost of vaccination for all 
its affordable housing customers. The organisation believes 
in supporting the welfare of its customers and ensuring their 
well-being.
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Directors’ Report

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors of your Company have great pleasure in presenting the 12th Annual Report together with the Audited 
Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022

Financial Results

The summary of financial performance of the Company for the year are as under:
 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Profit before depreciation and taxation 11,701.44 9,151.94
Less: Depreciation 787.02 728.32
Profit before tax 10,914.42 8,423.61
Less: Provision for taxation 2,880.3 2,185.31
Profit after tax 8,034.13 6,238.30
Add: Profit brought forward from previous year 18,627.10 13,640.99
Add /(Less): Appropriation of Employee compensation cost of stock options 0.00 1.81
Add: Transfer to retained earning 8,034.13 6238.30
Profit available for appropriation 26,661.23 19,881.10
Less: Appropriations 1,613.72 1,254.00
Profits available after appropriations 25,047.50 18,627.10
Earnings per share 
Basic (in H) 2.82 2.91
Diluted (in H) 2.81 2.90

Performance Review

The Company’s gross income for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2022 increased to INR 54,917.55 lakh as compared 
to INR 42,234.05 lakh in the previous financial year thereby 
registering an increase of 30.03%. The profit before tax of the 
Company increased to INR 10,914.42 lakh during the year 
as against INR 8,423.62 lakh in the previous year. The net 
profit for the year increased by 28.79% to INR 8,034.13 lakh 
from INR 6,238.31 lakh in the previous financial year. The 
loan book was at INR 4,57,453.53 lakh as at March 31, 2022 
as against INR 3,42,609.74 lakh as at March 31, 2021. The 
Company has transferred an amount of INR 1,613.72 lakh to 
statutory reserve as per the requirement of the Section 29C 
of National Housing Bank Act, 1987.

Dividend

In view of the planned business growth, your Directors 
deem it proper to preserve the resources of the Company 
for its activities and therefore, do not propose any dividend 

for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. The Directors 
also inform that the Company has not declared any interim 
dividend during the year.

Capital Structure

a.	 Authorised Capital

	 During the year under review, the Shareholders of the 
Company in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 
April 8, 2021 approved the increase of the Authorised 
Capital of the Company to INR 290,00,00,000/- 
(Rupees Two Hundred and Ninety Crore only) divided 
into 29,00,00,000 (Twenty Nine Crore) Equity Shares of 
INR 10/- (Rupees Ten) from INR 220,00,00,000 (Rupees 
Two Hundred and Twenty Crore Rupees only) divided 
into 22,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each, to meet 
the Company’s growth requirement and strengthen the 
financial position by generation of resources by way of 
issuing securities. 
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	 Further, the Board of Directors of your Company at 
their Meeting held on September 24, 2021 approved 
an increase in its Authorized Share Capital to INR 
400,00,00,000/- (Rupees Four Hundred Crore only) 
divided into 40,00,00,000 (Forty Crore) Equity Shares of 
INR 10/- (Rupees Ten) each subject to the approval of the 
Shareholders. The Shareholders at their Extra-Ordinary 
General Meeting held on October 4, 2021 approved an 

increase in Authorised Share Capital and alteration of 
Memorandum of Association of the Company.

b.	 Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

	 The issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of 
your Company as at March 31, 2022, stood at  INR 
325,27,11,120/- comprising of 32,52,71,112 equity shares 
INR 10/- each. 

	 The Board of Directors of the Company approved the following allotment during the year on right basis to Shriram City 
Union Finance Limited:

Type of Security Allotment Date No. of Shares Face Value (in INR) Premium (in INR)

Equity Shares May 14, 2021 44444445 10 35
Equity Shares October 13, 2021 66666667 10 35

Capital Adequacy

As required under Housing Finance Companies (NHB) 
Directions, 2010 your Company is presently required to 
maintain a minimum capital adequacy of 15% on a stand-
alone basis. Your Company’s capital adequacy ratio stood at 
30.89% as at March 31, 2022, which provides an adequate 
cushion to withstand business risks and is much above the 
minimum requirement of 15% stipulated by the National 
Housing Bank (“NHB"). In addition, Section 29C of the 
National Housing Bank Act, 1987, requires a Company to 
transfer minimum 20% of its net profit after tax to a reserve 
fund. In accordance with the said provision, your Company 
has transferred 20% of its net profit after tax to the reserve 
fund in the year under review.

Public Deposits

In accordance with the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, 
your Company is a non-deposit taking Housing Finance 
Company and had declared that it has not and shall not 
accept deposit as per the terms and conditions of the 
registration provided by National Housing Bank.

Resource Mobilization

•	 Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) on private 
placement basis: 

	 During the year under review, the Company has issued 
Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures 
(NCDs) aggregating to an amount of INR 21,000 lakh on 

private placement basis. The Company has an aggregate 
outstanding balance of INR 48,324.47 lakh of Secured 
Redeemable NCDs and of INR 5,005.15 lakh Unsecured 
NCDs on Private Placement basis as on March 31, 2022. 
Further, the Company redeemed NCDs of amounting 
to INR 25,500 lakh during the year, issued on private 
placement basis.

	 Your Company has been prompt and regular in making 
payment of principal and interest on the NCDs and the 
same has been reported to BSE Limited, the Trustees 
and Depositories. During the year under review, the 
NCDs were paid / redeemed by your Company on 
their respective due dates and there were no instances 
of any NCDs which have not been claimed by the 
investor or not paid by the Company after the date on 
which the NCDs became due for redemption. Hence, 
the amount of NCDs remaining unclaimed or unpaid 
beyond due date is Nil. The NCDs are listed on BSE 
Limited. The Company has complied with the provisions 
of Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance 
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 and SEBI 
(Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021.

	 The Company being Housing Finance Company is 
exempted from the requirement of creating Debenture 
Redemption Reserve (DRR) in case of privately placed 
debentures. Since, the Debenture issued by the 
Company are through private placement, no DRR has 
been created.
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Directors’ Report (Contd..)

•	 Assignment of Loans

	 During the year under review, your Company has 
securitized / assigned the receivables of housing loan 
and Loan Against Property (LAP) portfolio under direct 
assignment route aggregating to INR 42,649.74 lakh 
and Nil under Pass Through Certificates. The Company 
was appointed as servicer by the Assignee / Trustee to 
collect and receive payments of the receivables from 
the Securitized / Assigned Assets.

•	 Term Loans and other Borrowings

	 As part of its asset liability management, your Company 
strives to diversify the sources of its fund base as to 
achieve suitable maturity schedule and optimise the 

average cost of borrowed funds. During the year under 
review, the Company has availed fresh term loans of 
INR 1,44,500 lakh from various banks and financial 
institutions. As at March 31, 2022, the outstanding 
loan from banks and financial institutions stood at INR  
3,36,337.39  lakh vis-à-vis INR  2,60,193.82  lakh as at 
March 31, 2021.

	 During the year 2021-22, your Company has not raised 
funds by issuing Commercial Paper.

Credit Ratings

During the year under review, CARE Ratings, CRISIL and 
India Ratings reaffirmed its rating for the various borrowing 
programmes of the Company as follows:

Rating Agency Instrument Rating Type Rating(s)

CARE Bank Loans Long Term CARE AA
NCDs Long Term CARE AA
Subordinated Debt Long Term CARE AA
Commercial Papers Short Term CARE A1+

CRISIL Bank Loans Long Term CRISIL AA
NCDs Long Term CRISIL AA

India Ratings Bank Loans Long Term IND AA
NCDs Long Term IND AA

Post announcement of Merger of parent company i.e. 
Shriram City Union Finance Limited with Shriram Transport 
Finance Limited, India Rating has upgraded the outlook 
from stable to Positive with reaffirming the AA Rating. CRISIL 
and CARE Rating has placed on rating watch with Positive 
implications while reaffirming the AA Rating.

Following is the summary of rating action happened during 
the year: 

•	 India Ratings Revises Outlook on December 20,2021 to 
“Positive” from Stable ; Affirms rating ‘IND AA’

•	 CARE Ratings Placed on Credit watch with Positive 
Implications on December 17,2021 ; Affirms rating ‘CARE 
AA’ ; and

•	 CRISIL Ratings Placed on Rating watch with Positive 
Implications on December 17, 2021 ; Affirms rating 
‘CRISIL AA’.

Presently, your Company has AA rating from all three leading 
rating agencies viz. CRISIL, India Ratings and CARE.

The revision in the outlook during the year followed the 
revision in the outlook of the parent company i.e. Shriram 
City Union Finance Limited.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring 
compliance with the provisions of Section 134(1)(c) read with 
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the preparation 
of annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022 and 
states that:

a.	 in preparation of the annual financial statements for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the applicable 
Accounting Standards have been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures, if 
any;
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b.	 the Directors have selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgements 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company at the end of the financial year and of the 
Profit and Loss of the Company for that period; 

c.	 the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d.	 the Directors have ensured preparation of Annual 
Accounts on a going concerns basis;

e.	 the Directors have laid down internal controls to be 
followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively; and

f.	 the Directors have revised and reviewed proper 
systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate 
and operating effectively.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

•	 Board of Directors

	 Your Company has four Directors consisting of two Non-
Executive Independent Directors, one Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director and one Managing Director 
& CEO as Executive Director as on the date of adoption 
of this report.

	 Mr. Venkataraman Murali was appointed as an 
Independent Non-Executive Director w.e.f. May 29, 2014 
for a term of 5 years. Consequent upon the expiration of 
first term, on recommendation of the Board of Directors, 
shareholders at their Annual General Meeting (AGM) 
held on July 19, 2019, re-appointed him for his second 
term of 5 years to hold office upto March 31, 2024.

	 Ms. Lakshminarayanan Priyadarshini has been appointed 
as an Additional Director by the Board of Directors of the 
Company with effect from October 16, 2018 subject to 
the shareholders’ approval. Shareholders at their AGM 
held on July 19, 2019, appointed Ms. Priyadarshini as 
Independent Director for a term of 5 years with effect 
from her appointment as an Additional Independent 

Director by the Board i.e. with effect from October 16, 
2018 upto October 15, 2023.

	 During the year, there were no changes in composition 
of the Board of Directors of your Company.

	 Pursuant to Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Mr. Yalamati Srinivasa Chakravarti (DIN: 00052308), 
Non- Executive Director, is liable to retire by rotation at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
He being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment. 
The Board recommends his reappointment to the 
members of the Company.

	 All the directors of the Corporation have confirmed 
that they satisfy the fit and proper criteria as prescribed 
under the applicable regulations and that they are not 
disqualified from being appointed as directors in terms 
of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

•	 Key Managerial Personnel

	 Mr. Subramanian Jambunathan, Managing Director & 
CEO, Mr. Gauri Shankar Agarwal, Chief Financial Officer 
were the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
as on March 31, 2022. Ms. Bhavita Ashiyani, Company 
Secretary and the Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company resigned from the services with effect from 
January 31, 2022. 

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received declarations from independent 
directors that they meet the criteria for independence as 
provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of 
the Company have the highest standards of integrity and 
possess requisite expertise and experience required to full 
their duties as Independent Directors.

In term of Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qulaification 
of Directors) Rules, 2014, Independent Directors of the 
Company have confirmed that they have registered with the 
databank maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate 
Affairs (“IICA”). 

All the Independent Directors have complied with the code 
of conduct as prescribed in Schedule IV of the Companies 
Act, 2013.
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Annual Evaluation of the Board

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Independent Directors met separately to 
review the performance of Non-Independent Directors, 
Chairperson of the Company, the Board as a whole 
and the flow of information between the Board and the 
management. The Board completed the annual evaluation 
of its own performance, the individual Directors as well as 
an evaluation of the working of all Board Committees. In a 
separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance 
of non-independent Directors and the performance of the 
Board as a whole were evaluated.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the 
performance of the individual directors based on their 
knowledge, level of preparation and effective participation 
in meetings, understanding of their roles as directors, etc.

Auditors and Auditor’s Report

M/s.T R Chadha & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants 
(Registration No. 006711N/N500028) were appointed as 
the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the Extra-Ordinary 
General Meeting (“EGM”) held on August 20, 2021.

Audit Report issued by M/s. T R Chadha & Co. LLP, Chartered 
Accountants., Statutory Auditors of the Company does not 
contain any qualifications or observations or remarks in their 
Report.

As per Section 134(3)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Board states that during the year under review, there are no 
adverse comments or disqualifications made by the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company, during the course of their audit.

The term of M/s. T R Chadha & Co. LLP., Statutory Auditors of 
the Company would expire in the forthcoming 12th Annual 
General Meeting. 

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) issued guidelines on 
appointment of statutory auditor (s) by Non-Banking 
Financial Companies (NBFCs)/ Housing Finance Companies 
(HFCs)/ Banks vide Circular RBI/2021-22/25 Ref. No. DoS. 
CD.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021 
(‘Circular’/’Guidelines’). RBI had given flexibility to HFCs  to 
adopt these Guidelines from H2 (second half) of the Financial 
Year 2021- 22 in order to ensure that there is no disruption. 

The term of M/s Pijush Gupta & Co. ended in the 11th Annual 
General Meeting.  The Audit Committee and the Board of 

Directors thereafter identified a suitable firm meeting the 
prescribed criteria  in compliance with RBI Circular before 
the second half of the financial year 2021-22 and M/s. T R 
Chadha & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 
006711N/N500028) were appointed as Statutory Auditors 
in Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 
August 10, 2021. 

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors 

During the year under review, neither the statutory auditors 
nor the secretarial auditor has reported to the Audit and 
Risk Management Committee, under Section 143 (12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud committed 
against the Company by its officers or employees, the details 
of which would need to be mentioned in the Board’s report.

Internal Financial Control Systems

Your Company has an adequate system of internal control 
procedures which commensurate with the size and nature of 
business. Detailed procedural manuals are in place to ensure 
that all the assets are safeguarded, protected against loss 
and all transactions are authorized, recorded and reported 
correctly. The internal control systems of the Company 
are monitored and evaluated by internal auditors and their 
audit reports are periodically reviewed by the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee of the Board. The observations and 
comments of the Audit and Risk Management Committee 
are being placed before the Board on a periodic basis.

Further, the Company has policies and procedures in 
place for Internal Financial Control ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information.

Accounting Treatment

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared 
in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards as per 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and other provisions of the Act. The details of the 
accounting treatment followed during the financial year are 
mentioned in Notes to Financial Statement.

Directors’ Report (Contd..)
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Debenture Trustees

1)	 Catalyst Trusteeship Limited 
	 CIN: U74999PN1997PLC110262
	 Address: GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), 

Paud Road, Pune - 411 038 
	 Telephone: +91 (020) 2528 0081
	 Fax: +91 (020) 2528 0275 E-mail: dt@ctltrustee.com
	 Website: www.catalysttrustee.com

2)	 Beacon Trusteeship Limited
	 CIN: U74999MH2015PLC271288
	 Address: 4C & D Siddhivinayak Chambers, Gandhi Nagar, 

Opp MIG Cricket Club, Bandra (East) Mumbai Mumbai 
City MH 400051

	 Telephone: +91 (022) 26558759
	 E-mail: compliance1@beacontrustee.co.in
	 Website: https://beacontrustee.co.in/

Material changes and commitments affecting the 
financial position of the Company

No material changes and commitments affecting the 
financial position of the Company occurred during and at 
end of the financial year to which these financial statements 
relate on the date of this report.

Significant and Material Orders passed by Regulators 
or Court

There are no material order passed by Regulators / Courts, 
which would impact the going concern status of the 
Company and its future operations.

Statutory & Regulatory Compliance

The Company has complied with the applicable statutory 
provisions including inter-alia the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rules made thereunder, the Income-tax Act, 1961, Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, The Housing 
Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010, Non-Banking 
Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve 
Bank) Directions, 2021  and all other various circulars, 
notifications, directions and guidelines issued by NHB from 
time to time and all other laws as may be applicable to the 
Company. The Company has finalized its financial statements 
for the year under review as per the Accounting standards 
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with 
Related Parties

The Policy on Related Party Transactions is available on the 
Company’s website at its web link i.e. https://shriramhousing.
in/our-policies-and-corporate-governance and also 
enclosed as Annexure - I.

All Related Party Transactions (RPTs) that were entered 
during the financial year were in the ordinary course of 
business of the Company and were on arm’s length basis. 
The prescribed format AOC-2 is attached as Annexure – II 
pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) read with Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to be reported under 
Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. There were no 
materially significant related party transactions entered in 
by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel or other persons which may have potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company. The transactions 
with related parties of the Company are in the ordinary 
course of business on arm’s length basis. 

All such Related Party Transactions are placed before the 
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board for 
approval / ratification / review, wherever applicable. Your 
Directors draw attention of the Members to Note 43 to the 
financial statement which sets out related party disclosures.

The non-executive directors of the Company do not have any 
pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company or 
its other Directors, Senior Management, holding company 
or associate company(ies), other than in the normal course 
of business.

Policy on appointment and remuneration of 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management employees

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board 
has devised a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and other Senior Management 
Employees and their remuneration. The Committee has 
formulated the criteria for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes and independence of a Director, which has been 
put up on the Company’s website at https://shriramhousing.
in/our-policies-and-corporate-governance
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Employee Remuneration

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as 
required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014 are 
provided in Annexure - III.

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules 2014, as amended from time to time a statement 
showing the names and other particulars of the employees 
drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the 
said rules are provided in Annexure - III.

Employees’ Stock Option Scheme

Your Company has formulated and implemented “Shriram 
Housing Finance Limited – Employee’s Stock Option 
Scheme 2016” (“SHFL ESOP Scheme 2016”) and “Shriram 
Housing Finance Limited – Employee’s Stock Option 
Scheme 2013” (“SHFL ESOP Scheme 2013”) in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rules made thereunder and other applicable provisions.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board, 
inter-alia administers and monitors the Employees’ Stock 
Option Schemes of the Company in accordance with the 
provisions under Section 62(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Share Capital 
and Debentures) Rules, 2014. The applicable disclosures 
as stipulated under the Rule 12 of the Companies (Share 
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 as at March 31, 2022 
are provided in Annexure - IV to this Report. The Schemes 
have been implemented in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable rules and 
guidelines and the resolution passed by the Shareholders.

Compliance with provisions of Sexual Harassment 
of women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company is committed to uphold and maintain the 
dignity of all it’s employees including women employees 
and it has a policy which provides for protection against 
sexual harassment of women at work place and redressal 
of such complaints through the active Internal Complaint 
Committee to redress any complaints received in timely and 
systematic manner. During the year under review, no such 
complaints were received.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments 
made under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

As the Company is a housing finance company, the disclosure 
regarding particulars of the loans made, guarantee given 
and security provided in the ordinary course of business 
are exempted under the provisions of Section 186(11) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, 
Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo 

•	 Conservation of energy

	 The Company’s operations call for nominal energy 
consumption cost and there are no major areas where 
conservation measures could be applied on. However, 
the Company is making continuous efforts to conserve 
energy and optimize energy consumption practicable 
by economizing the use of power.

•	 Technology Absorption

	 The Company has always been using the latest 
technology available in the industry. Accordingly, efforts 
are made to maintain and develop the quality of the 
product to meet the expectation of market.

•	 Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outflow

	 a.	 Foreign Exchange earnings - Nil

	 b.	 Foreign Exchange outgo - Nil

Corporate Governance

Your Company has complied with all the applicable 
provisions of the Housing Finance Companies - Corporate 
Governance (NHB) Directions, 2016 (NHB Directions) issued 
by National Housing Bank vide its notification no. NHB.
HFC.CG-DIR.1/ MD&CEO/2016 dated February 9, 2017 and 
the Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – 
Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 
issued by the Reserve bank of India.

The Company sees corporate governance standard 
beyond the compliance of regulatory norms. Transparency, 
fairness, integrity, effective internal controls at each level 
of operations in each business transactions, adequate and 
prompt disclosure to respective shareholders are the key 
ingredients to the corporate governance. We believe that to 
ensure highest degree of corporate governance, an active, 
well informed and independent Board is a must.

Directors’ Report (Contd..)
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The Board has constituted various Committees of Board of 
Directors and/or officers those were mandated under the 
Companies Act, 2013, by National Housing Bank through 
its various Policy Circulars / Directions and those were 
warranted for smooth operation of the Company. The 
detailed report on Corporate Governance is enclosed in this 
Annual Report.

Secretarial Audit

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors 
has appointed M/s. P. Sriram, Practicing Company Secretaries, 
to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. There is 
no qualification, reservation or adverse remark made in their 
Secretarial Audit Report. The Audit Report of the Secretarial in 
MR - 3 is attached as Annexure - VI.

As per Section 134(3)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Board states that during the year under review, there are 
no adverse comments or disqualifications made by the 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company, during the course of 
their audit.

Secretarial Standards

During the year under review, the Company has complied 
with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by The 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Maintenance of Cost Records

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of 
cost records, for any of the products of the Company, under 
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Annual Return

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 
2013, an extract of the Annual Return in the form MGT - 9 is 
annexed to this report as Annexure - VII.

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the annual 
return in the prescribed form is available at https://
shriramhousing.in/annual-returns. 

Risk Management Framework

Your Company is in the business of lending to individuals 
and non-individual clients whether on secured or 
unsecured basis. The Company faces various risks in its 
scale of operations. The Company has in place a Risk 
Management framework so that risks that the Company 
faces are identified, controlled and priced in a manner that 
the Company can continue its operations in a profitable 
and sustainable manner. The Company places significant 
emphasis on the adequacy of management of risk and the 
risk management framework is set to outline the approach 
towards risk and the process of oversight and management 
of the risks. Sound risk management systems would enable 
the Company to take risks knowingly, reduce risks where 
appropriate and strive to prepare for a future, which by its 
nature cannot be predicted with absolute certainty. Risk 
Management is a discipline at the core of our operations 
and encompasses all activities that affect its risk profile. 
The Risk management framework seeks to lay down the 
broad contours under which risks would be managed and 
controlled. Your Company follows the best practice for 
management of credit risk, market risk and operational risk 
and has put in place a comprehensive Risk Management 
Policy envisaging a robust risk management programme.

Vigil Mechanism

In compliance with the provisions of the Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder, 
the Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy is formulated 
as part of the Vigil Mechanism established by the Company 
for Directors and Employees to report genuine concerns, to 
provide a secure environment and to encourage employees 
to report unethical, unlawful or improper practices, acts 
or activities in the Company and to prohibit managerial 
personnel from taking any adverse personnel action against 
those employees who report such practices in good faith. 
The Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy aims to 
provide a channel to the Directors and employees to report 
genuine concerns and grievances about victimization, 
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud, violation of 
the Codes of Conduct or policy. This Policy provides for 
adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors and 
employees and also provides direct access to the Chairman 
of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. The Whistle 
Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism is uploaded on the website 
of the Company at www.shriramhousing.in.
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Human Resource Development

In February 2022, Shriram Housing Finance Ltd was 
recognized and certified as a ‘Great Place to Work®’ by 
the Great Place to Work® Institute, the global authority 
on workplace culture. The certification was based on the 
response submitted by our employees to their survey 
covering aspects of our culture, mission, and leadership. 
It is a moment of great pride for all our stakeholders as it 
reinforces their continued commitment and contributions in 
making SHFL an formidable player in its space. 

The Great Place to Work® Trust Index© Employee Survey 
score for our organization was considerably higher even when 
compared with some of the other reputed organizations, 
in our industry. The Great Place to Work Certification™ for 
SHFL is both an indication and an endorsement of a High 
Trust – High Performance Culture in our organization, and 
earning this distinction makes us one of the ‘best companies 
to work’ for in the country.

The assessment was a fairly intense process wherein the 
evaluation, based on what our employees said about their 
daily experiences within the organization, as well as their 
thoughts on the company’s innovation, values, and the 
effectiveness of their leaders; followed up by a detailed audit 
of our culture and people practices by the GPTW Institute, 
were taken into account before the results were arrived at. 

As a result-focused and people-oriented organization, 
SHFL remains honoured to earn this distinction in the very 
first year of its participation. We shall continue to invest in 
providing a positive workplace environment as part of our 
strategy to become an ‘Employer of Choice’. The values we 
stand for are at the very core of everything we do, and the 
success we have had till date are a reflection of these values 
and principles, that we hold closely. We have a very exciting 
ambition and we have all worked hard to build a unique 
caring, compassionate and performance driven culture.

While this certification reinforces and strengthen sour resolve 
of ‘placing people at the heart of our business’, we remain 
committed to raise this bar even higher in the years to come. 

We appreciate the support of our employees, leaders and 
our stakeholders in helping us building a robust enterprise 
and making SHFL a formidable brand to reckon with.  

Further, with the rapid increase in business and expansion 
of branch network across multiple geographies, the focus 
of the Human Resource function at SHFL remained on 
identification, attraction and retention of key talent, in line 
with the organization’s priorities. 

As part of our Employee First philosophy and in order to 
manage the challenges arising from the COVID-19 crisis, 
the Human Resource team at SHFL continued to play a vital 
role in ensuring the health and safety of our workforce, by 
implementing strict safety protocols for our employees 
at our branches/offices. Additionally, during the year SHFL 
introduced the Compassionate Benevolent Scheme to 
provide financial support to the family of any deceased 
employee, on account of any non-accidental reasons. This 
is over and above the Group Term Life Insurance cover and 
Employee Deposit Linked Insurance benefits provided to 
the employees. As a responsible corporate citizen, SHFL 
organized multiple Covid vaccination camps across various 
cities to provide free vaccination doses, not only to its 
employees and their family members, but also for the benefit 
of the general public living in these cities.
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Annexure - I
Related Party Transactions (RPT) Policy
1.	 Preamble

	 The Related Party (“RP”) relationships are normal in 
business and accordingly the transactions with RPs 
may arise in the normal course of business. A policy on 
Related Party Transaction (“RPT”) is required in order to 
bring in a process and transparency in such transactions. 
Shriram Housing Finance Limited (the “Company”) 
truly believes in it. Thus, the Board of Directors of 
the Company (“Board”) has formulated this policy as 
approved by it’s Committee with regard to RPTs.

2.	 Purpose

	 This Related Party Transactions Policy (the “Policy”) is 
to regulate transactions between the Company and 
its RPs based on the laws and regulations applicable 
to the Company. In order to bring in transparency and 
appropriate disclosure of Related Party Transactions 
(“RPT/s”) and to comply with the Companies Act, 2013 
(the “Act”) and Rules made there under and applicable 
Accounting Standards, this Policy has been formulated 
by the Committee. This Policy shall become effective 
from the date of its adoption by the Board of the 
Company. It is intended to have required approval and 
reporting of transactions between the Company and its 
RPs. Such transactions are appropriate, only if, they are 
in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders.

3.	 Definitions

	 Authorized Official: Chief Financial Officer / Company 
Secretary of the Company or any other officer authorized 
by the Committee.

	 Committee: Audit and Risk Management Committee 
constituted by the Board.

	 Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”): As defined under 
section 2(51) of the Act and Rules made there under.

	 Material Related Party Transaction (“MRPT”): A Related 
Party Transaction / Contract to be entered into individually 
or taken together with previous RPTs during a financial 
year, exceeds ten percent of the annual consolidated 
turnover of the Company as per last audited financial 
statements of the Company as prescribed in Rule 15(3) of 
the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 
2014, as amended, read with Section 188 of the Act.

	 Relatives: As defined under section 2(77) of the Act and 
Rules made thereunder.

	 Related Party Transactions (“RPT”): shall mean all 
transactions between the Company on one hand and 
one or more related parties on the other hand including 
contracts, arrangements and transactions as envisaged 
in Section 188(1) of the Act and/or applicable Accounting 
Standards issued by the ICAI.

	 Related Party (“RP”): As defined under section 2(76) of 
the Act or applicable Ind AS 24.

	 Transaction: Shall include a single transaction or a 
group of transactions in a contract or agreement with 
related party.

4.	 Applicability

	 This Policy shall be applicable to the Company, it’s 
employees, executives, directors and KMPs of the 
Company, who are a party to RPTs with the Company 
and shall apply to all the RPTs. Any amendment to this 
shall be approved by the Committee and shall have 
effect from the date of such approval or from such date 
as notified in amendment. In case of any conflict of any 
provision of this Policy with any applicable regulation or 
Act, the provision of such regulation or Act shall prevail 
over such provision of this Policy.

5.	 Review of the RPTs

	 RPTs details shall be referred to the Meeting of the 
Committee for review and approval of the Committee. 
Any member of the Committee having any interest in 
any RPT will state his/her interest and shall abstain from 
discussion and voting on the approval of the RPT. Before 
approving the RPT, the Committee shall among other 
matters consider the following factors to the extent 
relevant to the RPT with respect to the Company’s 
nature, size, fairness of the terms, ordinary course of 
business, arm’s length pricing, pricing method followed, 
other commercial terms, repetitive nature, compelling 
business reasons to enter into, alternatives, effect on 
the independence of an independent director, potential 
reputational risk involved, whether it was pre- approved 
and if not, the reason for not such pre-approval, if 
subsequent ratification would be detrimental, any 
conflicting situation that would arise for any director or 
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KMP due to this, the overall financial position of the RP 
and the nature of Relation.

	 In determining anything in the Policy, the Committee 
can take advice of any professional or consultant and 
may proceed with the advice or opinion given by such 
professional or consultant. If the Committee is not able 
to decide on any matter, it may refer to the Board for it’s 
approval.

6.	 Approval of RPTs

	 The Committee, after the review and on being satisfied 
about the RPT, shall approve the RPT with or without 
any modification or shall reject the RPT or may refer it 
for further information as it may deem fit or may refer 
to the Board for its approval. If the Board in any case 
elects to review any such matter or it is mandatory 
under any law for Board to approve the RPT, then the 
considerations set forth above shall apply to the Board’s 
review and approval of the matter. All RPTs shall require 
pre-approval of the Committee. All Material RPTs shall 
require approval of the shareholders through special 
resolution and the RPs shall abstain from voting on such 
resolutions whether the entity is a RP to the particular 
transaction or not. Any member of the Committee 
having any interest in any RPT will state his/her interest 
and shall abstain from discussion and voting on the 
approval of the RPT.

7.	 Omnibus Approval

	 The Committee may grant omnibus approval for 
proposed foreseen RPTs on being satisfied about the 
followings:

	 a.	 The transactions are repetitive in nature;

	 b.	 The transaction is in the interest of the Company;

	 c.	 The need of the omnibus approval;

	 d.	 The transaction is in line with this Policy;

	 e.	 The Committee shall review such RPTs on quarterly 
basis; and

	 f.	 Such omnibus approval shall be valid for a period of 
one year from the date of approval and shall require 
fresh approval thereafter.

	 While granting omnibus approval for proposed foreseen 
RPTs, the Committee shall at least specify in it’s approval 
the name of the RP, nature of RPT, period of RPT, RPT 
amount, indicative base price, contract price, reason 
for variation in price. While granting omnibus approval 
of unforeseen RPTs or where the above said details are 
not available, the value of such RPTs shall not exceed 
Rupees One Crore per transaction.

8.	 RPTs entered into without approval

	 If a RPT is entered into by the Company without 
requisite approval required under this Policy, the same 
shall be evaluated and reviewed by the Committee. 
After such evaluation and review, the Committee may 
ratify, revise, modify, waive procedural requirements 
under this Policy, terminate, recommend for approval of 
the shareholders or Board the RPT.

9.	 Exceptions

	 The following RPTs shall not require approval of the 
Committee or Board or Shareholders:

	 a.	 Remuneration or Compensation to Director or KMP 
in connection with his / her duties to the Company 
or any of its subsidiaries or associates.

	 b.	 Reimbursement of expenses incurred in the ordinary 
course of duties or business.

	 c.	 Any transaction arising to the RP from ownership of 
securities issued / held by him / her in the Company 
and all holders of such securities receive the similar 
benefits pro rata as the RP.

	 d.	 Transactions entered into between the Company 
and it’s wholly owned subsidiary, whose accounts 
are consolidated with the Company and placed 
before the shareholders at general meeting for 
approval.

10.	Disclosure

	 This Policy shall be disclosed on its website and also in 
Annual Report of the Company.
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Annexure - II
Form AOC-2
[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred 
to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under fourth proviso thereto

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

a.	 Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

N.A.

b.	 Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions
c.	 Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions
d.	 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any
e.	 Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions
f.	 Date(s) of approval by the Board
g.	 Amount paid as advances, if any
h.	 Date on which (a) the requisite resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first 

proviso to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

a.	 Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

Refer below 
note

b.	 Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions
c.	 Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions
d.	 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any
e.	 Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any
f.	 Amount paid as advances, if any

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Note: The details of transaction with related party are disclosed in Note 43 of Notes to the Financial Statement. All the 
transactions occurred during FY 2021-22 with related parties referred to in Section 188 of the Act, were on arm’s length basis 
in ordinary course of business with requisite approval of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and the Board.

Corporate Overview Financial Statements

Shriram Housing Finance Limited 49

Statutory Reports



Annexure - III
Disclosure under Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Sr. 
No.

Requirements Disclosure

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to 
the median remuneration of the employees of the 
Company for the financial year

Mr. Subramanian Jambunathan, Managing Director 
& CEO

1:36

Mr. Yalamati Srinivasa Chakravarti, Non-Executive 
Director, Non-Independent Director

-

Mr. Venkataraman Murali, Independent Director -
Ms. Lakshminarayanan Priyadarshini, Independent 
Director

-

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each 
director,  Chief  Financial  Officer,  Chief  Executive 
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the 
financial year

Directors
Mr. Subramanian Jambunathan, Managing Director 
& CEO

10%

Mr. Yalamati Srinivasa Chakravarti, Non-Executive 
Director, Non-Independent Director

-

Mr. Venkataraman Murali, Independent Director -
Ms. Lakshminarayanan Priyadarshini, Independent 
Director

-

KMP other than Directors
Mr. Gauri Shankar Agarwal, Chief Financial Officer 13%
Ms. Bhavita Ashiyani, Company Secretary (up till 
31.02.2022) 

15%

3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration 
of employees in the financial year

The median remuneration of the employees in the financial 
year was increased by 10%. The calculation of percentage 
increase in median remuneration is done based on 
comparable employees. For this, the employees who were 
not eligible for any increment have been excluded.

4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of 
Company

The Company had 787 employees on the rolls as on March 
31, 2022

5. Average percentile increase already made in the 
salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison 
with  the  percentile  increase  in  the  managerial 
remuneration  and  justification  thereof  and  point 
out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration

The average increase in remuneration of employees was 
11% and the average increase in the remuneration of the 
Managerial personnel was 13%. There were no exceptional 
circumstances for increasing the managerial remuneration.

6. Affirmation  that  the  remuneration  is  as  per  the 
remuneration policy of the Company

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the 
Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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Annexure - IV
Disclosure pursuant to the provisions under Section 62(1) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(9) of the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 as at March 31, 2022 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
SHFL ESOP Scheme

2016

SHFL ESOP Scheme

2013

a) Options Granted 15,70,000 -
b) Options vested 4,13,333 4,35,000
c) Options exercised - -
d) The total number of shares arising as a result of exercise 

of option
- -

e) Options lapsed and cancelled 45,000 -
f) The Exercise price INR 35/- INR 10/-
g) Variation of terms of options - -
h) Money realized by exercise of options - -
i) Total number of options in force 27,65,000 30,60,000
j) Employee wise details of options granted to:

i) Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Gauri Shankar 
Agarwal, Chief Financial 

Officer

Mr. Subramanian 
Jambunathan, Managing 

Director & CEO
ii) �Any other employee who receives a grant of option in 

any one year of option amounting to 5% or more of 
option granted during that year

- -

iii) �Identified employees who were granted option, 
during any one year, equal to or exceeding 1% of the 
issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and 
conversions) of the Company at the time of grant 

- Mr. Subramanian 
Jambunathan, Managing 

Director & CEO
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Annexure - V
Annual Report on CSR Activities
1.	 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

	 The Shriram Group to which the Company, Shriram Housing Finance Limited (hereinafter called as “SHFL”) belongs to, over 
the years, as part of its CSR activities, initiated / contributed towards several social welfare projects aimed at benefitting 
the “Aam Aadmi”. Such efforts has been focused on providing education and health care facilities to the economically 
weaker / underprivileged section of the society. SHFL strongly believes that it can contribute to the common cause of the 
society by bring the same level of competence and efficiency in the management and administration of its CSR activities 
with which it handles its corporate activities. The CSR Policy adopted by the Company may be referred to, at the website 
link i.e. https://shriramhousing.in/our-policies-and-corporate-governance.

2.	 Composition of CSR Committee:

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director
Designation / Nature of 
Directorship

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

held during the year

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

attended during the year

1. Ms. Lakshminarayanan 
Priyadarshini

Independent Director, 
Chairperson

2 2

2. Mr. Srinivasa Chakravarti 
Yalamati

Non-executive Director, 
Member

2 2

3. Mr. Subramanian 
Jambunathan 

Managing Director & 
CEO, Member

2 2

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year

Amount Unspent (in Rupees)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5)

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

11725000 N.A. N.A N.A N.A

3.	 Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are 
disclosed on the website of the Company. - https://shriramhousing.in/our-policies-and-corporate-governance  

4.	 Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report) – N.A.

5.	 Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any – N.A.

6.	 Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) – INR 5862.5 Lakh

7.	 (a)	 Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): INR 117.25 Lakh

	 (b)	 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years – N.A.

	 (c)	 Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any - Nil

	 (d)	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) – INR 117.25 Lakh

8.	 (a)	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

		  Note: The unspent amount will be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII, within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year, in 
accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 read with the CSR Amendment Rules.
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Sr. 
No.

Name 
of the 
Project

Item from 
the list of 
activities in 
Schedule 
VII to the 
Act.

Local 
area 
(Yes/
No)

Location of the 
project

Project 
duration

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project 

(in J)

Amount 
spent 
in the 

current 
financial 

Year  
(in J)

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account for 

the project as 
per Section 
135(6) in J)

Mode of 
Implementation - 

Direct (Yes/No)

Mode of Implementation - 
Through Implementing Agency

State District Name
CSR 

Registration 
number

1 Single 
Teacher 
School

Promoting 
Health 
Care and 
Sanitation 
and 
Education

Yes Tamil 
Nadu

Remote- 
Villages 
in Tamil 

Nadu

1 year 2500000 2500000 N.A No Swami 
Vivekananda 

Rural 
Development 

Society

CSR00001905

Sr. 

No.
Name of the Project

Item from the 

list of activities 

in schedule VII 

to the Act

Local 

area 

(Yes / 

No)

Location of the project
Amount 

spent 

for the 

project 

(in Lakh)

Mode of 

implementation 

- Direct (Yes 

/ No)

Mode of implementation - 

Through implementing agency

State District Name

CSR 

registration 

number*

1. Construction of 50 

toilets cum bathrooms 

to the poorest of the 

poor in the remote 

villages by Single 

Teacher School under 

Swachh Bharat Abhyan 

Programme Project

Promoting 

health care and 

sanitation

Yes Tamil Nadu Tiruvallur, 

and Ranipet

25.00 No Swami 

Vivekananda 

Rural 

Development 

Society

CSR00001905

2. Treatment to cancer 

ill patients including 

children’s by Sparsh 

Hospice

Promoting 

health care 

including 

preventive health 

care

Yes Telangana Hyderabad 20.00 No Rotary Club of 

Banjara Hills 

Charitable 

Trust

CS050R00002

3. The Red Project 

(stiching of cloth 

pads), Kabeel (knitting 

association of women), 

Virtual/Online 

programs for Holistic 

Health Awareness 

Promoting 

health care 

and education 

including special 

education

Yes PAN-India 5.00 No Zemyna 

Foundation

CSR00013851

4. Install and Maintain 

Water treatment plants

Safe Drinking 

Water

Yes Nellore AP and 

Telangana

5.00 No Mounika 

Charitable 

Foundation

CSR00015318

5. Purchase of SMART 

Boards

Promoting 

Education 

including Special 

education

Yes Thiruneermalai Chennai 9.94 No Shriram 

Foundation

CSR00010975

6. Distribution of kit 

contains face mask, 

sanitisers, hand gloves, 

etc. for COVID-19 

precautions

Promoting 

health care 

including 

preventive health 

care

Yes Pan-India 27.31 Yes - N.A.

	 (b)	 Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

	 (c)	 Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
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	 (d)	 Amount spent in Administrative Overheads – Nil

	 (e)	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable – N.A.

	 (f)	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) – INR 117.25 Lakh

	 (g)	 Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sr. 
No.

Particular Amount (in Lakh)

1. Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) 117.25 
2. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 117.25
3. Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] -
4. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years, if any
-

5. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] -

Sr. 
No.

Preceding 
Financial Year

Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR 
Account under 
section 135 (6)  

(in J)

Amount spent 
in the reporting 

Financial Year  
(in Lakh)

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 

section 135(6), if any

Amount remaining 
to be spent in 

succeeding 
financial years.  

(in J)
Name of 
the Fund

Amount 
(in J.

Date of 
transfer

1. 2020-21 10.87 lakh 10.87 PM Care 
Fund

10,87,200 16-09-
2021

Refer Note
2. 2019-20 Refer Note 30.09

Refer Note
3. 2018-19 Refer Note 83.42

9.	 (a)	 Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

	 Note - Not Applicable, as the concept of transfer of unspent funds has been introduced in the CSR Amendment Rules, relevant from fiscal 2021.

	 (b)	 Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): Nil

10.	 In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year – N.A.

11.	 Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5): 

Ms. Lakshminarayanan Priyadarshini	 Mr. Subramanian Jambunathan	
Chairperson CSR Committee	 Managing Director & CEO	

April 25, 2022
Srinagar
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Annexure - VI
Form No.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED March 31, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Managerial 
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Shriram Housing Finance Limited
123, Angappa Naicken Street,
Chennai – 600 001

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of 
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Shriram Housing Finance Limited 
(hereinafter called the “Company”). I had verified the required 
records, information and other details through virtual data 
sharing, i.e. via emails and other access tools in adherence 
with non-disclosure / confidentiality norms. Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of Company’s  books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives 
during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that 
in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended March 31, 2022 complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject 
to the reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 according to the 
provisions of:

1)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the Rules made 
thereunder ;

2)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) 
and the Rules made thereunder;

3)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 
Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules 
and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment;

5)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

	 (a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

	 (b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 

	 (c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulation, 2015 

6)	 The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 including Housing 
Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2014.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following:

(i)	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India; and

(ii)	 The Debt Listing Agreements entered into by the 
Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted 
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
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Directors and Independent Directors. There were no 
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during 
the period under review.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the 
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting.

All decisions were carried out with unanimous approval of 
the Board and there was no instance of dissent voting by any 
member during the period under review. 

I have examined the systems and processes established 
by the Company to ensure the compliance with general 
laws including Labour Laws, Employees Provident Funds 
Act, Employees State Insurance Act & other State Laws, 
considering and relying upon representations made by the 
Company and its Officers for systems and mechanisms 
formed by the Company for compliance under these laws 
and other applicable sector specific Acts, Laws, Rules and 
Regulations applicable to the Company and its observance 
by them. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and 
processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

I further report that apart from the instances mentioned 
hereunder, there were no specific events / actions having 
major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the 
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc.,

(i)	 Issuance and allotment of Non-Convertible Debentures 
for an aggregate amount of H 10 Crores through Private 
Placement on 03.05.2021.

(ii)	 Issuance and allotment of Non-Convertible Debentures 
for an aggregate amount of H 100 Crores through Private 
Placement on November 30, 2021.

(iii)	 Issuance and allotment of Non-Convertible Debentures 
for an aggregate amount of H 100 Crores through Private 
Placement on March 4, 2022.

(iv)	 During the period under review, the Shriram City 
Union Finance Limited (“SCUF”), holding company of 
Shriram Housing Finance Limited (the “Company”) has 
considered a proposal to merge with Shriram Transport 
Finance Company Limited (“STFC”) in their meeting 
held on December 13, 2021, subject to regulatory and 
shareholders’ approval.

	 Pursuant to the said merger, shareholding and 
promoter of the Company would undergo change and 
accordingly, the control of the Company would also be 
changed. Consequences of the said merger would be, 
the merged entity i.e. STFC would become the holding 
company of Shriram Housing Finance Limited. 

	 In pursuant to Chapter VIII on Acquisition / Transfer of 
Control of the Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial 
Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2021 (“RBI Directions”), the Company had 
made an application to Reserve Bank of India for Prior 
Approval for Said Scheme.

Signature:

(P. Sriram)
P. Sriram & Associates

FCS No. 4862/CP No: 3310
Place:  Chennai 	 UDIN: F004862C000198286
Date: April 16, 2022	 PEER REVIEW NO: S2011TN155200
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Annexure A

To,
The Members,
Shriram Housing Finance Limited

My report of even date is to be read along with this supplementary testimony.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 I have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, the Company had followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.	 Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events, etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company or of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Signature:

(P. Sriram)
P. Sriram & Associates

FCS No. 4862/CP No: 3310
Place:  Chennai 	 UDIN: F004862C000198286
Date: April 16, 2022 	 PEER REVIEW NO: S2011TN155200

Annual Report 2021-2258



Annexure - VII
Form No. MGT - 9
Extract of Annual Return
As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2022
[Pursuant to section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014]

I.	 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN U65929TN2010PLC078004
ii) Registration Date November 9, 2010
iii) Name of the Company Shriram Housing Finance Limited
iv) Category/Sub- Category of the Company Company Limited by Shares / Indian Non-Government 

Company
v) Address of the Registered Office and contact 

details
123, Angappa Naicken Street, Chennai – 600 001 Contact 
No. 044 - 2534 1431

vi) Whether listed company No (Debt Listed Company)
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar 

and Transfer Agent, if any
Shriram Insight Share Brokers Limited

Mookambika Complex, 4th Floor, 4 Lady Desikachary Road, 
Mylapore, Chennai – 600 004

Integrated Registry Management Services Private Limited 

2nd Floor, Kences Towers, No. 1 Ramakrishna Street, North 
Usman Road T Nagar, Chennai – 600 017

II.	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

	 All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated 

Sr. 
No.

Name and Description of main products / services
NIC Code of the 

Product / Service

% to total 
turnover of the 

Company

1 Interest Income on Loans 65922 81.27%
2 Net Gain on Derecognition of Financial Instrument 65922 10.03%

Sr. 
No.

Name and address of the 
Company

CIN / GLN
Holding/ 

Subsidiary /
Associate

% of shares 
held

Applicable 
Section

1. Shriram City Union Finance 
Limited 

123, Angappa Naicken Street, 
Chennai – 600 001

L65191TN1986PLC012840 Holding 
Company

85.02% 2(46)

III.	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
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IV.	 SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage to Total Equity)

i)	 Category-wise share holding

Sr. 

No.

Category of 

shareholders

No. of shares held at the beginning of the year No. of shares held at the end of the year
% Change 

during the 

yearDemat Physical Total

% of 

total 

shares

Demat Physical Total

% of 

total 

shares

A. Promoters

1. Indian

a) Individual/HUF - - - - - - - - -

b) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -

c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -

d) Bodies Corporate* 16,54,40,000 - 16,54,40,000 77.25 27,65,51,112 - 27,65,51,112 85.02 7.77

e) Banks/FIs - - - - - - - - -

f) Any other - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (A) (1) 16,54,40,000 - 16,54,40,000 77.25 27,65,51,112 - 27,65,51,112 85.02 7.77

2. Foreign - - - - - - - -

a) NRIs – Individuals - - - - - - - - -

b) Other- Individuals - - - - - - - - -

c) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - -

d) Banks /FIs - - - - - - - - -

e) Any other - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (A) (2) - - - - - - - - -

Total shareholding of 

Promoter (A) = (A) (1) 

+ (A) (2)

16,54,40,000 - 16,54,40,000 77.25 27,65,51,112 - 27,65,51,112 85.02 7.77

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions - - - - - - - - -

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -

b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

c) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -

d) State Govt (s) - - - - - - - - -

e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -

f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -

g) FIIs - - - - - - - - -

h) Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds

- - - - - - - - -

i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total(B)(1) - - - - - - - - -
2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - -

i) Indian - - - - - - - - -

ii) Overseas - 4,87,20,000 4,87,20,000 22.75 - 4,87,20,000 4,87,20,000 14.98 (7.77)

b) Individuals - - - - - - - - -

i) Individual shareholders 

holding nominal Share 

Capital upto H1 Lakh

- - - - - - - - -
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Sr. 

No.

Category of 

shareholders

No. of shares held at the beginning of the year No. of shares held at the end of the year
% Change 

during the 

yearDemat Physical Total

% of 

total 

shares

Demat Physical Total

% of 

total 

shares

ii) Individual shareholders 

holding nominal share 

capital in excess of  

H 1 Lakh

- - - - - - - - -

c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B) (2) - 4,87,20,000 4,87,20,000 22.75 - 4,87,20,000 4,87,20,000 14.98 (7.77)

Total Public 

Shareholding                  

(B) = (B) (1) + (B) (2)

- 4,87,20,000 4,87,20,000 22.75 - 4,87,20,000 4,87,20,000 14.98 (7.77)

C. Shares held by 

Custodian for GDRs 

& ADRs

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 16,54,40,000 4,87,20,000 21,41,60,000 100 27,65,51,112 4,87,20,000 32,52,71,112 100 -

Sr. 
No.

Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change 
in share 
holding 
during 

the year

No. of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

Encumbered 
to total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total Shares

1 Shriram City Union 

Finance Limited

16,54,40,000 77.25 - 27,65,51,112 85.02 - 7.77

Sr. 
No.

Particulars

Shareholding
Cumulative Shareholding during 

the year

No. of shares
% of total shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares
% of total shares 
of the Company

1. At the beginning of the year 16,54,40,000 77.25 16,54,40,000 77.25
2. Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Promoters 

Shareholding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. 

Allotment/ transfer/ bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

- - - -

3. At the end of the year 27,65,51,112 85.02 27,65,51,112 85.02

	 *Includes 6 nominees of the holding company, who hold 1 share each.

ii)	 Shareholding of Promoters

iii)	 Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
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Sr. 
No.

For each of the top 10 shareholders

Shareholding
Cumulative Shareholding during 

the year

No. of shares
% of total shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares
% of total shares 
of the Company

1. At the beginning of the year Valiant Mauritius 

Partners FDI Limited
4,87,20,000 22.75 4,87,20,000 22.75

2. Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Shareholding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. 

Allotment/ transfer/ bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

- - - -

3. At the end of the year (or on the date of 
separation, if separated during the year)

4,87,20,000 14.98 4,87,20,000 14.98

Sr. 
No.

For each of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding
Cumulative Shareholding during 

the year

No. of shares
% of total shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares
% of total shares 
of the Company

1. At the beginning of the year - - - -
2. Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 

increase / decrease (e.g. Allotment / transfer / 

bonus / sweat equity etc.) 

- - - -

3. At the end of the year - - - -

iv)	 Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

v)	 Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

	 Mr. Srinivasa Chakravarti Yalamati, Non-Executive Director holds 1 share as a nominee of Shriram City Union Finance 
Limited. KMP does not hold any shares in the Company.

V.	 INDEBTEDNESS

	 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment
(H in Lakh)

Particulars
Secured Loans 

excluding deposits
Unsecured 

Loans
Deposits

Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i)	 Principal Amount 3,08,668.49 7,425.57 - 3,16,094.06
ii)	 Interest due but not paid
iii)	 Interest accrued but not due 1,938.30 51.28 - 1,989.58
Total (i+ii+iii) 3,10,606.80 7,476.85 - 3,18,083.64
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
•	 Addition 1,66,288.89 - - 1,66,288.89
•	 Reduction 92,233.83 2,471.70 - 94,705.53
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i)	 Principal Amount 3,83,069.61 4,970.97 - 3,88,040.58
ii)	 Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii)	 Interest accrued but not due 1,592.24 34.18 - 1,626.42
Total (i+ii+iii) 3,84,661.85 5,005.15 - 3,89,667.00
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VI.	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

	 A.	 Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-Time Directors and / or Manager:

(H in Lakh)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD / WTD / Manager

Total AmountSubramanian Jambunathan 
Managing Director & CEO

1. Gross Salary 193.30 193.30
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) 

of the Income Tax Act, 1961
193.30 193.30

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 
1961

- -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961

- -

2. Stock Option - -
3. Sweat Equity - -
4. Commission - -

-	 As % of profit - -
-	 Others, specify - -

5. Others, please specify: Variable Pay 20.85 20.85
Total (A) 214.15      214.15

		  The remuneration paid to the Managing Director & CEO is well within the prescribed limits of the Companies Act, 
2013 and approved by the shareholders of the Company.

	 B.	 Remuneration to other Directors:

(H in Lakh)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors
Total 

Amount
Mr. Venkataraman 

Murali
Ms. Lakshminarayanan 

Priyadarshini

1. Independent Directors
Fee for attending Board Committee Meetings 10.36 11.99 22.35
Commission - - -
Others, please specify - -
Total (1) 10.36 11.99 22.35

2. Other Non-Executive Directors - - -
Fee for attending Board Committee meetings - - -
Commission - - -
Others, please specify - - -
Total (2) - - -
Total (B) = (1+2) 10.36 11.99 22.35
Total Managerial Remuneration 236.50
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	 C.	 Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / Manager / WTD
(H in Lakh)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of 
Remuneration

Mr. Gauri Shankar 
Agarwal, Chief 

Financial Officer

Ms. Bhavita Ashiyani, 
Company Secretary

(ceased w.e.f 
31.01.2022)

Ms Puja Shah 
Company Secretary

(Joined w.e.f 
11.02.2022)

Total

1. Gross Salary 85.89 12.73 2.04 100.66
(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in Section 17(1) 
of the Income Tax Act, 
1961

85.89 12.73 2.04 100.66

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961

- - - -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary 
under section 17(3) of 
Income Tax, 1961

- - - -

2. Stock Option - - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - - -
4. Commission - - - -

-	 As % of profit - - - -
-	 Others, specify - - - -

5. Others, please, specify : 
Variable Pay

- - - -

Total 85.89 12.73 2.04 100.66

VII.	 PENALITIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES 

	 There were no penalties, punishment or compounding of offences to the Company, Directors and Officers of the 
Company during the year ended March 31, 2022.

Annexure - VII (Contd..)
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Sl. 
No.

Name of Director
Nature of 
Office

Special Knowledge /
Practical Experience 
/Skills/Expertise/
Competencies

Names of 
the other 
listed entities 
where the 
person is a 
director

Category of 
directorship 
in other listed 
entities where 
the person is a 
director

No. of 
Directorships 
in other Listed 
Companies

No. of 
Directorship 
in other 
Companies*

No. of Memberships/ 
Chairmanships in Board 
Committees of various 

companies (including the 
Company)**

Memberships Chairmanships

1 Subramanian 

Jambunathan

Executive/ 

Managing 

Director & 

CEO

Leadership, Strategic 

Planning, Experience 

in Banking & Financial 

Services, Capital 

Markets, Treasury, 

Regulatory / legal & 

Risk Management, 

Corporate 

Governance, 

Operations and 

Process Optimization.

- - - 3 8 3

Report on Corporate Governance

1.	 Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

	 The Company ensures exercising principles of corporate 
ethics, accountability and integrity and sees corporate 
governance beyond the compliance of regulatory 
norms. Transparency, fairness, integrity, effective 
internal controls at each level of operation in each 
business transactions, adequate and prompt disclosure 
to respective stakeholders are the key ingredients to the 
corporate governance.

2.	 Board of Directors

	 The Company believes that to ensure highest degree 
of corporate governance, an active, well informed 
Board is must. The Board of Directors of the Company 
consists of Executive, Non- Executive, Independent and 
Non- Independent Directors to ensure independent 
functioning of the Board with appropriate mix to ensure 
independence and separate the functions of governance 
and management.

	 All the Directors are well-qualified persons of proven 
competence and possess the highest level of personal 
and professional ethics, integrity and values. 

	 Responsibility of the Board

	 The key purpose of the Board is to ensure the Company’s 
prosperity by collectively directing its affairs, whilst 
meeting the appropriate interests of its shareholders and 
stakeholders. The Board is primarily responsible for:

	 a.	 establishing vision, mission & values and 
determining, reviewing the goals, policy of the 
Company from time to time;

	 b.	 formulating strategy & structure and deciding the 
means to implement and support them;

	 c.	 delegate to Management, determine monitoring 
criteria to be used to ensuring effectiveness of 
Internal Controls;

	 d.	 exercising accountability to shareholders and be 
responsible to relevant stakeholders; and

	 e.	 management and control.

	 A)	 Composition and appointment

		  Presently, as on the date of this report, the Board 
consists of four directors, including the Managing 
Director and CEO as the Executive Director of the 
Company.

		  The Board has identified skills and domain expertize 
required by the Directors of the Company which 
includes Banking & Finance, Business Strategy, 
Corporate Governance, Corporate Social 
Responsibility, Human Resources, Information 
Technology, Legal, Marketing, Operations and Process 
Optimization, Policy Making, Recovery, Regulatory 
Compliances, Risk Management, Stakeholder 
Management, Taxation, Treasury and Value Creation. 

		  The Directors of the Company have mapped their 
skills based on the board skill matrix. Details of 
Directors, directorship in listed companies, number 
of directorships held by them in other companies and 
the number of their memberships and chairmanships 
on various Board Committees, including skill sets/ 
expertise/ competencies/practical knowledge, as on 
March 31, 2022, are as under:
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Sl. 
No.

Name of Director
Nature of 
Office

Special Knowledge /
Practical Experience 
/Skills/Expertise/
Competencies

Names of 
the other 
listed entities 
where the 
person is a 
director

Category of 
directorship 
in other listed 
entities where 
the person is a 
director

No. of 
Directorships 
in other Listed 
Companies

No. of 
Directorship 
in other 
Companies*

No. of Memberships/ 
Chairmanships in Board 
Committees of various 

companies (including the 
Company)**

Memberships Chairmanships

2 Srinivasa 

Chakravarti 

Yalamati

Non-

Executive 

Director/ 

Non- 

Independent

Leadership, Banking 

and Finance, 

Business Strategy, 

Regulatory / legal & 

Risk Management, 

Treasury, Capital 

Markets, Treasury, 

Corporate 

Governance, 

Corporate Social 

Responsibility, 

Stakeholder 

Management, 

Operations and 

Process Optimization

i.	 Shriram 

City Union 

Finance, 

ii.	 Shriram 

Transport 

Finance 

Company 

Limited

i. 	 Managing 

Director & 

CEO;

ii. 	 Non-

Executive 

Director, 

Independent 

Director

2 5 8 2

3 Venkataraman 

Murali

Non-

Executive/

Independent 

Director

Banking and 

Finance, Corporate 

Governance, 

Regulatory affairs, 

Technology, Risk 

Management, 

Stakeholder 

Management, 

Taxation, Financial 

Accounting, Value 

Creation, Legal, 

Policy Making

i.	 Shriram 

City Union 

Finance;

ii. 	 Take 

Solutions 

Ltd

Non Executive, 

Independent 

Director;

2 4 3 5

4 Ms. 

Lakshminarayanan 

Priyadarshini

Non-

Executive/

Independent 

Director

Industry Knowledge 

& Experience, 

Financial, Regulatory 

/ Corporate 

Governance, 

Operations and 

Process Optimization, 

Banking and Finance.

UCAL FUEL 

SYSTEMS 

LIMITED

Non-Executive 

Director, 

Independent

1 2 3 2

	 B)	 Number and Dates of Board Meetings held, 
attendance of Directors and the last AGM held

		  The Board meetings of the Company are held in a highly 
professional manner, after giving proper notice, Board 
papers, agenda and other explanatory notes / relevant 
information to each of the directors of the Company, 
well in advance. Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the 
Company held the Board Meetings by Audio Video 
means. As per MCA guidelines, all the precautions 
were taken, rules for safe and secure conduct of 
Board meetings were followed and proceedings were 
recorded. At least one meeting is held in every quarter, 
to review the quarterly performance and the financial 
results of the Company. 

	 The Board do hereby confirms that all the present 
Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the 
conditions specified in the SEBI LODR and are 
independent of the management of the Company. The 
Board had accepted all recommendations of committees 
of the Board which are mandatorily required, during the 
financial year 2021-22. 

	 The Company has familiarization programme for 
Independent Directors with regard to their roles, 
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry 
in which the Company operates, the business model of 
the Company etc.
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		  The Company Secretary, in consultation with the 
Managing Director & CEO prepares the detailed 
agenda for the meetings. At the board meetings, the 
senior management make presentations on various 
matters including the financial results, operations 
related issues, risk management, the economic 
and regulatory environment, compliance, investors’ 
perceptions etc.

		  During the year, the Board met 8 (eight) times. 
Meetings were held on April 28, 2021, July 26, 2021, 
September 24, 2021, October 25, 2021, November 
12, 2021, November 25, 2021, December 13, 2021 
and January 25, 2022.

		  During the year, separate meeting of the 
Independent Directors was held on April 28, 2021, 
without the attendance of non-independent 
directors and the members of the management. All 
Independent Directors attended the said meeting. 
At the meeting, the independent directors assessed 
the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of 
information between the Company’s management 
and the board. 

		  The last Annual General Meeting of the Company 
was held on July 08, 2021. Attendance of Directors 
at the Board Meetings held during the FY 2021-22 
and at the last Annual General Meeting are as under:

Sr. 
No.

Name Designation
No. of Meetings 

held
No. of Meeting 

attended
Attendance 
at last AGM

1. Mr. Subramanian Jambunathan Managing Director & 
CEO

8 8 Yes

2. Mr. Yalamati Srinivasa 
Chakravarti

Non-Executive 
Director

8 8 Yes

3. Mr. Venkataraman Murali Independent Director 8 8 Yes
4. Ms. Lakshminarayanan 

Priyadarshini
Independent Director 8 8 No

	 C)	 Committees of the Board

		  The Board has constituted the various Committees 
which with specific terms of reference to focus on 
specific issues and ensure expedient resolution 
of diverse matters. These inter-alia includes Audit 
and Risk Management Committee, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee, Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee and Asset Liability 
Management Committee.

		  1.	 Audit and Risk Management Committee

			   In terms of the requirements of Section 177 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable 
provisions read with rules made thereunder 
and Housing Finance Companies – Corporate 
Governance (NHB) Directions, 2016, and SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 the Board constituted 
the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

			   The Audit and Risk Management Committee 
comprises of two Independent Directors and 

one Managing Director & CEO of the Company 
viz. Mr. Venkataraman Murali as Chairman, 
Ms. Lakshminarayanan Priyadarshini and Mr. 
Subramanian Jambunathan are as Members.

			   The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to 
the Audit and Risk Management Committee. 
The details of all Related Party Transactions 
are periodically placed before the Audit and 
Risk Management Committee. During the year, 
there were no instances where the Board did 
not accept the recommendation of the Audit 
and Risk Management Committee.

			   The role and terms of reference of the Audit 
and Risk Management Committee, inter-alia, 
includes the following:

			   1.	 oversight of the financial reporting process 
and the disclosure of financial information 
to ensure that the financial statement is 
correct, sufficient and credible including 
the compliance of KYC;
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			   2.	 recommendation for appointment, re-
appointment, remuneration and terms of 
appointment of auditors;

			   3.	 approval of payment to statutory auditors 
for any other services rendered by the 
statutory auditors;

			   4.	 reviewing, with the management, the 
annual financial statements and auditor's 
report thereon before submission to 
the board for approval, with particular 
reference to:

				    a)	 matters required to be included in the 
director’s responsibility statement to 
be included in the board’s report in 
terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) 
of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 
2013;

				    b)	 changes, if any, in accounting policies 
and practices and reasons for the 
same;

				    c)	 major accounting entries involving 
estimates based on the exercise of 
judgment by management;

				    d)	 significant adjustments made in the 
financial statements arising out of 
audit findings;

				    e)	 compliance with listing and other 
legal requirements relating to financial 
statements;

				    f)	 disclosure of any related party 
transactions;

				    g)	 modified opinion(s) in the draft audit 
report;

			   5.	 reviewing, with the management, the 
quarterly financial statements before 
submission to the board for approval;

			   6.	 reviewing, with the management, the 
statement of uses / application of funds 
raised through an issue (public issue, 
rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the 
statement of funds utilized for purposes 

other than those stated in the offer 
document / prospectus / notice and the 
report submitted by the monitoring agency 
monitoring the utilisation of proceeds 
of a public or rights issue, and making 
appropriate recommendations to the 
board to take up steps in this matter;

			   7.	 reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s 
independence and performance, and 
effectiveness of audit process;

			   8.	 approval or any subsequent modification 
of transactions of the listed entity with 
related parties;

			   9.	 scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and 
investments;

			   10.	 valuation of undertakings or assets of the 
listed entity, wherever it is necessary;

			   11.	 evaluation of internal financial controls and 
risk management systems;

			   12.	 reviewing, with the management, 
performance of statutory and internal 
auditors, adequacy of the internal control 
systems;

			   13.	 reviewing the adequacy of internal audit 
function, if any, including the structure 
of the internal audit department, staffing 
and seniority of the official heading the 
department, reporting structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit;

			   14.	 discussion with internal auditors of any 
significant findings and follow up there on;

			   15.	 reviewing the findings of any internal 
investigations by the internal auditors into 
matters where there is suspected fraud or 
irregularity or a failure of internal control 
systems of a material nature and reporting 
the matter to the board;

			   16.	 discussion with statutory auditors before 
the audit commences, about the nature 
and scope of audit as well as post-audit 
discussion to ascertain any area of concern;
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			   17.	 to look into the reasons for substantial 
defaults in the payment to the depositors, 
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of 
non-payment of declared dividends) and 
creditors;

			   18.	 to review the functioning of the whistle 
blower mechanism;

			   19.	 approval of appointment of chief financial 
officer after assessing the qualifications, 
experience and background, etc. of the 
candidate;

			   20.	 Carrying out any other function as is 
mentioned in the terms of reference of the 
audit committee.

			   21.	 reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or 
advances from/investment by the holding 
company in the subsidiary exceeding 
rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of 
the subsidiary, whichever is lower including 
existing loans / advances / investments 
existing as on the date of coming into force 
of this provision.

			   22.	 consider and comment on rationale, cost-
benefits and impact of schemes involving 
merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on 
the listed entity and its shareholders.

			   23.	 To analyse economic conditions, industry-
wise performance, guidelines issued by 
regulatory authorities, competitor’s policies 
& alerting management to the possibility of 
any adverse/risky situation emerging. 

			   24.	 Review Asset Liability Management, capital 
adequacy, resources raised, credit ratings 
and management of Non-Performing 
Assets.    

			   25.	 Analyse trend of cost of funds, expenses 
and review action taken to mitigate risks 
thereof. 

			   26.	 Analyse performance of assets assigned/
securitised, related party transactions, 
single party exposure & contingent 
liabilities. 

			   27.	 Review the credit policy for each product 
& to assess dovetailing of business done in 
accordance with overall credit policy. 

			   28.	 Review all major operational control/
actionable points to handle failures and 
other exigencies.

			   29.	 Carry out any other function as decided by 
the Board from time to time

			   30.	 To formulate a detailed risk management 
policy which shall include:

				    a.	 A framework for identification of 
internal and external risks specifically 
faced by the listed entity, in particular 
including financial, operational, 
sectoral, sustainability (particularly, 
ESG related risks), information, cyber 
security risks or any other risk as may 
be determined by the Committee.

				    b.	 Measures for risk mitigation including 
systems and processes for internal 
control of identified risks.

				    c.	 Business continuity plan.

			   31.	 To ensure that appropriate methodology, 
processes and systems are in place to 
monitor and evaluate risks associated with 
the business of the Company;

			   32.	 To monitor and oversee implementation 
of the risk management policy, including 
evaluating the adequacy of risk 
management systems;

			   33.	 To periodically review the risk management 
policy, at least once in two years, including 
by considering the changing industry 
dynamics and evolving complexity;

			   34.	 To keep the board of directors informed 
about the nature and content of its 
discussions, recommendations and actions 
to be taken;

			   35.	 The appointment, removal and terms of 
remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if 
any) shall be subject to review by the Risk 
Management Committee.
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			   36.	 The Risk Management Committee 
shall coordinate its activities with other 
committees, in instances where there is any 
overlap with activities of such committees, 
as per the framework laid down by the 
board of directors.

			   The Audit and Risk Management Committee 
have such powers and it performs such 
functions as may be required under the 
Companies Act, 2013 and such other applicable 
Regulations / Directions as may be notified 
by the National Housing Bank and any other 
statutory authorities.

			   During the year under review, the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee held its meetings on 
April 28, 2021, July 26, 2021, October 25, 2021, 
November 12, 2021 and January 25, 2022.

			   The attendance of Meeting is as under:

Sr. 

No.
Name of Member

No. of 

Meetings 

held

No. of 

Meeting 

attended

1. Mr. Venkataraman 

Murali

5 5

2. Mr. Lakshminarayanan 

Priyadarshini

5 5

3. Mr. Subramanian 

Jambunathan

5 5

		  2.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

			   In terms of the provisions of the Section 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable 
provisions read with rules made thereunder 
and Housing Finance Companies – Corporate 
Governance (NHB) Directions, 2016 and the 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 the Board 
constituted a Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of the Directors.

			   The  Committee  comprises  of  two  Independent  
Directors  and  one  Non-Executive  Directors  
viz.  Mr. Venkataraman Murali as Chairman, 
Ms. Lakshminarayanan Priyadarshini and Mr. 
Yalamati Srinivasa Chakravarti are as Members. 
The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

			   The terms of reference of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, inter-alia, includes 
the following:

			   •	 formulation of the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes 
and independence of a director and 
recommend to the board of directors a 
policy relating to the remuneration of the 
directors, key managerial personnel and 
other employees keeping in view to attract, 
motivate and retain talent required for the 
progress of the Company;

			   •	 For every appointment of an independent 
director, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee shall evaluate the balance of 
skills, knowledge and experience on the 
Board and on the basis of such evaluation, 
prepare a description of the role and 
capabilities required of an independent 
director. The person recommended to the 
Board for appointment as an independent 
director shall have the capabilities 
identified in such description. For the 
purpose of identifying suitable candidates, 
the Committee may: 

				    a.	 use the services of an external 
agencies, if required;

				    b.	 consider candidates from a wide range 
of backgrounds, having due regard to 
diversity; and

				    c.	 consider the time commitments of the 
candidates.

			   •	 formulation of criteria for evaluation of 
performance of independent directors and 
the board of directors;

			   •	 devising a policy on diversity of board of 
directors;

			   •	 identifying persons who are qualified 
to become directors and who may be 
appointed in senior management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down, and 
recommend to the board of directors their 
appointment and removal.
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			   •	 whether to extend or continue the term of 
appointment of the independent director, 
on the basis of the report of performance 
evaluation of independent directors.

			   •	 recommend to the board, all remuneration, 
in whatever form, payable to senior 
management.

			   •	 Carry out evaluation of performance of 
every Director on an annual basis.

			   •	 Formulate policies for qualification, 
attributes and independence of directors.

			   •	 To ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of Directors 
at the time of their appointment as well as 
on continuing basis.

			   •	 Recommend removal of a Director from 
the Board, in case if such need arises.

			   •	 Guide policies and practices in the talent 
management of the Company.

			   •	 Formulate, recommend to the Board 
and administer Employees Stock Option 
Plans (ESOP) and other incentive plans for 
employees and directors and interpret and 
adopt rules for the operation thereof.

			   •	 Approve employment agreements, 
severance arrangements and change in 
control agreements.

			   •	 To form Sub-committees and take matters 
as may be assigned by the Board from time 
to time.

			   During the year under review, the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee held its 
meetings on April 28, 2021, July 26, 2021 and 
October 25, 2021.

Sr. 

No.
Name of Member

No. of 

Meetings 

held

No. of 

Meeting 

attended

1. Mr. Venkataraman 

Murali

3 3

2. Mr. Lakshminarayanan 

Priyadarshini

3 3

3. Mr. Subramanian 

Jambunathan

3 3

		  3.	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Committee

			   In terms of the provisions of Section 135 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and other 
applicable provisions read with rules made 
thereunder, the Board has constituted CSR 
Committee. The Committee comprises of 
one Independent Director, one Non-Executive 
Director and one Managing Director & CEO 
viz. Ms. Lakshminarayanan Priyadarshini as 
Chairperson, Mr. Yalamati Srinivasa Chakravarti 
and Mr. Subramanian Jambunathan are as 
Members. The Company Secretary to act as 
Secretary to the CSR Committee.

			   The terms of reference of the CSR Committee, 
inter-alia, includes the following:

			   a.	 to formulate and recommend to the Board, 
a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 
which shall indicate the activities to be 
undertaken by the Company as specified in 
Schedule VII;

			   b.	 to recommend the amount of expenditure 
to be incurred on the activities referred to 
in clause (a); and

			   c.	 to monitor the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy of the Company from 
time to time.

			   During the year under review, the CSR 
Committee held its meetings on September 24, 
2021 and March 22, 2022. Statutory disclosures 
with respect to the CSR Committee and an 
annual report on CSR activities is annexed as 
Annexure - V to this report.

Sr. 

No.
Name of Member

No. of 

Meetings 

held

No. of 

Meeting 

attended

1. Mr. Venkataraman 

Murali

2 2

2. Mr. Lakshminarayanan 

Priyadarshini
2 2

3. Mr. Subramanian 

Jambunathan

2 2

4. Mr. Easwaran Krishnan 1 1
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		  4.	 Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)

			   In accordance with the Policy Circular No. NHB/
ND/DRS/Pol-No. 35/2010-11 dated October 10, 
2010, the Board of Directors constituted the Asset 
Liability Management Committee (ALCO). The 
ALCO was re-constituted on October 28, 2020 
comprising of Mr. Subramanian Jambunathan 
as Chairman, Mr. Gauri Shankar Agarwal, Mr. 
Nagendra Singh and Mr. Shivram Jagadeswaran 
are as Members. The Company Secretary acts 
Secretary to the ALCO Committee.

			   The terms of reference of the ALCO Committee, 
inter-alia, includes the following:

			   a.	 funding and capital, profit planning and 
growth projection;

			   b.	 balance sheet planning from risk-return 
perspective;

			   c.	 strategic management of interest and 
liquidity risk;

			   d.	 adoption of Asset-Liability Management 
practices;

			   e.	 providing a comprehensive and dynamic 
framework for measuring, monitoring and 
managing liquidity and interest rate risks of 
major operators in the financial system;

			   f.	 forecasting and analysing ‘What if scenario’ 
and preparation of contingency plans; and

			   g.	 any other subject as may be specified by 
NHB form time to time.

			   During the year under review, the ALCO held 
its meetings on April 28, 2021, July 26, 2021, 
October 25, 2021 and January 25, 2022.

Sr. 

No.
Name of Member

No. of 

Meetings 

held

No. of 

Meeting 

attended

1. Mr. Subramanian 

Jambunathan

5 5

2. Mr. Gauri Shankar 

Agarwal
5 5

3. Mr. Nagendra Singh 5 5

4. Mr. Shivram 

Jagadeswaran

5 5

		  5.	 Stakeholder Relationship Committee

			   In terms of the Regulation 20 of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (the “Listing Regulations”), to specifically 
look into various aspects of interest of 
shareholders, debenture holders and other 
security holders the Company constituted the 
Stakhodler Relationship Committee.

			   The Stakeholder Relationship Committee was 
constituted on October 25, 2021 comprising of 
Mr. Yalamati Srinivasa Chakravarti as Chairman, 
Mr. Vankataraman Murali and Mr. Subramanian 
Jambunathan as Members. The Company 
Secretary acts Secretary to the Stakeholder 
Relationship Committee.

			   The terms of reference of the Stakeholder 
Relationship Committee, inter-alia, includes the 
following:

			   (1)	 Resolving the grievances of the security 
holders of the listed entity including 
complaints related to transfer / transmission 
of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-
receipt of declared dividends, issue of new / 
duplicate certificates, general meetings, etc.;

			   (2)	 Review of measures taken for effective 
exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

			   (3)	 Review of adherence to the service 
standards adopted by the listed entity in 
respect of various services being rendered 
by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent; and

			   (4)	 Review of the various measures and initiatives 
taken by the listed entity for reducing the 
quantum of unclaimed dividends and 
ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants 
/ annual reports / statutory notices by the 
shareholders of the Company.

	 D.	 Remuneration of Directors:

		  The Non-Executive, Independent Directors get 
sitting fees for each of the Meeting of the Board and 
Committee (where he/she is a member) attended. 
The Managing Director (MD) and CEO of the 
Company is paid remuneration as per terms of his 
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appointment approved by the Members. The details of remuneration of MD and CEO of the Company is mentioned 
in Annexure III of the Directors’ report.

	 E.	 General Body Meetings:

		  1.	 Location and time of last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) and number of special resolution passed: 

Year Meeting Location Date Time
Number of special 
resolutions passed

2018-19 9th AGM No. 144, Santhome High Road, 
Shriram City Business Solution 
Centre, Mylapore,  
Chennai - 600 004

July 19, 2019 11.00 a.m. 2

2019-20 10th AGM No. 144, Santhome High Road, 
Shriram City Business Solution 
Centre, Mylapore,  
Chennai - 600 004

July 30, 2020 11.00 a.m. 1

2020-21 11th AGM No. 144, Santhome High Road, 
Shriram City Business Solution 
Centre, Mylapore,  
Chennai - 600 004

July 08, 2021 11.30 a.m. 2

Date of EGM Resolutions passed

April 8, 2021 Increase in Authorized Share Capital and consequent to alteration of the 
Memorandum of Association of the Company.

August 20, 2021 1.	 Appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company and fix their 
remuneration;

2.	 Modification of “Shriram Housing Finance Limited Employees’ Stock Option 
Scheme 2013” (the “SHFL ESOP Scheme 2013”);

3.	 Modification of “Shriram Housing Finance Limited Employees’ Stock Option 
Scheme 2016” (the “SHFL ESOP Scheme 2016”).

October 4, 2021 Increase in Authorized Share Capital and consequent to alteration of the 
Memorandum of Association of the Company.

		  2.	 Extraordinary General Meeting during the FY 2021-22

			   The Company during the financial year conducted as Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) on the following 
dates for the following purposed:
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		  3.	 Means of Communication

			   The Company has provided adequate and timely 
information to its member’s inter-alia through 
by way of publication in newspapers, disclosure 
to BSE, display on its website, emails, annual 
reports etc. The annual and quarterly financial 
results of f.y. 2022 were published in newspaper 
in English in “Business Standard” within 48 hours 
of conclusion of the Board Meetings at which the 
respective financials are approved and are sent to 
individual shareholders through email to those 
shareholders registered their email ids with the 
Company. The Annual Report of the Company 
containing director’s report, financial statements, 
auditor’s report thereon and other important 
information are circulated to members and other 
entities thereto by email. The Company’s website 
contains a separate section ‘Investor’, where all 
vital information relating to the Company and its 
performance including financial results, important 
developments and corporate presentations, etc. 
are regularly posted on website.

		  4.	 General Shareholder Information

			   (A)	 Company Registration Details

				    The Company is registered in the State 
of Chennai, India. The Corporate Identity 

Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by 
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is 
U65929TN2010PLC078004.

			   (B)	 Date, Time and Venue of AGM

				    The 12th AGM of the Company would 
be held on the day, date and time as 
mentioned in the Notice convening the 
said AGM. 

			   (C)	 Financial year

				    The financial year of the Company is a 
period of twelve months beginning on 1st 
April every calendar year and ending on 
31st March the following calendar year.

			   (D)	 Listing on Stock Exchange

				    The Company has its debt securities listed 
on following stock exchange:

				    BSE Limited

				    Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,

				    Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001

				    The annual listing fees for the financial year 
2021-22, have been paid to BSE.

			   (E)	 Contact Details

Particulars Name Address Telephone Number Fax Number Email Id

Registrar 

and Transfer 

Agents (RTA)

Integrated 

Registry 

Management 

Services 

Private 

Limited

2nd Floor, Kences Towers

No. 1 Ramakrishna Street,  

North Usman Road

T Nagar,  

Chennai – 600 017

+91 44 2814 

0801/02/03

044-28142479 csdst@

integratedindia.in;

csdstd@

integratedindia.in;

benpos@

integratedindia.in

Shriram 

Insight Share 

Brokers Ltd.

CK-5 & CK-6, Sector-II, 

Salt Lake City, Kolkata 

700091

+91 33 3250 7069

+91 33 2358 7188

+91 33 2358 

7189

swarup.hans@

shriraminsight.

co.in.
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Particulars Name Address Telephone Number Fax Number Email Id

Trustees for 

NCDs

Catalyst 

Trusteeship 

Limited

GDA House, Plot No. 85, 

Bhusari Colony (Right), 

Paud Road,  

Pune - 411 038

+91 (020) 2528 0081 +91 (020) 2528 

0275

dt@ctltrustee.

com

Beacon 

Trusteeship 

Limited

4C & D Siddhivinayak 

Chambers, Gandhi 

Nagar, Opp MIG Cricket 

Club, Bandra (East) 

Mumbai Mumbai City MH 

400051 Telephone: +91 

(022) 26558759 E-mail: 

+91 (022) 26558759 compliance1@

beacontrustee.

co.in

Statutory 

Authorities

Ministry of 

Corporate 

Affairs

A Wing, Shastri Bhawan, 

Rajendra Prasad,  

New Delhi 110001

+91 11 2338 4660/ 

2338 4659

Securities 

and 

Exchange 

Board of 

India (SEBI)

Plot No. C4-A, G Block, 

Bandra Kurla Complex, 

Bandra East,  

Mumbai 400051

+91-22-26449000 / 

40459000

+91-22-

26449019-22 / 

40459019-22

sebi@sebi.gov.in

National 

Housing 

Bank (NHB)

Core 5A, India Habitat 

Centre, Lodhi Road,  

New Delhi 11003

011-24649031 - 35 011-2464 6988 ho@nhb.org.in

Stock 

Exchange

BSE Limited 

(BSE)

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy 

Towers, Dalal Street, 

Mumbai 400 001

+91 22 2272 1233 +91 22 2272 

1919

corp.comm@

bseindia.cpm

Depository National 

Securities 

Depository 

Limited 

(NSDL)

Trade World, A Wing, 

4th Floor, Kamala Mills 

Compound, Lower Parel, 

Mumbai 400

+91 22 2499 4200

Toll free 1800 222 

990

+91 22 2497 

6351

info@nsdl.co.in

Central 

Depository 

Services 

(India) 

Limited 

(CDSL)

Marathon Futurex, A- 

Wing, 25th floor, N M 

Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, 

Mumbai 400 013

+91 22 2305 

8640/8624/ 8639/ 

8663

Toll free 1800 22 

5533

helpdesk@

cdslindia.com

			   (F)	 Address for correspondence

				    Registered Office: No. 123, Angappa Naicken Street, Chennai- 600 001.

				    Corporate Office: Wockhardt Towers, East Wing, Level-3, C-2, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra 
(East), Mumbai - 400 051.

				    Email id: sect@shriramhousing.in
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		  5.	 Compliance Certificate from the Practicing 
Company Secretary

			   A certificate from a Practicing Company 
Secretary certifying the Company’s compliance 
with the provisions of Corporate Governance 
as stipulated in Regulation 34(3) read with 
Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is 
annexed to this report as Annexure I.

		  6.	 Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 1993

Number of 

Complaints filed 

during the f.y. 

2021-22

Number of 

complaints 

disposed of 

during f.y. 

2021-22

Number of 

Complaints 

pending as on 

f.y. 2021-22

Nil Nil Nil

		  7.	 Other Disclosures

			   i.	 Related Party Transactions

				    All the related party transactions, entered 
into by the Company, during the financial 
year, were in its ordinary course of business 
and on an arm’s length basis. There are 
no materially significant related party 
transactions entered by the Company with 
its Promoters, Key Management Personnel 
or other designated persons which may 
have potential conflict with the interest of 
the Company at large. The Policy on related 
party transaction is available on the website 
of the Company https://shriramhousing.in/
our-policies-and-corporate-governance.

			   ii.     Fees paid to Statutory Auditor

				    Total fees for all services paid by the entity 
to the statutory auditor and all entities in the 
network firm/network entity of which the 
statutory auditor is a part is given below:-

Particulars
Amount for  

f.y 2021-22  (in lakh)

Audit Fees 30.52

Certification Nil
Tax Audit 4.09

Total 34.61

			   iii.	 Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism 
Policy

				    The Company is committed to adhere to 
the highest standards of ethical, moral and 
legal conduct of its business operations. To 
maintain these standards, the Company has 
implemented the Whistle Blower and Vigil 
Mechanism Policy in line with regulation 
22 of the LODR. The Policy applies to 
all employees of the Company and no 
personnel have been denied access to the 
audit committee. Pursuant to the Policy, the 
whistle blowers can raise concerns relating 
to matters such as breach of Company’s 
Code of Conduct, fraud, bribery, employee 
misconduct, illegality, misappropriation of 
Company’s funds/assets etc. The details of 
the Policy are available on the website of 
the Company (https://shriramhousing.in/
our-policies-and-corporate-governance).

			   iv.	 Code of Conduct and Ethics

				    The Company has laid down a Code of 
Conduct and Ethics (the Code) for the 
Board Members and Senior Management 
personnel of the Company. The Code is 
available on the website of the Company 
https://shriramhousing.in/our-policies-
and-corporate-governance.

				    All Board Members and Senior Management 
personnel have affirmed compliance to the 
Code. A declaration signed by the Chief 
Executive Officer to this effect is enclosed 
at the end of this report as Annexure II.

				    The Code seeks to ensure that the Board 
Members and Senior Management 
personnel observe a total commitment 
to their duties and responsibilities while 
ensuring a complete adherence with the 
applicable statues along with business 
values and ethics. 

			   v.	 Compliance on Financial Reporting

				    The Managing Director & CEO and the 
CFO have issued certificate pursuant to 
provisions of Regulation 17(8) read with 
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Part- B of Schedule II of the SEBI LODR, 
certifying that the financial statements do 
not contain any materially untrue statement 
and these statements represent a true and 
fair view of the Company’s Affairs. It is 
attached as Annexure III to this report.

			   vi. Details of compliance with mandatory 
requirements and adoption of the non-
mandatory requirements pursuant to SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015.

				    The Company has complied with all 
mandatory requirements pursuant to SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. The details of 
these compliances have been given in 
relevant sections of the report.

			   vii.	 Certificate from practicing company 
secretary regarding Non- debarment and 
Non- Disqualification of Directors 

				    The Company has received a certificate 
from M/s P. Sriram & Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretaries to the effect that 
none of the directors on the Board of 
Company has debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or continuing as 
director of the Company by SEBI/Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs or such other statutory 
authority. The said certificate is attached as 
Annexure IV.

		  8.	 Discretionary Requirements

			   (A)	 Non-Executive Chairperson 

				    The Company does not have a regular 
Chairperson of the Board of Directors. The 
Directors of the Company unanimously 
elect one amongst themselves as the 
Chairperson of the Board Meetings. 
The requirements applicable in terms of 
Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 
2015 are complied with the Company.

			   (B)	 Shareholders Rights	

				    The Company would be getting its 
quarterly/half yearly and annual financial 

results published in leading newspapers 
with wide circulation across the country 
and regularly update the same on its public 
domain website. In view of the same 
individual communication of quarterly, 
financial results to the shareholders will not 
be made. Further, information pertaining to 
important developments in the Company 
shall be brought to the knowledge of the 
public at large uploads/disclosures made 
on the Company website.

			   (C)	 Unqualified financial statements

				    The Auditors’ Report on the audited 
annual accounts of the Company does not 
contain any qualification from the Statutory 
Auditors and it shall be the endeavor of the 
Company to continue the trend by building 
up accounting systems and controls 
which ensure complete adherence to 
the applicable accounting standards and 
practices obviating the possibility of the 
Auditors qualifying their report as to the 
audited accounts.

			   (D)	 Reporting of Internal Auditor

				    The Internal Auditor of the Company 
reports to Managing Director & CEO and 
has direct access to the Audit Committee. 
Except as set out above, the Company 
has not adopted the non-mandatory 
requirements as to any of the other matters 
recommended under Part E of Schedule 
II of Regulation 27(1) of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015.

				    This Corporate Governance Report of the 
Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2021 are in compliance with the 
requirements of Corporate Governance as 
prescribed under Regulations 17 to 27 of 
the SEBI LODR, to the extent applicable to 
the Company.
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Annexure I

Corporate Governance Compliance Certificate under SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To the Members of 
Shriram Housing Finance Limited

I have examined all the relevant records of Shriram Housing Finance Limited (‘the Company’) for the purpose of certifying 
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) for the period from April 1, 2021 to March 
31, 2022. I have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purposes of certification. 

Compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with 
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the 
Company. 

The Company is High value Debt Listed Entity pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth 
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 dated September 7, 2021. Accordingly, the regulation 16 to Regulation 27 of SEBI (Listing and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 in respect of Corporate Governance became applicable to the Company with 
effect from September 7, 2021.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, I certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in; Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 
46(2) and Paragraphs C, D and E Schedule V of the Listing Regulations.  

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

	 For P. Sriram & Associates
	 Company Secretaries

	 P. Sriram
Place: Chennai	 FCS No: 3310 CP No: 4862
Date: April 25, 2022	 UDIN: F004862D000404349
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Annexure II

Declaration by Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
[Schedule V (Part D) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To, 
The Board of Directors of 
Shriram Housing Finance Limited

I, Mr. Subramanian Jambunathan, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of Shriram Housing Finance Limited hereby 
declare that, all the Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of 
the Company laid down for them for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Sd/-
Subramanian Jambunathan
Managing Director  & Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 25, 2022
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Annexure III

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
(Pursuant to Regulation 17 (8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To, 
The Board of Directors of 
Shriram Housing Finance Limited

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 
of the Company, to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:

a)	 We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and 
that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

	 i.	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact nor do they contain 
statements that might be misleading; 

	 ii.	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b)	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which 
are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

c)	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have 
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if 
any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d)	 We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:

	 (i)	 there have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during this year;

	 (ii)	 there have been no significant changes in accounting policies during this year; and

	 (iii)	 there have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein of 
the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial 
reporting.

Sd/-	 Sd/-
Subramanian Jambunathan	 Gauri Shankar Agarwal
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer	 Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 20, 2022
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Annexure IV

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to BSE Limited’s Notice dated January 07, 2022 read with schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI  

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To the Members of
Shriram Housing Finance Limited

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms and returns filed, notices and disclosures received from the Directors, 
minutes books, other books and papers of Shriram Housing Finance Limited having CIN: U65929TN2010PLC078004 and having 
registered office at 123, Angappa Naicken Street, Chennai 600001 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before 
me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with BSE Limited’s Notice dated January 07, 2022 
read with schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including DIN status at the portal www.
mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company, its officers; 

I hereby certify that none of the Directors who were on the Board of the Company as on March, 31, 2022 have been debarred 
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other Statutory Authority. 

Ensuring the eligibility of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification.

I have conducted necessary verification as much as is appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the eligibility or 
disqualification of the Directors on the Board of the Company.

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

	 For P. Sriram & Associates
	 Company Secretaries

	 P. Sriram
Place: Chennai	 FCS No: 3310 CP No: 4862
Date: April 25, 2022	 UDIN: F004862D000401027
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Member of
Shriram Housing Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

1.	 Opinion

	 We have audited the accompanying financial statements 
of Shriram Housing Finance Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in 
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 
on that date, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of the significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Financial Statements”).

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Financial Statements give the information required by 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind 
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 
31, 2022, and profit and other comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended 
on that date.

2.	 Basis for Opinion

	 We conducted our audit of financial statements in 
accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those SAs are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

3.	 Key Audit Matters

	 Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the Financial Statements of the current 
year. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined 
the matters described below to be the key audit matters 
to be communicated in our report.

Sr. 
No.

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

a. Impairment on Financial Instruments
Ind AS 109 Financial instruments (Ind AS 109) requires 
the Company to provide for impairment of its financial 
instruments (designated as amortized cost or fair value 
through other comprehensive income) using the 
expected credit loss (ECL) approach. 

ECL involves an estimation and a significant degree of 
judgement by the management for development of 
ECL model and its corresponding application in the ECL 
model. These judgement and estimates include:

1.	 Estimating the behavioral life of the product.

Read and assessed the Company’s accounting policies 
for impairment of financial instruments (Refer note 
3.14) and their compliance with Ind AS 109 and the 
governance framework approved by the Board of 
Directors.

Read and assessed the Company’s policy with respect 
to one-time restructuring offered to customers 
pursuant to the “Resolution Framework 2.0- Resolution 
of COVID-19-related Stress of Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises” issued by RBI on May 5, 2021 and tested the 
implementation of such policy on a sample basis.
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Sr. 
No.

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

2.	 Data inputs in relation to ECL model.

3.	 Application of the macroeconomic factors on a 
forward-looking basis.

4.	 Modification of assets in terms of restructuring.

5.	 Determination of   loan book segmentation based 
on homogeneity, probability of defaults, loss given 
defaults and exposure at default.

6.	 Compliance with RBI circulars and assess the level of 
credit impairment of financial instrument. 

7.	 Disclosures as required by IND AS 109 and RBI 
Circular

Refer Note 3.14 and 6(a) of the financial statements.

We have evaluated the management response upon 
implementation of various RBI circulars and tested the 
implementation of requirements as per these circulars 
on sample basis.   

We also performed end to end process walkthroughs to 
identify the key systems, applications and controls used 
in the ECL processes. 

We tested the relevant manual controls, general IT and 
application controls over key systems used in the ECL 
process.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the management 
estimates by understanding the process of ECL 
estimation and related assumptions and tested the 
controls around data extraction and validation.

We tested the operating effectiveness of the controls for 
staging of loans and advances based on their past-due 
status.

Tested a sample of performing (stage I) loans to assess 
whether any Significant Increase in Credit Risk indicators 
were present requiring them to be classified under 
higher stages.

Assessing the appropriateness of changes made in 
macro-economic factors and management overlays to 
calibrate the risks that are not yet fully captured by the 
existing model.

We tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of 
ECL provision performed by the Company. 

We assessed the disclosures included in the Ind-AS 
financial statements with respect to such allowance / 
estimate are in accordance with the requirements of Ind 
AS 109 and Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 
and also as per RBI Guidelines.

b. Evaluation of Company’s IT systems and Controls

Evaluation of Company’s IT systems and Controls

The Corporation’s key financial accounting and reporting 
processes are highly dependent on information systems 
including automated controls in information systems, 
such that there exists a risk that, gaps in the IT control 
environment could result in the financial accounting 
and reporting records being misstated.

We identified ‘IT systems and controls’ as key audit 
matter because of the high level of automation being 
used by management and the scale and complexity of 
the IT architecture.

Our audit procedures include assessment and 
identification of key IT applications, and further 
verifying, testing, and reviewing the design and 
operating effectiveness of the IT system on the basis of 
reports /returns and other financial and non-financial 
information generated from the system on a test check 
basis. Our audit procedures included:

a)	 Obtained an understanding of the IT control 
environment, IT policies during the audit period.

b)	 Testing IT general controls related to User and 
Application controls, Change Management Controls 
and Data backup.

Where we identified the need to perform additional 
procedures, we placed reliance on manual reconciliations 
between systems and other information sources. 
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4.	 Other Information

	 The Company’s management and Board of Directors 
are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the 
Company’s annual report but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 
The other information is expected to be made available 
to us after the date of this auditor's report.

	 Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

	 In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.

	 The above information is not made available to us as 
at the date of this Auditor’s report. We have nothing to 
report in this regard. 

5.	 Management's Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements

	 The Company’s Management and Board of Directors 
is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance, including 
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) 
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

	 In preparing the Financial Statements, the Management 
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of 
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so.

	 The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing 
the Company’s financial reporting process.

6.	 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements

	 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the Financial Statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

	 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

	 •	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

	 •	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial 
control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls.

	 •	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures in the Financial 
Statements made by the Management and Board of 
Directors.
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	 •	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the 
Management and Board of Directors use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the Financial Statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

	 •	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

	 Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of 
a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial 
Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of 
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the Financial Statements.

	 We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

	 We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

	 From the matters communicated with those charged 
with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the Financial 
Statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 
our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 

not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

7.	 Other Matter

	 The Financial Statement also includes figures of the 
Company for the year ended March 31, 2021, audited by 
the predecessor firm of statutory auditor vide its report 
dated April 28, 2021, in which the predecessor auditor 
has expressed an unmodified opinion. Accordingly, we 
do not express any conclusion on aforesaid financial 
statement for the said year and have relied upon the said 
reports for the purpose of our report on this financial 
statement.

8.	 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

	 I.	 As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) 
Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the 
Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on 
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order, to the extent applicable.

	 II.	 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on 
our audit we report that:

		  a)	 We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit.

		  b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books.

		  c)	 The balance sheet, the statement of profit and 
loss (including other comprehensive income), 
the statement of changes in equity and the 
statement of cash flows dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.

		  d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial 
Statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under section 133 of the Act.

		  e)	 On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on March 
31, 2022, taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors are disqualified 
as on March 31, 2022, from being appointed as 
a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.
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		  f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal financial controls with 
reference to Financial Statement. 

	 III.	 With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

		  a)	 The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations as at March 31, 2022, on its 
financial position in its Financial Statements - 
Refer Note 44 of Financial Statements;

		  b)	 The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses;

		  c)	 There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company;

		  d)	 (i)	 The Management has represented that, to 
the best of its knowledge and belief,  no 
funds (which are material either individually 
or in aggregate)  have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company 
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") 
or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

			   (ii)	 The Management has represented, that, 
to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material either individually 
or in the aggregate) have been received 
by the company from any person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Company shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

			   (iii)	 Based on audit procedures that we have 
considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to 
our notice that has caused us to believe 
that the representations under sub-clause 
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under 
(a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement.

		  e)	 During the year the Company has neither 
declared nor paid any dividend, as such 
compliance of section 123 of the Act is not 
applicable.

	 IV.	 With respect to the matter to be included in the 
Auditors’ Report under section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended:

		  In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid 
by the Company to its directors during the current 
year is in accordance with the provisions of section 
197 of the Act.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 006711N/N500028

Pramod Tilwani
Partner

Membership No. 076650
UDIN: 22076650AHUCGP9029

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 25, 2022
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date

i.	 In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and 
Equipment and Intangible Assets:

	 (a)	 (A)	 The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and 
equipment and relevant details of right-of use 
assets.

		  (B)	 The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars of intangible assets.

	 (b)	 The Company has a program of physical verification 
of Property, Plant and Equipment whereby all these 
assets are verified once in a years. In our opinion, the 
periodicity of the physical verification is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its assets. For the assets where physical 
verification exercise was completed, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

	 (c)	 The title deed of the immovable properties 
disclosed in the financial statements included under 
‘Note 10 - Investment Property’ is held in the name 
of the Company.

	 (d)	 The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant 
and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and 
intangible assets during the year.

	 (e)	 No proceedings have been initiated during the year 
or are pending against the Company as at March 
31, 2022, for holding any benami property under 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 
(45 of 1988) (as amended in 2016) and rules made 
thereunder.

ii	 (a)	 The Company is a service company primarily 
engaged in lending business. Accordingly, it does 
not hold any inventories. Thus, the provision of 
clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

	 (b)	 The Company has been sanctioned working capital 
limit in excess of Rs 5 crore in aggregate during 
the year from banks or financial institutions on the 
basis of security of current assets and the quarterly 
returns/statements filed by the company with such 
Banks and Financial institutions are in agreement 
with the books of accounts of the Company.

iii.	 The Company has not made investments in and provided 
any guarantee or security to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. However, the 
Company has granted secured and unsecured loans to 
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and to 
others parties during the year in respect of which;

	 (a)	 Since the Company is principally engaged in 
providing loans reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	 In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the 
loans granted during the year are prima facie not 
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

	 (c)	 The Company is principally engaged in the business 
of providing loans. In respect of loans granted 
by the Company, the schedule of repayment of 
principal and payment of interest has been duly 
stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts 
and receipts of interest have been regular as per 
stipulation except for certain cases, the summary of 
which are as disclosed by the management in Note 
6(a) of notes of the Financial Statements.

		  For the purpose of the above disclosure, the 
company has considered the Reserve Bank of India 
circular DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21dated 
August 06, 2020 on Resolution Framework for 
COVID-19 related stress and RBI circular DOR.STR.
REC.11/21.04.048/2021-22 dated May 05, 2021 (as 
amended time to time) wherein moratorium is to 
be granted to customers in relation to repayment of 
dues, due to which the repayment schedule of such 
customers has been modified to that extent.

	 (d)	 In respect of loans granted by the Company, the 
overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the 
balance sheet date is as reported in Note 6(a) of 
notes of the Financial Statements. The total amount 
in Stage III amounts to Rs. 7,879.68 Lakh with 
respect to 396 borrowers (485 loan accounts). The 
Company has generally taken reasonable steps in its 
normal course of business for recovery of overdue 
principal and interest in respect of such loans.

	 (e)	 As Company is principally engaged in providing 
loans, hence the reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of 
the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of 
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that;
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	 (f)	 The Company has not granted any loans or 
advances, in the nature of loans either repayable on 
demand or without specifying any terms or period 
of repayment during the year. 

iv	 The Company has not granted any loans, made 
investments, or provided guarantees and securities 
which attract the provisions of section 185 and section 
186 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company;

v	 The Company has not accepted any deposits or 
amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the 
public to which the directives issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or 
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules 
framed there under apply. Accordingly, the provision 
of clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company;

vi	 The Central Government has not prescribed the 
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of 
section 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered 
by the Company. Accordingly, the provision of clause 
3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;

vii	 (a)	 The amounts deducted / accrued in the books of 
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues 
including Goods and Services tax, provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income tax, cess and 
other applicable statutory dues have generally 
been regularly deposited by the Company with 
the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the 
Company did not have any dues on account of sales 
tax, service tax, value added tax, duty of customs 
and duty of excise;

		  There were no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of Goods and Services tax, provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income tax, cess and 
other applicable statutory dues which were in 
arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than 
six months from the date they become payable;

	 (b)	 Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) 
above which have not been deposited as on March 
31, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:

Nature of 
Act

Forum Period (AY)
Amount in 
Rupees Lakh

Income 
Tax Act

CIT 
Appeals

AY 2018-19 67.66

		  (Refer Note 44)

	 viii	 There were no transactions relating to previously 
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961);

ix	 (a)	 The Company has not defaulted in the repayment 
of loans or other borrowings to or in the payment 
of interest thereon to any lender, during the year;

	 (b)	 The Company has not been declared as wilful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
other lender;

	 (c)	 Term loans availed by the Company during the year 
have been generally applied for the purpose for 
which they were obtained other than temporary 
deployment in liquid assets pending application.;

	 (d)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, and the procedures performed by 
us, and on an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the company, we report that no funds 
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-
term purposes by the Company.

	 (e)	 The company does not have any subsidiary or 
joint ventures. On an overall examination of the 
financial statements of the Company, the Company 
has not taken any funds from any entity or person 
on account of or to meet the obligations of its 
associates’ companies;

	 (f)	 The company does not have any securities held 
in its associates and accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 3 (ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable;

x	 (a)	 The Company has not raised moneys by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year and hence 
reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable.

	 (b)	 The Company during the year has raised Equity 
Share Capital by way of Right Issue in compliance 
of Section 62 of the Act.  No other preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or 
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally 
convertible) has been carried by the Company 
during the year. Further, the Funds raised by the 
Company under the aforesaid Right Issue of Equity 
Shares were utilized for the purpose for which the 
funds were raised.

xi	 (a)	 We report that no fraud by the company or fraud on 
the Company has been noticed or reported during 
the year nor have we been informed of any such 
case by the management.
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	 (b)	 No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of 
the Companies Act has been filed by us in Form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government, during the year and upto the date of 
this report;

	 (c)	 As represented to us by the Management, there 
were no whistle blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year;

xii	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence 
reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii	 In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with 
section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with 
respect to all applicable transactions with the related 
parties and the details of related party transactions have 
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by 
the applicable accounting standards.

xiv	 (a)	 In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit 
system commensurate with the size and nature of 
its business;

	 (b)	 We have considered the internal audit reports issued 
to the Company for the period under audit.

xv	 During the year, the Company has not entered into 
any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons 
connected with its directors, and hence provisions 
of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
applicable to the Company.

xvi	 (a)	 As the Company is a Non-Banking Financial 
institution and registered under National Housing 
Bank (NHB) Act, 1987, it has been exempted from 
the requirement of registration under section 45-IA 
of the Reserve Bank of India Act; 1934.

	 (b)	 The Company has a valid certificate of registration 
from National Housing Bank;

	 (c)	 The Company is not a core investment company 
and hence reporting under clause (xvi)(c) of the 
Order is not applicable;

	 (d)	 There is One core investment company as a part of 
the group;

xvii	 The Company has not incurred cash losses during the 
financial year covered by our audit and the immediately 
preceding financial year;

xviii	As per RBI circular no. RBI/2021-22/25 Ref No. DoS.
CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021 
the Statutory Auditors have resigned upon completion 

of their term of appointment as per the requirement 
of the said circular. There has not been any issues, 
concerns or objections raised by the outgoing auditors, 
based on our communication with outgoing auditor as 
required under ICAI Code of Ethics;

xix	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing 
and expected dates of realization of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge 
of the Board of Directors and management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting 
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty 
exists as on the date of the audit report that company is 
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of 
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period 
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability 
of the company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and 
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company 
as and when they fall due;

xx	 As disclosed by management in footnote to note 36 of 
the financial statements and as verified by us, the gross 
amount required to be spent by company towards 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) during the year 
has been duly spent during the year hence reporting 
under clause (xx)(a) and clause (xx)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable;

xxi	 Reporting under clause xxi of the Order is not applicable 
as the same is required to be reported only in case of 
consolidated financial statement.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 006711N/N500028

Pramod Tilwani
Partner

	 Membership No. 076650
	 UDIN: 22076650AHUCGP9029

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 25, 2022
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Annexure – B 
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SHRIRAM HOUSING 
FINANCE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

1.	 We have audited the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements of Shriram Housing 
Finance Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 
in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

	 In our opinion, to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system with reference to  financial statements 
and such internal financial controls with reference 
to  financial statements were operating effectively as 
at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control with 
reference to financial statements criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls 

2.	 The Company’s management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) .

	 Auditors’ Responsibility

3.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit.

	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to 
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial controls 
with reference to financial statements. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

	 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system with reference to financial 
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
system with reference to financial statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference 
to financial statements

4.	 A company's internal financial control with reference 
to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control with reference to  financial statements 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of  
financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the  financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
with reference to financial statements 

5.	 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control with reference to financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 006711N/N500028

Pramod Tilwani
Partner

Membership No. 076650
UDIN: 22076650AHUCGP9029

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 25, 2022
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars Notes
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

I ASSETS
1 Financial assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 4  5,177.37  10,113.47 
(b) Bank balance other than above 5  17,777.36  4,401.04 
(c) Loans 6  4,52,214.75  3,37,768.23 
(d) Investments 7  14,043.17  7,402.57 
(e) Other financial assets 8  15,549.93  12,898.72 

2 Non-financial Assets
(a) Tax assets 9  570.72  418.95 
(b) Investment property 10  0.28  0.28 
(c) Property, plant and equipment 11  540.43  403.77 
(d) Other intangible assets 12  309.83  438.98 
(e) Right of use assets 13  1,421.71  920.49 
(f) Other non financial assets 14  1,155.62  1,392.62 

3 Assets held for sale 15  8,073.19  7,116.63 
Total Assets  5,16,834.36  3,83,275.75 

II LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
1 Financial Liabilities

(a) Derivative financial instrument 16  5.49  -   
(b) Payables

Trade payables 17
(i)	 total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises
 -    -   

(ii)	 total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

 1,253.23  1,127.68 

(c) Debt securities 18  53,329.62  57,889.82 
(d) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 19  3,36,337.39  2,60,193.82 
(e) Lease liabilities 20  1,470.36  1,006.12 
(f) Other financial liabilities 21  4,898.40  2,390.83 

2 Non-financial Liabilities
(a) Provisions 22  311.93  217.46 
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 38  3,186.28  2,536.95 
(c) Other non-financial liabilities 23  282.35  266.02 

3 Equity
(a) Equity share capital 24  32,527.11  21,416.00 
(b) Other equity 25  83,232.20  36,231.05 

Total Liabilities and Equity  5,16,834.36  3,83,275.75 

In terms of our report attached
For T R  Chadha & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 Shriram Housing Finance Limited
Firm Registration No: 006711N/N500028

Pramod Tilwani	 Subramanian Jambunathan	 Y. S. Chakravarti
Partner	 Managing Director and CEO	 Director
Membership No:076650	 DIN:00969478	 DIN:00052308

	 Gauri Shankar Agarwal	 Puja Shah
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai	 Place: Srinagar
Date: 25th April , 2022	 Date: 25th April , 2022

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements     1-95
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

In terms of our report attached
For T R  Chadha & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 Shriram Housing Finance Limited
Firm Registration No: 006711N/N500028

Pramod Tilwani	 Subramanian Jambunathan	 Y. S. Chakravarti
Partner	 Managing Director and CEO	 Director
Membership No:076650	 DIN:00969478	 DIN:00052308

	 Gauri Shankar Agarwal	 Puja Shah
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai	 Place: Srinagar
Date: 25th April , 2022	 Date: 25th April , 2022
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 (H in Lakh)

Particulars
Note 
No.

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2022 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

Revenue from operations 
(i) Interest income 26  46,431.19  32,334.68 
(ii) Fees and commission income 27  560.92  349.90 
(iii) Net gain on fair value changes 28  815.36  775.29 
(iv) Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised 

cost category 
29  5,508.35  7,390.05 

(v) Others  30  1,511.40  1,062.98 
(I) Total revenue from operations  54,827.22  41,912.90 
(II) Other income  31  90.33  321.15 
(III) Total Income (I+II)  54,917.55  42,234.05 

Expenses
(i) Finance costs 32  28,060.05  20,833.73 
(ii) Impairment on financial instruments 33  1,079.80  2,013.27 
(iii) Employee benefits expenses 34  8,523.77  6,646.66 
(iv) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 35  787.02  728.32 
(v) Others expenses  36  5,552.49  3,588.45 
(IV) Total Expenses (IV)  44,003.13  33,810.43 
(V) Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)  10,914.42  8,423.62 
(VI) Exceptional items  -    -   
(VII) Profit/(loss) before tax (V -VI )  10,914.42  8,423.62 
(VIII)Tax expense:

(1)	 Current Tax 37  2,092.65  935.98 
(2)	 Deferred Tax 37  644.48  1,439.66 
(3)	 Income tax of earlier years 37  143.16  (190.33)

(IX)  Profit / (loss) for the year (VII-VIII)  8,034.13  6,238.31 
(X) Other comprehensive income

(i)	 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
	 Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan  19.25  3.12 
(ii)	 Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit 

or loss 
 (4.84)  (0.78)

Other comprehensive income (i + ii)  14.41  2.34 
(XI) Total Comprehensive Income for the year  8,048.54  6,240.65 
(XII) Earnings per equity share (Face Value of Rs.10/-)

Basic (Rs.)  2.82  2.91 
Diluted (Rs.)  2.81  2.90 
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

 (H in Lakh)

 Particulars  Notes
 For the year 

ended
March 31,  2022 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

A) Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before taxation  10,914.42  8,423.62 
Adjustment for :
Depreciation, amortization and impairment on PPE & ROU Assets 35  787.02  728.32 
(Profit)/loss on sale of Property, plant & equipment (net)  6.46  54.03 
NCD issue expenses  146.00  193.70 
Bad debts written off 33  755.95  598.36 
Impairment of financial instruments 33  324.01  1,416.98 
Impairment  on lease receivables 33  (0.16)  (0.22)
Dividend received 30  (0.41)
Net (gain)/loss on derecognition of investments 28  (815.27)  (840.56)
Provision for lease rental  (8.48)  0.41 
Interest received on deposit with banks 26  (679.89)  (675.04)
Finance cost  120.63 
Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans through OCI  19.25  3.12 
Net (gain)/loss on fair value changes on investments  -    65.27 
Fair valuation of ESOP 34  149.93  105.14 
Net (gain)/loss of derecognition of financial instruments under amortised 
cost category

29  (5,508.35)  (7,390.05)

Finance cost related to SCUF guarantee 32  -    117.13 
Interest income on fair valuation of security deposit 26  (29.33)  (42.75)
Recognition of interest on NPA  168.20  (176.29)
Amortisation of  processing fees on loans & advances  (296.07)  168.63 
Amortisation of investments on PTCs  1.26  0.60 
Mortgage guarantee fee written off  7.16  18.12 
Interest on lease liability 32  96.02  94.73 
Gain on remeasurement of leases 31  (1.03)  (3.39)
Lease rent waiver 31  (79.88)  (78.40)
Interest income of lease receivable 31  (0.93)  (1.24)
Operating profit before working capital changes  6,076.51  2,780.22 
Movement in working capital:
(Increase) / decrease in loans and advances  (1,16,654.45)  (1,37,814.30)
(Increase) / decrease in other non financial assets  (332.95)  (1,062.45)
(Increase) / decrease in other financial assets  2,360.26  740.89 
Increase / (decrease) in other non financial liabilities 23  16.36  79.04 
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities  2,456.55  (4,340.98)
Increase / (decrease) in other payables  (61.29)  33.21 
Cash generated from operation  (1,06,139.01)  (1,39,584.37)
Direct taxes net of refund / (direct taxes paid)  (2,387.59)  1,112.27 
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (A)  (1,08,526.60)  (1,38,472.10)
B) Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed and intangible assets 11-12  (317.85)  (87.61)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  1.40  13.31 
Proceeds from sale of security receipts 7  160.51  347.68 
Purchase of investments  (4,40,452.01)  (1,91,327.50)
Proceeds from sale of investments  4,36,881.51  1,99,983.82 
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

 (H in Lakh)

 Particulars  Notes
 For the year 

ended
March 31,  2022 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

Investment in commercial paper  (52,693.17)  -   
Proceeds on maturity of commercial paper  45,316.93  -   
Investment in fixed deposit  (1,23,419.68)  (73,327.50)
Proceeds on maturity of fixed deposits  1,15,203.61  69,800.07 
Interest received (others)  679.89  675.04 
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B)  (18,638.86)  6,077.31 
C) Cash flow from financing activities
Increase/(decrease) of debt securities  (4,500.00)  18,800.00 
Issue of equity shares (including share premium ) 24-25  49,913.81  -   
Lease liabilities paid 20  (748.88)  (323.94)
Interest paid on  lease liabilities 32  (96.02)  (94.73)
Increase/(decrease) of borrowings  77,710.34  1,09,384.75 
NCD issue expenses   (49.89)  (128.83)
Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C)  1,22,229.36  1,27,637.25 
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (4,936.10)  (4,757.54)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  10,113.47  14,871.01 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  5,177.37  10,113.47 

 Component of cash and cash equivalents  
 For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2022 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

Cash on hand  0.01  6.38 
Balances with banks:
 	 - Current Account /Cash Credit Account  3,162.00  5,791.35 
	 - in deposit accounts having original maturity less than three months  2,015.36  4,315.74 
 Total Cash and cash equivalents  5,177.37  10,113.47 

In terms of our report attached
For T R  Chadha & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 Shriram Housing Finance Limited
Firm Registration No: 006711N/N500028

Pramod Tilwani	 Subramanian Jambunathan	 Y. S. Chakravarti
Partner	 Managing Director and CEO	 Director
Membership No:076650	 DIN:00969478	 DIN:00052308

	 Gauri Shankar Agarwal	 Puja Shah
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai	 Place: Srinagar
Date: 25th April , 2022	 Date: 25th April , 2022

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements     1-95
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Statement of changes in equity 
for the year ended March 31, 2022

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
March 31,  2022

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  21,416.00  21,416.00 
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors  -    -   
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period  21,416.00  21,416.00 
Changes in equity share capital during the year  11,111.11  -   
Balance at the end of the reporting period  32,527.11  21,416.00 

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Total

Statutory 
reserve

Share 
option 

outstanding

Securities 
premium

Deemed 
investment

Retained 
Earnings

Actuarial gains/ 
(losses)

Balance as at 
April 1, 2020

 3,731.49  77.30  12,180.00  183.91  13,640.99  71.58  29,885.27 

Profit for the year  6,238.30  6,238.30 
Remeasurement of 
the net defined benefit 
liability/asset

 2.34  2.34 

Transferred from 
retained earnings to 
statutory reserve

 1,254.00  (1,254.00)  -   

Transfer to retained 
earnings

 (1.81)  1.81  -   

Share-based payments  105.14  105.14 
Balance as at 
March 31, 2021

 4,985.49  180.63  12,180.00  183.91  18,627.10  73.92  36,231.05 

a. Equity Share Capital

b. Other Equity
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Statement of changes in equity 
for the year ended March 31, 2022

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Total

Statutory 
reserve

Share 
option 

outstanding

Securities 
premium

Deemed 
investment

Retained 
Earnings

Actuarial gains/ 
(losses)

Balance as at 
April 1, 2021

 4,985.49  180.63  12,180.00  183.91  18,627.10  73.92  36,231.05 

Profit for the year  8,034.13  8,034.13 
Additions during Year  38,802.70  38,802.70 
Remeasurement of 
the net defined benefit 
liability/asset

 14.41  14.41 

Transferred from 
retained earnings to 
statutory reserve

 1,613.72  (1,613.72)  -   

Share-based payments  149.93  149.93 
Balance as at 
March 31, 2022

 6,599.21  330.56 50,982.70  183.91  25,047.51  88.33 83,232.20 

In terms of our report attached
For T R  Chadha & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 Shriram Housing Finance Limited
Firm Registration No: 006711N/N500028

Pramod Tilwani	 Subramanian Jambunathan	 Y. S. Chakravarti
Partner	 Managing Director and CEO	 Director
Membership No:076650	 DIN:00969478	 DIN:00052308

	 Gauri Shankar Agarwal	 Puja Shah
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai	 Place: Srinagar
Date: 25th April , 2022	 Date: 25th April , 2022

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements     1-95

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports

Shriram Housing Finance Limited 97

Financial Statements



Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

1.	 Corporate Information

	 Shriram Housing Finance Limited (the Company) is 
a public limited company domiciled in India and is 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956. The Corporate Identification Number (CIN) 
is CIN U65929TN2010PLC078004.The Company 
received its Certificate of Registration from National 
Housing Bank (NHB) as required under Section 29A 
of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, on August 4, 
2011. The Company is primarily engaged in the business 
of providing loans for construction or purchase of 
residential property and loans against property, 
Company’s non-convertible debentures are listed with 
BSE limited.

	 The Company is a subsidiary of Shriram City Union 
Finance Ltd. 

	 The registered office of the Company is at No. 123, 
Angappa Naicken Street, Chennai – 600 001. 

2.	 Basis of preparation and presentation

	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
and the Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared 
and presented in the format prescribed in the Division 
III of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”). 
The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and 
presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement 
of Cash Flows”. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit 
and Loss, Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of 
Changes in Equity are together referred as the financial 
statement of the Company.

	 The financial statements of the Company have been 
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, under Section 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended from time 
to time). The financial statements are prepared and 
presented on going concern basis and the relevant 
provisions of the ACT and the guidelines and directives 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and National 
Housing Bank (“NHB”) to the extent applicable.

	 The financial statements have been prepared under 
the historical cost convention, as modified by the 
application of fair value measurements for certain 

financial instruments required or allowed by relevant Ind 
AS. Accounting policies have been consistently applied 
to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

	 The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees 
(INR) which is the functional currency of the Company 
and the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Company operates and all values are 
rounded to the nearest lakh, except when otherwise 
indicated.

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally 
reported on a gross basis except when, there is an 
unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognised amounts without being contingent on a 
future event and the parties intend to settle on a net 
basis in the following circumstances:

	 i.	 The normal course of business

	 ii.	 The event of default

	 iii.	 The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the 
Company and/or its counterparties

3.	 Significant accounting policies

3.1	 Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with the Ind AS requires the management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the 
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the 
reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in 
which the estimates are revised and future periods are 
affected. The Management believes that the estimates 
used in preparation of the financial statements are 
prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due 
to these estimates and the differences between the 
actual results and the estimates are recognised in the 
periods in which the results are known / materialise. 

	 Some of the areas involving significant estimation / 
judgement are determination of Expected Credit Loss, 
fair valuation of Investments, income taxes, share based 
payments and employee benefits.
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Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

3.2	 Revenue from operations

	 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured and there 
exists reasonable certainty of its recovery.

	 (i)	 Interest and similar income

		  Interest income is recognised by applying the 
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying 
amount of financial assets other than credit-
impaired assets and financial assets classified as 
measured at Fair value through Profit and loss 
(FVTPL).

		  The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed 

		  a.	 As the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts through the expected 
life of the financial asset to the gross carrying 
amount of a financial asset. 

		  b.	 By considering all the contractual terms of 
the financial instrument in estimating the cash 
flows 

		  c.	 Including all fees received between parties 
to the contract that are an integral part of the 
effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all 
other premiums or discounts.  

		  Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the 
future cash flows is recognised in interest income 
with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying 
amount of the assets. Interest income on credit 
impaired assets is recognised by applying the 
effective interest rate to the net amortised cost 
amount (i.e.net of provision)of the financial asset.

	 (ii)	 Dividend Income

		  Dividend income is recognised when the right to 
receive the payment is established.. 

	 (iii)	 Fees & Commission Income 

		  Fees and commissions are recognised when the 
Company satisfies the performance obligation, at 
fair value of the consideration received or receivable 
based on a five-step model as set out below, unless 
included in the effective interest calculation: 

		  Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A 
contract is defined as an agreement between two 
or more parties that creates enforceable rights 
and obligations and sets out the criteria for every 
contract that must be met.

		  Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the 
contract: A performance obligation is a promise in 
a contract with a customer to transfer a good or 
service to the customer.

		  Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The 
transaction price is the amount of consideration 
to which the Company expects to be entitled in 
exchange for transferring promised goods or services 
to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf 
of third parties.

		  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the 
performance obligations in the contract: For a 
contract that has more than one performance 
obligation, the Company allocates the transaction 
price to each performance obligation in an amount 
that depicts the amount of consideration to which 
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for 
satisfying each performance obligation

		  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the 
Company satisfies a performance obligation.

	 (iv)	 Net gain on Fair value changes 

		  Any differences between the fair values of financial 
assets classified as fair value through the profit or 
loss (refer Note 28), held by the Company on the 
balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised 
gain/ loss. In cases if there is a net gain in the 
aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net gains on 
fair value changes “under Revenue from operations 
and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed under 
“Expenses” in the statement of Profit and Loss.

		  Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of 
financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt 
instruments measured at Fair value through Other 
Comprehensive Income (“FVOCI”) is recognised in 
net gain/ loss on fair value changes.

		  However, net gain / loss on derecognition of 
financial instruments classified as amortised cost is 
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Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

presented separately under the respective head in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 (v)	 Rental Income

		  Rental income from subleases is recognized as per 
contractual terms. Subleases given by the company 
are in nature of operating leases i.e. the company 
does not transfer substantially all of the risks and 
benefits of ownership of the asset.

3.3	 Expenses 

	 (i)	 Finance costs

		  Finance costs represents Interest expense 
recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate 
(EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial 
liabilities.

		  The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed 

		  a.	 As the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash payments through the expected 
life of the financial liability to the gross carrying 
amount of the amortised cost of a financial 
liability. 

		  b.	 By considering all the contractual terms of 
the financial instrument in estimating the cash 
flows 

		  c.	 Including all fees paid between parties to the 
contract that are an integral part of the effective 
interest rate, transaction costs, and all other 
premiums or discounts.  

		  Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the 
future cash flows is recognised in interest expenses 
with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying 
amount of the liability.

		  Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially 
recognized as part of the carrying value of the 
financial liability and amortized over the expected 
life using the effective interest method. 

		  Interest on lease liability is recognized on the basis 
incremental borrowing rate used for discounting 
the lease liability. 

		  Guarantee commission is in respect of corporate 
guarantee taken from holding company.

		  Net interest on net defined liability of defined 
employee benefit plan (i.e. interest cost on defined 
benefit obligation net of any interest income on 
plan investments) which reflects change in net 
liability arising from passage of time forms part of 
finance cost.

	 (ii)	 Retirement and other employee benefits

		  Short term employee benefit

		  All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve 
months of rendering the service are classified as 
short-term employee benefits. The undiscounted 
amount of short-term employee benefits expected 
to be paid in exchange for the services rendered 
by employees is recognised as an expense during 
the period. Benefits such as salaries, wages, etc. 
and the expected cost of the bonus/ex-gratia are 
recognised in the period in which the employee 
renders the related service.

		  Post-employment employee benefits

		  a)	 Defined contribution schemes

			   Eligible employees of the Company are entitled 
to receive benefits under the Provident Fund 
and Employees State Insurance scheme, 
defined contribution plans in which both 
the employee and the Company contribute 
monthly at a stipulated rate. The Company 
has no liability for future benefits other than 
its annual contribution and recognises such 
contributions as an expense in the period in 
which employee renders the related service.

		  b)	 Defined benefit schemes

			   The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined 
benefit retirement plan covering all employees. 
The plan provides for lump sum payments to 
employees upon death while in employment or 
on separation from employment after serving 
for the stipulated years mentioned under ‘The 
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972’. The present 
value of the obligation under such defined 
benefit plan is determined based on actuarial 
valuation, carried out by an independent 
actuary at each Balance Sheet date, using 
the Projected Unit Credit method, which 
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Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

recognizes each period of service as giving 
rise to an additional unit of employee benefit 
entitlement and measures each unit separately 
to build up the final obligation.  

			   The obligation is measured at the present value 
of the estimated future cash flows. The discount 
rates used for determining the present value of 
the obligation under defined benefit plan are 
based on the market yields on Government 
Securities as at the Balance Sheet date.    

			   Net interest recognized in profit or loss is 
calculated by applying the discount rate used 
to measure the defined benefit obligation 
to the net defined benefit liability or asset. 
The actual return on the plan assets above or 
below the discount rate is recognized as part 
of re-measurement of net defined liability or 
asset through other comprehensive income. 
An actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions that may differ from actual 
developments in the future. These include the 
determination of the discount rate, attrition rate, 
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due 
to the complexities involved in the valuation and 
its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly 
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All 
assumptions are reviewed annually.

			   The Company contributes on a lumpsum 
basis towards the ascertained liabilities to the 
Trustees – Shriram Housing Finance Limited 
Employees Group Gratuity Fund Scheme. 
Trustees administer contributions made to the 
trust and contributions are invested in a scheme 
of insurance with the IRDA approved Insurance 
Companies. 

			   Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial 
gains and losses and the return on plan 
assets (excluding amounts included in net 
interest on the net defined benefit liability), 
are recognized immediately in the balance 
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to 
retained earnings through OCI in the period in 
which they occur. Re-measurements are not 

reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent 
periods.

		  Other long-term employee benefits

		  Company’s liabilities towards compensated 
absences to employees are accrued on the basis 
of valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, carried 
out by an independent actuary using Projected Unit 
Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise 
experience adjustments and the effects of changes 
in actuarial assumptions and are recognised 
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
During the year company has discontinued 
providing liabilities towards compensated absences 
according to Company’s policy.

	 (iii)	 Leases:

		  The determination of whether an arrangement is a 
lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance 
of the arrangement and requires an assessment 
of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets 
or whether the arrangement conveys a right to 
use the asset. A contract is, or contains, a lease if 
the contract conveys the right to control the use 
of an identified asset for a time in exchange for a 
consideration. The Company, at the inception of a 
contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or 
not lease. For arrangements entered into prior to 1st 
April 2019, the Company has determined whether 
the arrangement contains a lease on the basis of 
facts and circumstances existing on the date of 
transition.

		  The Company’s lease asset classes consist of leases 
for buildings, service amenities and furniture therein 
and motor vehicle. 

		  The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a 
lease liability at the lease commencement date. The 
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which 
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before 
the commencement date, plus any initial direct 
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle 
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Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

and remove the underlying asset or to restore the 
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, 
less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use 
asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-
line method from the commencement date to the 
end of the lease term.

		  The lease liability is initially measured at the present 
value of the lease payments that are not paid at 
the commencement date, discounted using the 
Company’s incremental borrowing rate at the 
transition date in case of leases existing as on the 
date of transition date and in case of leases entered 
after transition date, incremental borrowing rate as 
on the date of lease commencement date. In case 
of existing leases the said date would be the date of 
transition. It is remeasured when there is a change 
in future lease payments arising from a change in an 
index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s 
estimate of the amount expected to be payable 
under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company 
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise 
a purchase, extension or termination option. 
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a 
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in 
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

		  The Company has elected not to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term 
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less 
and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with 
these leases as an expense over the lease term.

		  In case of subleases, the Company assesses whether 
the sublease is a finance lease or operating lease at 
its commencement on basis of its contractual terms 
and conditions. The discount rate used for the head 
lease is used to measure the investment in the 
sublease in case it is a finance lease.

		  In case of leases where Ind AS 116 is not applicable 
and where the Company has opted for exemption 
available in Ind AS 116, rent expense representing 
operating lease payments are recognised as an 
expense in the statement of profit and loss on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term, unless the 
increase is in line with expected general inflation, in 

which case lease payments are recognised based 
on contractual terms.

	 (iv)	 Impairment of non-financial assets

		  The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each 
balance sheet date if there is any indication of 
impairment based on internal/external factors. An 
impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying 
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 
The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, 
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flow discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and risks specific to the asset.

		  In determining net selling price, recent market 
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no 
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate 
valuation model is used. After impairment, 
depreciation is provided on the revised carrying 
amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

	 (v)	 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR)

		  The Company accounts the expenditure incurred 
towards Corporate Social Responsibility as required 
under the Act as a charge to the statement of profit 
and loss.  

	 (vi)	 Rating Expenses

		  The company evaluates whether rating fee is 
directly attributable and incremental to each 
borrowing/NCD. If such fees are directly attributable 
to the acquisition of the borrowing, then same 
is considered for EIR. If such fees are not directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the borrowing, 
then the same is charged to Profit and Loss 
proportionately as and when the borrowing facility 
is availed.

	 (vii)	Mortgage Guarantee Fee not written off

		  Mortgage Guarantee fee is the guarantee fee paid 
to a Mortgage Insurance for risk mitigation when 
any loan becomes NPA. The Company has decided 
to amortise such fee on straight line basis over the 
expected life of loan as expected by management 
or actual life of loan whichever is earlier.
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	 (viii)	Other expenses

		  All Other expenses are recognized in the period 
they accrue.

	 (ix)	 Taxes

		  Income tax expense comprises of current and 
deferred income tax. Income tax expense is 
recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognized directly in equity, in which case it is 
recognized in other comprehensive income.

		  Current Tax

		  Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and 
prior years are measured at the amount expected 
to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation 
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted, or 
substantively enacted, by the reporting date where 
the Company operates and generates taxable 
income.

		  Advance taxes and provisions for current income 
taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-
setting advance tax paid and income tax provision 
arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the 
relevant taxpaying unit intends to settle the asset 
and liability on a net basis.

		  Deferred tax

		  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for 
temporary differences arising between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. 
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates 
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date and are expected to 
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is 
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

		  Deferred tax assets are only recognised for 
temporary differences, unused tax losses and 
unused tax credits if it is probable that future taxable 
amounts will arise to utilise those temporary 
differences and losses. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the 
related tax benefit will be realised.

		  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities and they relate to income 
taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same 
taxable entity, but they intend to settle current tax 
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets 
and liabilities are realised simultaneously.

		  Goods and services tax /value added taxes paid on 
acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

		  Expenses and assets are recognised net of the 
goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, 
except:

		  1.	 When the tax incurred on a purchase of 
assets or services is not recoverable from the 
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid 
is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition 
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as 
applicable.

		  2.	 When receivables and payables are stated with 
the amount of tax included.

			   As per the extant guidelines issued by the 
competent authority related to input tax credits.

		  The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable 
to, the taxation authority is included as part of 
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

3.4	 Property, plant and equipment

	 An item is recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is 
probable that the future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Company and its cost 
can be measured reliably. PPE are initially recognised at 
cost. The initial cost of Property, plant and equipment 
(PPE) comprises its purchase price, freight, duties, taxes 
and any other incidental expenses directly attributable 
to bringing the asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by the management. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment, (if any). Changes in the 
expected useful life are accounted for by changing the 
amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, 
and treated as changes in accounting estimates.
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	 Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only if it increases the future 
benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably. 
Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

	 Depreciation

	 Depreciation is calculated using the straight–line method to write down the cost of property and equipment to their 
residual values over their estimated useful lives estimated by the management. 

	 The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Particulars

Useful life as 
prescribed by 
Schedule II to 
Companies Act, 2013

Useful life 
estimated  
by Company

Electrical installation and equipment 10 years 10 years
Furniture and fixture 10 years 10 years 
Office equipment 5 years 5 years 
Computer 3 years 5 years
Servers 6 years 6 years

	 Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of lease or estimated period of 
useful life of such improvement, subject to a maximum 
period of 60 months. Leasehold improvements include 
all expenditure incurred on the leasehold premises that 
have future economic benefits.

	 The residual values, useful lives and methods of 
depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed annually.

	 Property, plant and equipment is derecognised on 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is recognised in other income/ 
expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year 
the asset is derecognised. The date of disposal of an 
item of property, plant and equipment is the date the 
recipient obtains control of that item in accordance with 
the requirements for determining when a performance 
obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115.

3.5	 Intangible assets

	 An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can 
be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected 
future economic benefits that are attributable to it will 
flow to the Company.

	 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured 
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an intangible 
asset comprises its purchase price and any directly 
attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for 
its intended use and net of any trade discounts and 
rebates. Following initial recognition, intangible assets 
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation 
and any accumulated impairment losses.

	 The Company considers that the useful life of an intangible 
asset comprising of computer software will not exceed 5 
years from the date when the asset is available for use. 
Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern 
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in 
the asset, are accounted for by changing the amortisation 
period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then 
treated as changes in accounting estimates. 

	 Amortisation is calculated using the straight–line 
method to write down the cost of intangible assets to 
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. 
Amortisation on assets acquired/sold during the year is 
recognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss from/ up to the date of acquisition/sale.

	 Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible 
assets are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when 
the asset is derecognised.
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3.6	 Investment Property

	 Investment property consists of vacant land. Investment 
properties are measured initially at cost including 
transaction costs. Investment property being land is not 
depreciated.

	 Investment properties are derecognised either when they 
have been disposed of or when they are permanently 
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is 
expected from their disposal. The difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of 
derecognition.

3.7	 Foreign currency translation

	 (i)	 Functional and presentational currency

		  The standalone financial statements are presented 
in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency 
of the Company and the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company 
operates.

	 (ii)	 Transactions and balances

		  Initial recognition:

		  Foreign currency transactions are translated into 
the functional currency using the exchange rates 
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

		  Conversion:

		  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the 
reporting date, are translated at the reporting date 
at the closing exchange rate and the resultant 
exchange differences are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

		  Non–monetary items that are measured at historical 
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
spot exchange rates as at the date of recognition.

3.8	 Assets held for sale:

	 Assets held for sale comprises of house properties, 
which were held as collaterals against the loans given 
to customer, whose physical and legal possessing has 
been taken over by the company due to customers’ 

default on repayment of the loan. Management intends 
to sell these properties for which regular auctions are 
conducted.

	 Such assets are classified as held for sale when their 
carrying amount is intended to be recovered principally 
through sale rather than through continued use. 

	 At the time of initial classification as assets held for 
sale, these assets are measured at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value plus directly attributable cost 
related to Asset recovered under SARFESAI Act. The fair 
value of the assets is determined by an independent 
valuer. These assets are carried at the fair value 
determined on initial recognition, unless there are 
indicators of significant changes in real estate market 
condition requiring a revised valuation.

	 Asset will have to be sold within three years from 
possession date. If the investment in such properties 
(land and buildings) exceeds 20% of capital fund as 
per NBFC – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) 
directions, 2021 (of which such investment over and 
above 10% of owned fund shall be in residential units), 
the excess shall be written off.

3.9 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents comprise the short-term, 
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash (short-term deposits with an 
original maturity of three months or less) and are subject 
to an insignificant risk of change in value, cheques on 
hand and balances with banks. They are held for the 
purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments 
(rather than for investment or other purposes).

	 For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash 
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term 
deposits, as defined above

3.10 Cash Flow Statement

	 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, 
whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects 
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or 
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or 
payments and item of income or expenses associated 
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows 
from operating, investing and financing activities of the 
Company are segregated.
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3.11 Financial instruments

	 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and 
financial liabilities are recognised when the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments.

3.11.1	 Financial Assets

3.11.1.1	 Classification 

		  The Company classifies its financial assets into the 
following measurement categories:

		  1.	 Financial assets to be measured at amortised 
cost

		  2.	 Financial assets to be measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income(FVOCI)

		  3.	 Financial assets to be measured at fair value 
through profit or loss account (FVTPL)

		  The classification depends on the contractual 
terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the 
Company’s business model for managing financial 
assets which are explained below:

		  1.	 Business model assessment

			   The Company determines its business model 
at the level that best reflects how it manages 
groups of financial assets to achieve its business 
objective. The Company's business model is 
not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument 
basis, but at a higher level of aggregated 
portfolios and is based on observable factors 
such as:

			   a.	 How the performance of the business 
model and the financial assets held within 
that business model are evaluated and 
reported to the entity's key management 
personnel

			   b.	 The risks that affect the performance of the 
business model (and the financial assets 
held within that business model) and the 
way those risks are managed 

			   c.	 How managers of the business are 
compensated (for example, whether the 
compensation is based on the fair value of 
the assets managed or on the contractual 
cash flows collected)

			   d.	 The expected frequency, value and timing 
of sales are also important aspects of the 
Company’s assessment. The business 
model assessment is based on reasonably 
expected scenarios without taking 
'worst case' or 'stress case’ scenarios 
into account. If cash flows after initial 
recognition are realised in a way that is 
different from the Company's original 
expectations, the Company does not 
change the classification of the remaining 
financial assets held in that business 
model, but incorporates such information 
when assessing newly originated or newly 
purchased financial assets going forward.

		  2.	 The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest 
(SPPI) test 

			   As a second step of its classification process 
the Company assesses the contractual terms of 
financial assets to identify whether they meet 
the SPPI test. ‘Principal’ for the purpose of this 
test is defined as the fair value of the financial 
asset at initial recognition and may change over 
the life of the financial asset (for example, if there 
are repayments of principal or amortisation 
of the premium/discount).In making this 
assessment, the Company considers whether 
the contractual cash flows are consistent with a 
basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes 
only consideration for the time value of money, 
credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit 
margin that is consistent with a basic lending 
arrangement. Where the contractual terms 
introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are 
inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, 
the related financial asset is classified and 
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

3.11.1.2	 Initial Recognition –Financial assets are initially 
recognised at fair value. 
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3.11.1.3 Subsequent Measurement

		  Financial assets measured at amortised cost

		  Debt instruments

		  Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost 
where they have:

		  a)	 contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on 
specified dates, that represent solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding; and

		  b)	 are held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by holding to collect 
contractual cash flows.

		  These debt instruments are initially recognised at 
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs 
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

		  Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortisation is included in Interest income in the 
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		  The measurement of credit impairment is based 
on the three-stage expected credit loss model 
described below in Note 3.14 Impairment of 
financial assets.

		�  Financial assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income

		  Debt instruments

		  Investments in debt instruments are measured at 
fair value through other comprehensive income 
where they have:

		  a)	 contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on 
specified dates, that represent solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding; and

		  b)	 are held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets.

		  These debt instruments are initially recognised at 
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs 
and subsequently measured at fair value. Gains 
and losses arising from changes in fair value are 
included in other comprehensive income within a 
separate component of equity. Impairment losses 
or reversals, interest revenue and are recognised 
in profit and loss. Upon disposal, the cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognised in other 
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to 
the statement of profit and loss. The measurement 
of credit impairment is based on the three-stage 
expected credit loss model as applied to financial 
assets at amortised cost. The expected credit loss 
model is described below in Note 3.14 Impairment 
of financial assets.

		  Equity instruments

		  Investment in equity instruments that are neither held 
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised 
by the Company in a business combination to which 
Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combination’ applies, are 
measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income, where an irrevocable election can be made 
by management and when such instruments meet 
the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial 
Instruments: Presentation. Such classification is 
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. 
As at reporting date, there are no equity instruments 
measured at FVOCI.

		  Amounts presented in other comprehensive 
income are not subsequently transferred to profit or 
loss. Dividends on such investments are recognised 
in profit or loss.

		  Financial assets measured at fair value through 
profit or loss

		  Items at fair value through profit or loss comprise:

		  •	 Investments (including equity shares) held for 
trading;

		  •	 Items specifically designated as fair value 
through profit or loss on initial recognition; and

		  •	 Debt instruments with contractual terms that 
do not represent solely payments of principal 
and interest.
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		  Financial instruments held at fair value through 
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, 
with transaction costs recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they 
are measured at fair value and any gains or losses 
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as 
they arise.

		  Financial instruments designated as measured at 
fair value through profit or loss

		  Upon initial recognition, financial instruments 
may be designated as measured at fair value 
through profit or loss. A financial asset may only be 
designated at fair value through profit or loss if doing 
so eliminates or significantly reduces measurement 
or recognition inconsistencies (i.e. eliminates 
an accounting mismatch) that would otherwise 
arise from measuring financial assets or liabilities 
on a different basis. As at the reporting date, the 
Company does not have any financial instruments 
designated as measured at fair value through profit 
or loss.

3.11.2	 Financial Liabilities & Equity Instruments

3.11.2.1	 Classification as debt or equity

		  Debt and equity instruments that are issued are 
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual 
arrangement.

		  A financial liability is a contractual obligation 
to deliver cash or another financial asset or to 
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with 
another entity under conditions that are potentially 
unfavourable to the Company or a contract that 
will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity 
instruments and is a non-derivative contract for 
which the Company is or may be obliged to deliver 
a variable number of its own equity instruments, 
or a derivative contract over own equity that will 
or may be settled other than by the exchange of 
a fixed amount of cash (or another financial asset) 
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity 
instruments.

		  The Company classifies its financial liabilities at 
amortised costs unless it has designated liabilities at 
fair value through the profit and loss account or is 

required to measure liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss such as derivative liabilities.

		  A financial liability may be designated at fair value 
through profit or loss if it eliminates or significantly 
reduces an accounting mismatch or:

		  •	 if a host contract contains one or more 
embedded derivatives; or

		  •	 if financial assets and liabilities are both 
managed and their performance evaluated 
on a fair value basis in accordance with a 
documented risk management or investment 
strategy.

3.11.2.2	 Initial Measurement 

		  Financial liabilities are initially measured fair value 
minus, in case of financial liability not at FVTPL, 
transaction costs directly attributable to acquisition 
or issue. The company’s financial liabilities include 
loans and borrowings and other payables.

3.11.2.3	 Subsequent Measurement 

		  Financial liabilities, except those at FVTPL, are 
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method. Where a financial liability 
is designated at fair value through profit or loss, the 
movement in fair value attributable to changes in 
the Company’s own credit quality is calculated by 
determining the changes in credit spreads above 
observable market interest rates and is presented 
separately in other comprehensive income. As at 
the reporting date, the Company has not designated 
any financial instruments as measured at fair value 
through profit or loss.

3.11.3	 Embedded Derivatives

		  An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid 
instrument that also includes a non-derivative host 
contract with the effect that some of the cash flows 
of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to 
a stand-alone derivative. 

		  If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a 
financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the 
Company does not separate embedded derivatives. 
Rather, it applies the classification requirements 
contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract.
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3.11.4	 Financial Guarantees

		  Financial guarantees given are initially recognised 
in the financial statements at fair value, being the 
premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
the Company’s liability under each guarantee is 
measured at the higher of the amount initially 
recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss. The premium is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a 
straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee.

		  Financial guarantees received are recognised in the 
financial statements at fair value of the premium 
paid. In case of guarantees received without 
consideration from group companies, the fair value 
of premium payable over the life of the guarantee is 
recognised as deemed investment. The fair value of 
premium is recognised as expense in the statement 
of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the life 
of the guarantee.

3.11.5	 Derivatives

		  A derivative is a financial instrument or other 
contract with all of the following characteristics:

		  •	 Its value changes in response to the change in 
a specified interest rate, financial instrument 
price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, 
index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit 
index, or, other variable, provided that , in the 
case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific 
to a party to the contract (i.e. underlying)

		  •	 It requires no initial net investment or an initial net 
investment that is smaller than would be required 
for other types of contracts expected to have a 
similar response to changes in market factors.

		  •	 It is settled at future date.

		  •	 The Company enters into derivative transactions 
with various counterparties to hedge its foreign 
currency risks and interest rate risks. Derivative 
transaction consists of hedging of foreign 
exchange transactions, which includes interest 
rate and currency swaps, interest rate options 
and forwards. The Company undertakes 
derivative transactions for hedging on-balance 
sheet liabilities.

		  Hedge Accounting:

		  Initial Recognition and subsequent remeasurement:

		  The Company uses derivative financial instruments, 
such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its 
foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial 
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on 
the date on which a derivative contract is entered 
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. 
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the 
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when 
the fair value is negative. Any gains and losses 
arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives 
are taken directly to profit or loss.

3.12 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

	 The Company reclassifies a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets only on change in business model 
for managing that financial asset or group of financial 
assets. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

3.13 Determination of fair value

	 On initial recognition, all the financial instruments are 
measured at fair value. For subsequent measurement, 
the Company measures certain categories of financial 
instruments (as explained in note 3.11 above) at fair value 
on each balance sheet date.

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. 
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either:

	 i)	 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

	 ii)	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The 
principal or the most advantageous market must be 
accessible by the Company

	 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using 
the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest.

	 A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 
into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
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economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

	 The Company uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the 
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the 
use of unobservable inputs.

	 In order to show how fair values have been derived, 
financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy 
of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

	 Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs 
used in the valuation as unadjusted quoted prices from 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
Company has access to at the measurement date. The 
Company considers markets as active only if there are 
sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume 
and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when 
there are binding and exercisable price quotes available 
on the balance sheet date.

	 Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs 
that are used for valuation and are significant, are 
derived from directly or indirectly observable market 
data available over the entire period of the instrument’s 
life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets 
or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical 
instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs 
other than quoted prices such as interest rates and 
yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In 
addition, adjustments may be required for the condition 
or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates 
to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. 
However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable 
inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, 
the Company will classify the instruments as Level 3.

	 Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one 
or more unobservable inputs those are significant to the 
measurement as whole.

	 Difference between transaction price and fair value at 
initial recognition.

	 The best evidence of the fair value of a financial 
instrument at initial recognition is the transaction 
price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given 
or received) unless the fair value of that instrument 

is evidenced by comparison with other observable 
current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e. 
without modification or repackaging) or based on a 
valuation technique whose variables include only data 
from observable markets. When such evidence exists, 
the Company recognises the difference between the 
transaction price and the fair value in profit or loss on 
initial recognition (i.e. on day one).

	 When the transaction price of the instrument differs from 
the fair value at origination and the fair value is based 
on a valuation technique using only inputs observable 
in market transactions, the Company recognises the 
difference between the transaction price and fair value 
in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where 
fair value is based on models for which some of the 
inputs are not observable, the difference between the 
transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only 
recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become 
observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

3.14 Impairment of financial assets

	 Overview of the ECL principles

	 The Company records allowance for expected credit 
losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not held 
at FVTPL, together with financial guarantee contracts 
and loan commitments, lease receivables, and financial 
assets held at FVOCI; in this section all referred to 
as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not 
subject to impairment under Ind AS 109.

	 The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected 
to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected 
credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase 
in credit risk since origination, in which case, the 
allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit 
loss.

	 Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting 
from all possible default events over the expected life of 
a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion 
of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from 
default events on a financial instrument that are possible 
within the 12 months after the reporting date.

	 Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated 
on either an individual basis or a collective basis, 
depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio 
of financial instruments. The Company has grouped its 
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loan portfolio into housing loan, non-housing loan, and 
project finance.

	 The Company has established a policy to perform an 
assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of 
whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased 
significantly since initial recognition, by considering 
the change in the risk of default occurring over the 
remaining life of the financial instrument. The Company 
does the assessment of significant increase in credit risk 
at a borrower level. If a borrower has various facilities 
having different past due status, then the highest days 
past due (DPD) is considered to be applicable for all the 
facilities of that borrower.

	 Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans 
into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described below:

	 Stage 1:12-months ECL

	 All exposures where there has not been a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that 
has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not 
credit impaired upon origination are classified under this 
stage. The company classifies all loan advances up to 30 
days default under this category. Stage 1 loan advances 
also include facilities where the credit risk has improved, 
and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.For 
these assets, 12-month ECL are recognized and interest 
revenue is calculated on the gross carrying amount of 
the asset.

	 For Investments measured at FVOCI the investment is 
classified as a Stage 1 in case there is no change in the 
credit rating or a change of one notch downward in the 
credit rating.

	 Stage 2: Lifetime ECL – not credit impaired

	 All exposures where there has been a significant increase 
in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit 
impaired are classified under this stage. More than 30 
Days Past Due is considered as significant increase in 
credit risk. For these assets, lifetime ECL are recognized, 
but interest revenue is still calculated on the gross 
carrying amount of the asset.

	 For Investments measured at FVOCI, in case there is 
a downgrade in credit rating by two or more notches, 
the investment is taken as at Stage 2 and life time PD is 
applied. 

	 Stage 3: Lifetime ECL – credit impaired

	 All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one 
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred 
are classified in this stage. For exposures that have 
become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised 
and interest revenue is calculated by applying the 
effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of 
provision) rather than the gross carrying amount. More 
than 90 Days Past Due is considered as default for 
classifying a financial instrument as credit impaired. If an 
event (for e.g. any natural calamity) warrants a provision 
higher than as mandated under ECL methodology, the 
Company may classify the financial asset in Stage 3 
accordingly.

	 For Investments measured at FVOCI, any investment 
which is non performing or in default or restructured is 
taken to be as at Stage 3. 

	 Credit-impaired financial assets:

	 At each reporting date, the company assesses whether 
financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt 
financial assets carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A 
financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more 
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

	 Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes 
the following observable data:

	 a)	 Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or 
issuer;

	 b)	 A breach of contract such as a default or past due 
event;

	 c)	 The restructuring of a loan or advance by the 
company on terms that the company would not 
consider otherwise;

	 d)	 It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter 
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

	 e)	 The disappearance of an active market for a security 
because of financial difficulties.

	 ECLs are recognised as impairment on financial 
instruments in profit and loss. In the case of debt 
instruments measured at fair value through other 
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comprehensive income, the measurement of ECLs 
is based on the three-stage approach as applied to 
financial assets at amortised cost. 

	 ECL on Debt instruments measured at fair value 
through OCI

	 The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do 
not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets 
in the balance sheet, which remains at fair value. Instead, 
an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the 
assets were measured at amortised cost is recognised 
in OCI as an accumulated impairment amount, with a 
corresponding charge to profit or loss. The accumulated 
loss recognised in OCI is recycled to the profit and loss 
upon derecognition of the assets. As at the reporting 
date, the Company does not have any debt instruments 
measured at fair value through OCI.

	 Financial guarantee contracts

	 The Company’s liability under financial guarantee 
is measured at the higher of the amount initially 
recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss, and the ECL provision. 
For this purpose, the Company estimates ECLs by 
applying a credit conversion factor. As at the reporting 
date, the Company does not have any such instruments.

	 Undrawn Loan commitments

	 ECL is calculated on the undrawn loan commitments 
considering of same stage as if considered for part 
disbursed and considering as Stage 1 if fully undisbursed. 
This is shown in the balance sheet as a provision.

	 Lease receivables

	 The Company has adopted simplified approach for ECL 
on lease receivable and calculates Lifetime ECL using 
inputs similar to those used for loan portfolio.

	 The mechanics of ECL

	 The Company calculates ECLs based on probability-
weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash 
shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A 
cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows 
that are due to the Company in accordance with the 
contract and the cash flows that the Company expects 
to receive.

	 The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined 
below and the key elements are, as follows:

	 Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is 
an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time 
horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over 
the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously 
derecognised and is still in the portfolio.PD is considered 
as an average of past 8 years PD for calculating ECL

	 Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is 
an estimate of the exposure at a future default date.

	 Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an 
estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default 
occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due and those 
that the Company would expect to receive, including 
from the realisation of any collateral in respect of assets 
which has defaulted in last 7 years It is usually expressed 
as a percentage of the EAD. 

	 Forward looking information

	 While estimating the expected credit losses, the 
Company reviews macro-economic developments 
occurring in the economy and market it operates in. 
On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there is 
any relationship between key economic trends like 
GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by the 
Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate 
of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its 
internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD 
rates by the Company may not be always reflective 
of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are 
embedded in the methodology to reflect such macro-
economic trends reasonably.

	 Collateral Valuation

	 To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the 
Company seeks to use collateral, wherever possible. The 
collateral comes in the form of immovable properties. 
The fair value of collateral affects the calculation of 
ECLs. Collateral is valued based on data provided by 
independent valuers. 

	 Collateral repossessed 

	 In its normal course of business whenever default occurs, 
the Company may take possession of properties or other 
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assets in its retail portfolio and generally disposes such 
assets through auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any 
surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As 
a result of this practice, assets under legal repossession 
processes are not recorded on the balance sheet.

3.15 Write-offs

	 The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a 
financial asset when the Company has no reasonable 
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety 
or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when 
the Company determines that the borrower does not 
have assets or sources of income that could generate 
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to 
write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans 
are credited to the statement of profit and loss. However, 
financial assets that are written off could still be subject 
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the 
company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

3.16 Recognition and derecognition of financial assets and 
liabilities

	 Recognition:

	 a)	 Loans and Advances are initially recognised when 
the cheque is issued or funds are transferred to the 
customers

	 b)	 Investments are initially recognised on the 
settlement date.

	 c)	 Debt securities and borrowings are initially 
recognised when funds reach the Company.

	 d)	 Other financial assets and liabilities are initially 
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that 
the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. This includes regular 
way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets 
that require delivery of assets within the time frame 
generally established by regulation or convention in 
the market place. 

	 Derecognition 

	 Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial 
modification of terms and conditions:

	 The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as 
a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions 
have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, 

it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised 
as derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an 
impairment loss has not already been recorded. The 
newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL 
measurement purposes, unless the new loan is deemed 
to be Purchased or Originated as Credit Impaired (POCI).

	 If the modification does not result in cash flows that 
are substantially different, the modification does not 
result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash 
flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company 
records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an 
impairment loss has not already been recorded.

	 Derecognition of financial assets other than due to 
substantial modification

	 a)	 Financial assets

		  A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a 
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive 
cash flows from the financial asset have expired. 
The Company also derecognises the financial asset 
if it has both transferred the financial asset and the 
transfer qualifies for derecognition.

		  The Company has transferred the financial asset if, 
and only if, either:

		  i.	 The Company has transferred its contractual 
rights to receive cash flows from the financial 
asset, or

		  ii.	 It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has 
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash 
flows in full without material delay to a third 
party under a ‘pass–through’ arrangement.

		  Pass-through arrangements are transactions 
whereby the Company retains the contractual 
rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset 
(the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual 
obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more 
entities (the 'eventual recipients'), when all of the 
following three conditions are met:

		  i.	 The Company has no obligation to pay 
amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has 
collected equivalent amounts from the original 
asset, excluding short-term advances with the 
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right to full recovery of the amount lent plus 
accrued interest at market rates.

		  ii.	 The Company cannot sell or pledge the original 
asset other than as security to the eventual 
recipients.

		  iii.	 The Company has to remit any cash flows it 
collects on behalf of the eventual recipients 
without material delay. In addition, the 
Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash 
flows, except for investments in cash or cash 
equivalents including interest earned, during 
the period between the collection date and 
the date of required remittance to the eventual 
recipients.

		  A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

		  i.	 The Company has transferred substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset, or

		  ii.	 The Company has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks and rewards 
of the asset, but has transferred control of the 
asset.

		  The Company considers control to be transferred 
if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability 
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third 
party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally 
and without imposing additional restrictions on the 
transfer.

		  When the Company has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks and rewards 
and has retained control of the asset, the asset 
continues to be recognised only to the extent of the 
Company’s continuing involvement, in which case, 
the Company also recognises an associated liability. 
The transferred asset and the associated liability 
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 
obligations that the Company has retained.

		  When, as a result of transfer, a financial asset is 
derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results 
in the Company obtaining a new financial asset, the 
Company recognises the new financial asset at fair 
value.

	 b)	 Financial liabilities

		  A financial liability is derecognised when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled 
or expires. Where an existing financial liability is 
replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange 
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference between the carrying value of the 
original financial liability and the consideration paid 
is recognised in profit or loss.

3.17 Deemed investment

	 Fair value of corporate guarantee taken from Holding 
company is recognised as Deemed Investment and 
corresponding effect is given to prepaid expenses which 
is amortised.

3.18 Offsetting

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally 
reported on a gross basis except when, there is an 
unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognised amounts and intends to settle on a net 
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously in all of the following circumstances:

	 i.	 The normal course of business

	 ii.	 The event of default

	 iii.	 The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the 
Company and/or its counterparties

3.19 Provisions

	 Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive)  as a result 
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

	 When the effect of the time value of money is material, 
the company determines the level of provision by 
discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate 
reflecting the current rates specific to the liability. As at 
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reporting date, the Company does not have any such 
provision where effect of time value of money is material. 
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the 
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 
The timing of recognition and quantification of the 
liability requires the application of judgement to 
existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject 
to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and 
liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take 
account of changing facts and circumstances.

3.20 Contingent Liabilities 

	 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises 
from past events whose existence will be confirmed 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events beyond the control of the 
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized 
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent 
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there 
is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot 
be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize 
a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the 
financial statements. When there is a possible obligation 
or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is 
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

3.21 Earning Per Share

	 The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per 
share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per 
share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit 
or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year.

	 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per 
share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable 
to equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the year are 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 
shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed 
converted as of the beginning of the period, unless 
they have been issued at a later date. In computing 
the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity 
shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the 
earnings per share or increases loss per share are 
included.

3.22 Employee Stock Option Plan

	 Employees of the Company receive remuneration in 
the form of equity settled share-based payments in 
consideration of the services rendered.

	 The Company recognizes compensation expense 
relating to share-based payments as employee benefit 
expenses’ with a corresponding increase in equity, over 
the vesting period, using the grant date fair-value of 
the option in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-based 
Payments. The grant date fair value of the options is 
calculated using the Black-Scholes model.

	 The estimated fair value of the awards is charged to 
income on a straight-line basis over the requisite 
service period for each separately vesting portion of 
the award as if the award was in substance, multiple 
awards with a corresponding increase to share options 
outstanding account. At the end of each reporting 
period, the expense is reviewed and adjusted to reflect 
changes to the level of options expected to vest. When 
the options are exercised, the Company issues fresh 
equity shares.
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Note 4: Cash and cash equivalents

Note 5: Other bank balances

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021 

Cash on hand  0.01  6.38 
Balances with banks 
	 - in current accounts  3,162.00  5,791.35 
	 - in deposit accounts having original maturity less than three months  2,015.36  4,315.74 
Total  5,177.37  10,113.47 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021 

Other Bank Balances
Fixed deposit with original maturity for more than 3 months but upto  12 months  16,156.13  2,640.65 
Fixed deposit with original maturity of more than 12 months  166.59  256.89 
Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money or security against the 
borrowings, guarantees, other commitments*

 1,454.64  1,503.50 

Total  17,777.36  4,401.04 

Short term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash 
requirements of the company and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.	

*Fixed deposit is under lien for bank Guarantee  purpose to the extent for Rs 25.00 Lakh (March 31, 2021 Rs. 25.00 Lakh) 

*Fixed deposit is under lien with bank pending completion of formalities relating to a borrower to the extent of Rs. 110.00 Lakh (March 31, 2021 Rs. 110.00 Lakh) 

*Fixed deposit is under lien  to the extent for Rs 1298.50 Lakh (March 31, 2021 Rs. 1298.50 Lakh) marked in favour of "IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited" in respect 
to  securitization as cash collateral.

*Fixed Deposit is under lien to extent of Rs 21.14 lakh (March 31, 2021 Rs. 70.00 Lakh) in favour of ICICI Bank in respect of sourcing and servicing agreement. 
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Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

Note 6(e): A comparison between provisions required under Income recognition, asset classification and provision norms 
(IRACP) and impairment allowances made under IND AS 109

Note 6: Loans (Contd..)

 (H in Lakh)

Asset classification as per RBI 
norms

Asset 
classification 
as per Ind AS 

109

Gross 
carrying 

amount as 
per Ind AS

Loss 
allowances 

(provisions) as 
required under 

Ind AS 109

Net 
carrying 
amount

Provisions 
required as 
per IRACP 

norms

Difference 
between 

Ind AS 109 
provisions 
and IRACP 

norms

1 2 3 4 (5)=(3)-(4) 6
(7) = (4)-

(6)

Standard Stage 1  4,42,636.49  3,179.06 4,39,457.43  2,908.50  270.56 
Stage 2  6,937.36  216.00  6,721.36  149.91  66.09 

Subtotal  4,49,573.85  3,395.06  4,46,178.79  3,058.41  336.65 
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3  4,812.64  1,057.26  3,755.38  677.79  379.47 
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3  1,085.78  303.27  782.51  232.15  71.12 
1 to 3 years Stage 3  1,253.56  316.62  936.94  386.27  (69.65)
More than 3 years Stage 3  727.70  166.57  561.13  522.87  (356.30)
Subtotal for doubtful  3,067.04  786.46  2,280.58  1,141.29  (354.83)
Loss Stage 3  -    -    -    -    -   
Subtotal for NPA  7,879.68  1,843.72  6,035.96  1,819.08  24.64 
Other items such 
as guarantees, loan 
commitments, etc. which are 
in the scope of Ind AS 109 but 
not covered under current 
Income recognition, asset 
classification and provisioning 
(IRACP) norms

Stage 1  46,273.06  266.48  46,006.58  -    266.48 
Stage 2  129.42  5.18  124.24  -    5.18 
Stage 3  -    -    -    -    -   

Subtotal  46,402.48  271.66  46,130.82  -    271.66 
Total Stage 1  4,88,909.55  3,445.54  4,85,464.01  2,908.50  537.04 

Stage 2  7,066.78  221.18  6,845.60  149.91  71.27 
Stage 3  7,879.68  1,843.72  6,035.96  1,819.08  24.64 

Management 
overlay - 

COVID19

- -  -    -    -   

Total  5,03,856.01  5,510.44  4,98,345.57  4,877.49  632.95 
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Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

Note 6: Loans (Contd..)

 (H in Lakh)

Asset classification as per RBI 
norms

Asset 
classification 
as per Ind AS 

109

Gross 
carrying 

amount as 
per Ind AS

Loss 
allowances 

(provisions) as 
required under 

Ind AS 109

Net 
carrying 
amount

Provisions 
required as 
per IRACP 

norms

Difference 
between 

Ind AS 109 
provisions 
and IRACP 

norms

1 2 3 4 (5)=(3)-(4) 6
(7) = (4)-

(6)

Standard Stage 1  3,24,597.23  2,162.16  3,22,435.07  1,721.95  440.21 
Stage 2  11,590.33  272.68  11,317.65  78.20  194.48 

Subtotal  3,36,187.56  2,434.84  3,33,752.72  1,800.15  634.69 
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3  3,020.80  703.64  2,317.16  420.74  282.90 
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3  1,515.51  332.29  1,183.22  315.05  17.24 
1 to 3 years Stage 3  1,870.38  367.34  1,503.04  555.70  (188.36)
More than 3 years Stage 3  15.49  3.40  12.09  10.86  (7.46)
Subtotal for doubtful  3,401.38  703.03  2,698.35  881.61  (178.58)
Loss Stage 3  -    -    -    -    -   
Subtotal for NPA  6,422.18  1,406.67  5,015.51  1,302.35  104.32 
Other items such 
as guarantees, loan 
commitments, etc. which are 
in the scope of Ind AS 109 but 
not covered under current 
Income Recognition, Asset 
Classification and Provisioning 
(IRACP) norms

Stage 1  18,267.68  103.20  18,164.48  -    103.20 
Stage 2  140.53  4.21  136.32  -    4.21 
Stage 3  -    -    -    -    -   

Subtotal  18,408.21  107.41  18,300.80  -    107.41 
Total Stage 1  3,42,864.91  2,265.36  3,40,599.55  1,721.95  543.41 

Stage 2  11,730.86  276.89  11,453.97  78.20  198.69 
Stage 3  6,422.18  1,406.67  5,015.51  1,302.35  104.32 

Management 
overlay - 

COVID19

-  1,000.00  (1,000.00)  -    1,000.00 

Total  3,61,017.95  4,948.92 3,56,069.03  3,102.50  1,846.42 

	 For the year ended March 31, 2021
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Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

	 Note 6(f): Details  of resolution  plan  implemented  under  the Resolution  framework  for COVID  - 19-related  stress  
as  per RBI  circular  dated August 06, 2020 (Resolution  framework  1.0) and  May 05, 2021  (Resolution  framework  
2.0), as at March 31, 2022 are  given  below:

Note 6: Loans (Contd..)

(H in Lakh)

Type of borrower

Exposure  to 
accounts classified  

as standard 
consequent to 

implementation of 
resolution  plan — 

position as at the end 
of the previous  half-

year i.e. September 
30, 2021 (A)#

Of (A), 
aggregate 
debt that 

slipped into 
NPA during 

the half-
year ended 

March 
31,2022

Of (A) 
amount 
written  

off during 
the half-

year

Of(A) 
amount 

paid  by the 
borrowers 
during the 

half-year

Exposure  to accounts 
classified  as standard 

consequent  to 
implementation of 
resolution  plan — 

position as at the end 
of this half-year i.e. 
March 31, 2022#^

Personal  Loans* 15,320.94 1,236.89 - 625.86 14,008.98
Corporate persons - - - - -
Of which MSMEs - - - - -
Others - - - - -
Total 15,320.94 1,236.89 - 625.86 14,008.98

	 As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

	 #excludes other facilities to the borrowers which have not been restructured.

	 ^include restructuring done in respect of requests received as of September 30, 2021 processed subsequently and additions due to interest 
capitalization. 	

	 *Personal loans includes housing loans & non housing loans.

Note 6(g): There are no loans or advances granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties ( as defined under 
Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person without specifying any terms or period of 
repayments or repayable on demands (March 31, 2021 Rs. Nil).

Note 6(h):Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme ( ECLGS)

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
Year  ended 

March 31, 2022
Year  ended 

March 31, 2021

No. of Loans 244 148
Amount outstanding (H in Lakh)  2,936.59  2,688.99 
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Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

(H in Lakh)

Internal Grade 
Rating

 Year ended March 31, 2022  Year ended March 31, 2021 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Performing
High Grade  13,170.38  -    -    13,170.38  6,007.74  -    -    6,007.74 
Standard grade  879.74  -    -    879.74  1,396.86  -    -    1,396.86 
Non Performing  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total  14,050.12  -    -    14,050.12  7,404.60  -    -    7,404.60 

Credit quality of assets

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk per based on the Company’s internal credit 
rating system and year-end stage classification.

The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances . Details of the Company’s internal grading system are explained 
in note 49

Note 7 :Investments (Contd..)

An analysis of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECLs is as follows:
 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 Year  ended 

March 31, 2022 
 Year  ended 

March 31, 2021 

Fair value – Opening balance  7,404.60  15,633.92 
New assets originated or purchased  4,90,848.40  1,91,327.50 
Change in fair value  -    (65.27)
Assets derecognised or matured  (4,84,202.88)  (1,99,491.55)
Fair value - Closing balance  14,050.12  7,404.60 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 Year  ended 

March 31, 2022 
 Year  ended 

March 31, 2021 

Opening balance in ECL  2.03  1.81 
New assets originated or purchased  6.26  0.79 
Assets derecognised or matured (excluding write offs)  (1.34)  (0.44)
ECL assumption changes -  (0.13)
Closing balance in ECL  6.95  2.03 
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Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

Note 8: Other financial assets

Note 9: Tax assets  

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

Security deposits  457.70  366.11 
Interest receivable on pass through certificates (PTC)  4.68  7.42 
Less : Allowance for impairment against interest receivable on PTC  (0.00)  (0.01)
Net lease receivable  8.27  11.65 
Less : Impairment loss allowance on lease receivables  (0.09)  (0.25)
Excess interest spread receivable on assignments  15,134.73  12,531.74 
Less : ECL on excess interest spread receivable on assignments  (127.93)  (370.36)
Other receivables  72.57  352.42 
Total  15,549.93  12,898.72 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

Advance income tax & self assessment tax                                                                    
(Net of cumulative provision for  Income tax  Rs.9785.80 Lakh (March 31, 2021 : 
Rs. 7549.98 Lakh)

 570.72  418.95 

Total  570.72  418.95 

Reconciliation of impairment allowance 

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

General approach
Simplified 
approach

Interest 
receivable 

on PTC
Excess interest spread receivable on assignments Net lease 

receivable

Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Impairment allowance as per 
March 31, 2020

 0.01  184.14  0.69  -    184.83  -   

Add: Addition during the year  -    172.50  23.47  36.27  232.24  0.25 
(Less): Reduction during the 
year

 (0.00)  (46.42)  (0.29)  -    (46.71)  -   

Impairment allowance as per 
March 31, 2021

 0.01  310.22  23.87  36.27  370.36  0.25 

Add: Addition during the year  -    57.25  1.82  -    59.07  -   
(Less): Reduction during the 
year

 (0.01)  (254.81)  (16.77)  (29.92)  (301.50)  (0.16)

Impairment allowance as per 
March 31, 2022

 0.00  112.66  8.92  6.35  127.93  0.09 
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Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

Note 12: Other intangible assets

Note 13: Right of use assets

Note 14: Other non financial assets

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

 As at 
March 31, 2021  

 Software  Software 

At cost, beginning of the year 843.79  842.83 
Additions  11.08  0.96 
Disposals  (11.60)  -   
Total cost 843.27 843.79
Accumulated amortisation and impairment:
At the beginning of the year 404.81  267.32 
Amortisation  138.76  137.49 
Disposals  (10.13)  -   
Total amortisation and impairment 533.44 404.81
Net carrying amount as at the end of the year  309.83  438.98 

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

 Year ended March 31, 2022  Year ended March 31, 2021 

Office 
premises

Furniture’s 
& fixtures

Total
Office 

premises
Furniture’s 

& fixtures
Total

Opening  Balance  1,449.72  356.66  1,806.38  1,194.62  356.66  1,551.28 
Additions  962.67  29.57  992.24  289.61  -    289.61 
Remeasurement  (2.27)  (4.20)  (6.47)  (34.51)  -    (34.51)
Total  2,410.12  382.03  2,792.15  1,449.72  356.66  1,806.38 
Accumulated Depreciation
At the beginning of the year  660.26  225.64  885.90  346.72  113.10  459.82 
Depreciation  372.05  112.49  484.54  313.54  112.54  426.08 
Total Depreciation  1,032.31  338.13  1,370.44  660.26  225.64  885.90 
Net carrying amount as at the end 
of the year

 1,377.81  43.90  1,421.71  789.46  131.02  920.49 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

Unamortised expenses  175.27  300.25 
Prepaid expenses  485.26  609.44 
Advance salary  24.73  1.08 
GST Receivable  220.44  354.19 
Other sundry advances  249.92  127.66 
Total  1,155.62  1,392.62 
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Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

Note 15:  Asset held for sale

Note 16 : Derivative financial instrument

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

House property  8,073.19  7,116.63 
Total  8,073.19  7,116.63 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

MTM (gain) / loss on foreign currency loan  5.49  -   
Total  5.49  -   

Measurement:

The non-recurring fair value measurement for the assets held for sale has been categorized as a Level 2 fair value based on 
the inputs to the valuation techniques used. For the assets classified as “assets held for sale” during the year valuation has 
been determined by independent valuer by using the sales comparison approach for which the price (such as recent sales, 
municipal valuation, etc.) of the assets in the similar location are considered. This is a level 2 measurement as per the fair value 
hierarchy. The diminution in the value as identified by the independent valuers is written off in the books of accounts.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivatives for risk management purposes. Derivatives held for risk management purposes include 
hedges that either meet the hedge accounting requirements or hedges that are economic hedges, but the Company  has 
elected not to apply hedge accounting requirements.

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their 
notional amounts.

The notional amounts indicate the value of transactions outstanding at the year end and are not indicative of either the market 
risk or credit risk.	

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

 As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021 

 Notional 
amounts 

 Fair value -  
liabilities 

 Notional 
amounts 

 Fair value -  
liabilities 

(i) Currency derivatives: 
-Spots and forwards  5,218.44  5.49 
-Currency futures  -    -   
-Currency swaps  -    -   
Sub total (i)  -    -   
(ii) Interest rate derivatives: 
-Forward rate agreements and interest rate swaps  -    -    -    -   
-Futures  -    -    -    -   
Sub total (ii)  -    -    -    -   
(iii) Credit derivatives:  -    -    -    -   
(iv) Equity linked derivatives:  -    -   
(v) Other derivatives:  -    -    -   
Total derivative financial instruments (i+ii+iii+iv+v)  5,218.44  5.49  -    -   
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Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

Note 16 : Derivative financial instrument (Contd..)

Note 17: Trade payables

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

 As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021 

 Notional 
amounts 

 Fair value -  
liabilities 

 Notional 
amounts 

 Fair value -  
liabilities 

Interest rate risk: 
-Interest rate swaps  -    -    -    -   
-Futures  -    -    -    -   
Foreign currency risk:  -    -    -    -   
-Currency futures 
-Currency swaps  -    -    -    -   
-Forward contracts  5,218.44  5.49 
Total  5,218.44  5.49  -    -   

Hedging activities and derivatives				  

The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations. The primary risks managed using 
derivative instruments are foreign currency risk . The Company’s risk management strategy and how it is applied to manage 
risk are explained in Note 49. 

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments				  

The Company has not designated any derivatives as hedging instruments.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments				  

The Company uses  foreign exchange forward contracts to manage its foreign currency risk arising from borrowings in foreign 
currencies.

Details of the derivative instruments are given below:

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

I) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   
II) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises
Sundry creditors  375.76  308.62 
Outstanding expenses  877.47  819.06 
Total  1,253.23  1,127.68 
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Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

(H in Lakh)

Particulars

 Outstanding for following years from due date of Transaction 

 Total  Less than 1 
year 

 1-2 years 2-3 years
 More than 3 

years 

i) MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
(ii) Others  1,227.60  0.94  2.11  22.58  1,253.23 
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
(iv)Disputed dues - others  -    -    -    -    -   

 1,227.60  0.94  2.11  22.58  1,253.23 

(H in Lakh)

Particulars

 Outstanding for following years from due date of Transaction 

 Total  Less than 1 
year 

 1-2 years 2-3 years
 More than 3 

years 

i) MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
(ii) Others  1,075.73  2.77  29.25  19.93  1,127.68 
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
(iv)Disputed dues - others  -    -    -    -    -   

 1,075.73  2.77  29.25  19.93  1,127.68 

Trade payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2022

Trade payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2021

Note 17: Trade payables (Contd..)

Note 18: Debt securities
(H in Lakh)

Particulars

 Year ended March 31, 2022  Year ended March 31, 2021

 At Fair Value  At Fair Value 

At 
amortised 

cost

Through 
profit or 

loss

Designated 
through 
profit or 

loss

Total
At 

amortised 
cost

Through 
profit or 

loss

Designated 
through 
profit or 

loss

Total

 Privately placed 
redeemable 
non-convertible 
debentures 
Secured  48,324.47  -    -   48,324.47  50,412.97  -    -    50,412.97 
Unsecured  5,005.15  -    5,005.15  7,476.85  7,476.85 
Total (A)  53,329.62  -   53,329.62  57,889.82  57,889.82 
Debt securities in 
India

 53,329.62  -    -   53,329.62  57,889.82  -    -    57,889.82 

Debt securities 
outside India

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
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Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

Note 19: Borrowings

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

  Year ended March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021  

 At Fair value  At Fair value 

At 
amortised 

cost

Through 
profit or 

loss

Designated 
through 

profit or loss
Total

At 
amortised 

cost

Through 
profit or 

loss

Designated 
through 

profit or loss
Total

Secured :

Term Loan

From Banks  2,55,785.70  -    -    2,55,785.70 2,23,308.91  -    -    2,23,308.91 

From National Housing 

Bank

 55,463.27  -    -    55,463.27  8,981.52  -    -    8,981.52 

From Financial 

Institutions

 6,451.36  -    -    6,451.36  14,505.33  -    -    14,505.33 

From Banks - 

Securitization

 5,777.43  -    -    5,777.43  7,412.99  -    -    7,412.99 

Loans repayable on 
demand from banks

Cash credit  11,358.96  -    -    11,358.96  985.94  -    -    985.94 

Working capital 

demand loan 

 1,500.67  -    -    1,500.67  4,999.13  -    -    4,999.13 

Total (A) 3,36,337.39  -    -   3,36,337.39 2,60,193.82  -    -    2,60,193.82 

Borrowings in India  3,36,337.39  -    -    3,36,337.39 2,60,193.82  -    -    2,60,193.82 

Borrowings outside 

India

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

1.	 The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities)and interest 
thereon for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

2.	 The quarterly returns filed by the company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.

19(a) Term loan form banks

	 Terms of repayment
 (H in Lakh)

Tenure (from date 
of balance sheet 
date)

 As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021  

Rate of 
interest                                                          

Repayment details Amount
Rate of 
interest                                                          

Repayment details Amount

0-12 months 3.24% to 
8.9%

4 - 60 monthly, 
quarterly, half 
yearly installments 

 80,727.01 7.30 % to 
10.25%

4 - 60 monthly, 
quarterly, half 
yearly installments 

 51,365.07 

12-24 months 3.24% to 
8.9 %

4 - 60 monthly, 
quarterly, half 
yearly installments 

 64,055.07 7.30 % to 
10.25%

4 - 60 monthly, 
quarterly, half 
yearly installments 

 64,887.71 

24-36 months 3.24% to 
8.9%

8 - 60 monthly, 
quarterly, half 
yearly installments 

 58,532.13 7.60 % to 
10.25%

4 - 60 monthly, 
quarterly, half 
yearly installments 

 44,838.59 
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 (H in Lakh)

Tenure (from date 
of balance sheet 
date)

 As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021  

Rate of 
interest                                                          

Repayment details Amount
Rate of 
interest                                                          

Repayment details Amount

36-48 months 3.24% to 
8.20%

8 - 60 monthly, 
quarterly, half 
yearly installments 

 41,778.89 7.60 % to 
10.25%

8 - 60 monthly, 
quarterly, half 
yearly installments 

 39,329.96 

48-60 months 3.24% to 
8.00%

8 - 60 monthly, 
quarterly, half 
yearly installments 

 10,692.60 7.60 % to 
10.25%

8 - 60 monthly, 
quarterly, half 
yearly installments 

 22,887.58 

Total 2,55,785.70 2,23,308.91 

Note 19: Borrowings (Contd..)

	 Nature Of Security

	 Term Loans from banks are secured by way of exclusive charge on specified loan receivables.

19(b) Loan from National Housing Bank

	 Terms of repayment

19(c) Loan from Financial Institutions

	 Terms of repayment

 (H in Lakh)

Tenure (from date 
of balance sheet 
date)

 As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021  

Rate of 
interest                                                          

Repayment details Amount
Rate of 
interest                                                          

Repayment 
details

Amount

0-12 months 2.94% - 7.45% 20 - 39 quarterly 
installments

6934.20 7.10% 20 quarterly 
installments

2055.00

12-24 months 2.94% - 7.45% 20 - 39 quarterly 
installments

9245.60 7.10% 20 quarterly 
installments

2740.00

24-36 months 2.94% - 7.45% 20 - 39 quarterly 
installments

7952.12 7.10% 20 quarterly 
installments

2740.00

36-48 months 2.94% - 6.45% 27 - 39 quarterly 
installments

6505.60 7.10% 20 quarterly 
installments

1446.52

48-60 months 2.94% - 6.45% 20 - 39 quarterly 
installments

6505.60

More than 60 
months

2.94% - 6.45% 20 - 39 quarterly 
installments

18320.15

Total  55,463.27  8,981.52 

 (H in Lakh)

Tenure (from date 
of balance sheet 
date)

 As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021  

Rate of 
interest                                                          

Repayment details Amount
Rate of 
interest                                                          

Repayment 
details

Amount

0-12 months 8.10% - 9.50% 28 - 120 monthly, 
quarterly installments

590.35 10.35% 120 monthly 
installments

834.64

12-24 months 8.10% - 9.50% 20 - 120 monthly, 
quarterly installments

752.61 10.35% 120 monthly 
installments

1006.48
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Note 19: Borrowings (Contd..)

19(d) Term loan from banks  -Securitisation

	 Terms of repayment
 (H in Lakh)

Tenure (from date 
of balance sheet 
date)

 As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021  

Rate of 
interest                                                          

Repayment details Amount
Rate of 
interest                                                          

Repayment details Amount

0-12 months 7.94% - 8.80% 202-278 installments 
of monthly frequency

 366.64 7.99% - 
8.90%

227-290 
installments of 
monthly frequency

 610.77 

12-24 months 7.94% - 8.80% 202-278 installments 
of monthly frequency

 267.61 7.99% - 
8.90%

227-290 
installments of 
monthly frequency

 260.23 

24-36 months 7.94% - 8.80% 202-278 installments 
of monthly frequency

 295.62 7.99% - 
8.90%

227-290 
installments of 
monthly frequency

 289.77 

36-48 months 7.94% - 8.80% 202-278 installments 
of monthly frequency

 323.24 7.99% - 
8.90%

227-290 
installments of 
monthly frequency

 321.97 

48-60 months 7.94% - 8.80% 202-278 installments 
of monthly frequency

 353.27 7.99% - 
8.90%

227-290 
installments of 
monthly frequency

 357.27 

More than 60 
months

7.94% - 8.80% 202-278 installments 
of monthly frequency

 4,171.05 7.99% - 
8.90%

227-290 
installments of 
monthly frequency

 5,572.98 

Total  5,777.43  7,412.99 

 (H in Lakh)

Tenure (from date 
of balance sheet 
date)

 As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021  

Rate of 
interest                                                          

Repayment details Amount
Rate of 
interest                                                          

Repayment 
details

Amount

24-36 months 8.10% - 9.50% 20 - 120 monthly, 
quarterly installments

787.94 10.35% 120 monthly 
installments

1114.65

36-48 months 8.10% - 9.50% 27 - 120 monthly, 
quarterly installments

825.87 10.35% 120 monthly 
installments

1241.26

48-60 months 8.10% - 9.50% 27 - 120 monthly, 
quarterly installments

865.68 10.35% 120 monthly 
installments

1378.26

More than 60 
months

8.10% - 9.50% 27 - 120 monthly, 
quarterly installments

2628.91 10.35% 120 monthly 
installments

8930.04

Total  6,451.36  14,505.33 

	 Nature Of Security

	 Loan from financial institutions  is secured by way of exclusive charge on specified loan receivables.

	 Nature Of Security

	 Secured by an exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on specified loan receivables.
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19(e) Loans repayable on demand from Banks

	 Cash credit 

	 Terms of repayment

	 Working capital demand loans 

	 Terms of repayment

Note 19: Borrowings (Contd..)

 (H in Lakh)

Tenure (from date 
of balance sheet 
date)

 As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021  

Rate of 
interest                                                          

Repayment details Amount
Rate of 
interest                                                          

Repayment 
details

Amount

0-12 months 7.8% - 9% Loan repayable on 
demand

 11,358.96 7.90% - 
9.35%

Loan repayable 
on demand

 985.94 

 (H in Lakh) 

Tenure (from date of balance 
sheet date)

Rate of interest                                                          
Repayment 

details
As at 

March 31,2022
As at 

March 31,2021

0-12 months 8.20% Bullet payment  1,500.67  4,999.13 

	 Nature of security

	 Cash credit and working capital demand loan from banks are secured by way of exclusive charge on specified loan 
receivables.

Note 20: Lease liabilities
 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

Lease liabilities  1,470.36  1,006.12 
Total  1,470.36  1,006.12 

20(a): The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient as provided in paragraph 46A of Ind AS 116 whereby the 
Company has not treated as lease modification, the rent concessions occurring directly as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. 
The Company has applied this practical expedient to all rent concessions it has received. The amount recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss for the year to reflect changes in lease payments arising from rent concessions is Rs.79.88 
Lakh (March 31,2021 : 78.40 Lakh)  (Refer Note no. 31)

20(b): Reconciliation of future minimum lease payment on lease liability
 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

Within one year  249.72  450.37 
After one year but not more than five years  804.69  412.30 
More than five years  415.95  143.45 
 Total  1,470.36  1,006.12 
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Note 20: Lease liabilities (Contd..)

20(c): Movement in lease liability

20(d): The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities:

 (H in Lakh) 

Sr No.
Class of 

underlying 
asset

Opening 
balance of 

lease liabilities     
(balance as on 

01.04.2021)

Additions 
to lease 

liabilities, 
made 

during 
the year

Remeasurements 
during the year

Finance 
cost 

accrued 
during 

the year

Payment 
of lease 

liabilities 
during 

the year

Amount 
of lease 

liabilities as 
on March 
31, 2022

1 Buildings  840.38  923.91  (2.65)  86.52  (433.26)  1,414.90 
2 Furniture & 

fixtures
 154.08  29.13  (4.88)  8.58  (139.72)  47.19 

3 Car  11.66  -    -    0.92  (4.31)  8.27 

 (H in Lakh) 

Sr No.
Class of 

underlying 
asset

Opening 
balance of 

lease liabilities     
(Balance as on 

01.04.2020)

Additions 
to lease 

liabilities, 
made 

during 
the year

Remeasurements 
during the year

Finance 
cost 

accrued 
during 

the year

Payment 
of lease 

liabilities 
during 

the year

Amount 
of lease 

liabilities as 
on March 

31, 2021

1 Buildings  884.42  277.72  (37.91)  73.32  (357.17)  840.38 
2 Furniture & 

fixtures
 273.82  -    -    20.17  (139.91)  154.08 

3 Car  14.73  -    -    1.24  (4.31)  11.66 

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

 As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021 

Undiscounted 
basis

Discounted 
basis

Undiscounted 
basis

Discounted 
basis

Not later than one year  342.71  249.73  522.87  450.37 
Later than one year but not later than five years  978.48  804.69  528.50  412.30 
Later than 5 years  598.83  415.94  161.24  143.45 
Total 1920.02  1,470.36 1212.61 1006.12

20(e): Qualitative disclosures:

	 The leased building premises , furniture & fixtures are used to carry out business operations and related support activities. 
The car is sub leased to the employee. The future cash outflows on lease payments are fixed in nature, subject to escalations. 
The lease agreements tenor extensions and termination conditions are subject to respective lease agreements. In 6 cases, 
security deposit is paid but lease is not yet commenced.  There are no restrictions or covenants are imposed by lease 
agreements.
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Note 21: Other financial liabilities

Note 22: Provisions

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

Temporary book overdrafts  1,202.61 -
Employee benefit payable  833.63  503.42 
Payable on account of assignment  2,576.86  1,695.68 
Other liabilities  285.30  191.73 
Total  4,898.40  2,390.83 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

Provision for non funded exposure  271.66  107.41 
Provision for employee benefits
	 - Gratuity  31.31  92.60 
Provision for lease rent  8.96  17.45 
Total  311.93  217.46 

Loan commitment

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure for credit risk based on the Company’s internal credit 
rating system and year-end stage classification. Details of the Company’s internal grading system and policies on ECLs are set 
out in Note 49

 (H in Lakh)

Internal rating 
grade

 Year ended March 31, 2022  Year ended March 31, 2021 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Performing
High grade  46,145.19  46,145.19  18,207.08  18,207.08 
Standard grade  127.87  127.87  60.60  60.60 
Sub-standard 
grade

 129.42  129.42  86.38  86.38 

Past due but not 
impaired

 -    54.15  54.15 

Non- performing
Individually 
impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  46,273.06  129.42  -    46,402.48  18,267.68  140.53  -    18,408.21 
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Note 22: Provisions (Contd..)

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars
 Year ended March 31, 2022  Year ended March 31, 2021 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Opening balance of 
outstanding exposure

 18,267.68  140.53  -    18,408.21  18,655.71  62.27  -    18,717.98 

New exposures  41,008.47  41,008.47  14,628.63  14,628.63 
Exposures 
derecognised or 
matured/lapsed 
(excluding write-offs)

(12,896.68)  (117.52)  (13,014.20) (14,897.60)  (40.80) (14,938.40)

Transfers to Stage 1  40.56  (40.56)  -    -   
Transfers to Stage 2  (146.97)  146.97  -    (119.06)  119.06  -   
Transfers to Stage 3  -    -   
Closing balance of 
outstanding exposure

 46,273.06  129.42  -    46,402.48  18,267.68  140.53  -    18,408.21 

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars
 Year ended March 31, 2022  Year ended March 31, 2021 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

ECL allowance - opening 
balance

 103.20  4.21  -    107.41  126.90  2.44  -    129.34 

New exposures  231.31  231.31  83.22  83.22 
Exposures derecognised or 
matured (excluding write-
offs)

 (68.67)  (2.55)  (71.22)  (106.22)  (1.69)  (107.91)

Transfers to Stage 1  1.65  (1.65)  -    -   
Transfers to Stage 2  (1.01)  1.01  -    (0.70)  0.70  -   
Transfers to Stage 3  -    -   
Impact on year end ECL 
of exposures transferred 
between stages during the 
year

 4.16  4.16  2.76  2.76 

ECL allowance - closing 
balance

 266.48  5.18  -    271.66  103.20  4.21  -    107.41 

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECLs in relation to other undrawn commitments 
is, as follows: 

Gross exposure reconciliation

Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below:
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Note 23: Other non financial liabilities

Note 24: Equity

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

Statutory dues payable  278.68  264.75 
Retention money and other sundry liabilities  3.67  1.27 
Total  282.35  266.02 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

Shriram City Union Finance Limited   2,765.51  1,654.40 
Total  2,765.51  1,654.40 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
	 Authorised:
	 40,00,00,000( Previous Year : 22,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each  40,000.00  22,000.00 
	 Ordinary Shares
	 Issued and fully paid
	 Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
	 32,52,71,112 (Previous Year : 21,41,60,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each  32,527.11  21,416.00 
Total Equity  32,527.11  21,416.00 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
          No. of 

Shares (in Lakh) 
 Rs. (in Lakh) 

As at March 31,2020  2,141.60  21,416.00 
Issued during the year  -    -   
As at March 31, 2021  2,141.60  21,416.00 
Issued during the year  1,111.11  11,111.11 
As at March 31, 2022  3,252.71  32,527.11 

a	  Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

b	 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares		

	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. 

c	 Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

	 Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their 
subsidiaries/ associates are as below: 	
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Note 25: Other Equity

Note 24: Equity (Contd..)

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

Statutory reserve (Pursuant to section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 & section 36(1)
(viii) of Income tax act, 1961)

 6,599.21  4,985.49 

Security premium  50,982.70  12,180.00 
Retained earnings (surplus/deficit in profit & loss account)  25,047.50  18,627.10 
Deemed investment  183.91  183.91 
Share option outstanding  330.56  180.63 
Other comprehensive income  88.32  73.92 
Total  83,232.20  36,231.05 

(No. in Lakhs) 

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % Change during the year

Promoter name No. of Shares %of total shares Increase/ (Decrease)

Shriram City Union Finance Limited  2,765.51 85.02% 7.7%

d	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

e	 For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the Company, refer Note No. 40

f	 Details of shareholding by promoters:

g	 There are no shares in the preceding 5 years allotted as fully paid up without payment being received in cash / bonus 
shares / bought back.

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

 As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021 

No. in Lakh
% holding 

in the class
No. in Lakh

% holding 
in the class

Shriram City Union Finance Limited   2,765.51 85.02%  1,654.40 77.25%
Valiant Mauritius Partners FDI Ltd.  487.20 14.98%  487.20 22.75%

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

Securities premium account
Balance at beginning of the Year  12,180.00  12,180.00 
Add: Premium on shares issued during the year  38,888.89  -   
Less: Right issue expenses  (86.19)  -   
Balance at end of the year  50,982.70  12,180.00 
Share option outstanding
Balance at beginning of the Year  180.63  77.30 
Add: Other additions/ deductions during the year  149.93  105.14 
Add: Transferred to retained earning  -    (1.81)

Note 25 (a) : Other Equity
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 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021  

Balance at end of the year  330.56  180.63 
Statutory reserve (Pursuant to section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 & section 
36(1)(viii) of Income tax act, 1961)
Balance at beginning of the Year  4,985.49  3,731.49 
Add: Transfer from surplus balance in the statement of profit and loss  1,613.72  1,254.00 
Balance at end of the year  6,599.21  4,985.49 
Surplus in statement of profit and loss
Balance at beginning of the year  18,627.10  13,640.99 
Add: Profit for the year  8,034.12  6,238.30 
Transfer from / (to) share option outstanding  -    1.81 
Transfer to statutory reserve  (1,613.72)  (1,254.00)
Balance at end of the year  25,047.50  18,627.10 
Other comprehensive income
Balance at beginning of the Year  73.92  71.58 
Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plan  19.24  3.12 
Income tax provision/ (reversal) on above  (4.84)  (0.78)
Balance at end of the year  88.32  73.92 
Deemed investment
Balance at beginning of the Year  183.91  183.91 
Add: Other additions/ deductions during the year  -    -   
Balance at end of the year  183.91  183.91 

Note 25 (a) : Other Equity (Contd..)

Note 25 (b) : Other Equity	

Nature and purpose of Reserves

Statutory reserve	

The Company creates special reserve every year out of its profits in terms of Sec 36(1) (viii) of the Income tax act, 1961 read 
with Sec 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987.

The Company transfers amount at least 20% of the total comprehensive income after tax to Statutory reserve.

Securities premium reserve:

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited 
purposes such as issuance of bonus shares  in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained earnings: 				  

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to statutory reserve, any appropriation 
made.
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Note 25 (b) : Other Equity (Contd..)

Note 26: Interest income

Deemed investment 	

The Company has acquired a refinance from National Housing Bank for which the parent "Shriram City Union Finance Ltd" 
acted as a Corporate guarantor. 				  

The Fair value of financial guarantee so received has been classified as "Deemed investments". 

ESOP reserve: 

The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments provided to 
employees, including key management personnel, as part of their remuneration. Refer to Note 40 for further details of these 
plans. 	

Other comprehensive income

Remeasurement gain/loss related to defined benefit liability/assets is  recognised as other comprehensive income.

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

 Year ended March 31, 2022  Year ended March 31, 2021 

On 
financial 

assets  
measured 

at  
amortised 

cost

On 
financial 

assets  
measured 

at  fair 
value 

through 
OCI 

 On 
financial 

assets 
classified 

at fair  
value  

through 
profit  or 

loss 

Total

On 
financial 

assets  
measured 

at  
amortised 

cost

On 
financial 

assets  
measured 

at  fair 
value 

through 
OCI 

On 
financial 

assets 
classified 

at fair  
value  

through 
profit  or 

loss 

Total

Interest on loans 44,634.13  -    -   44,634.13 31,380.72  -    -   31,380.72 
Interest income from 
investments 

 625.03  125.64  -    750.67  35.37  177.51  -    212.88 

Interest on deposits  -   
 -Margin money 
deposit with Bank

 73.56  -    -    73.56  47.30  -    -    47.30 

 -Deposit with 
financial institutions

 188.33  -    -    188.33  27.50  -    -    27.50 

 -Deposit with bank  606.33  -    -    606.33  592.37  -    -    592.37 
Interest income on 
security deposits

 29.33  -    -    29.33  42.75  -    -    42.75 

Interest income on 
assignment (EIS)

 148.84  -    -    148.84  31.16  -    -    31.16 

Total 46,305.55  125.64  -    46,431.19 32,157.17  177.51  -   32,334.68 
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Note 27: Fees & commission income

Note 28: Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 For the Year 

ended 
March 31, 2022 

 For the Year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

Servicing fees  40.51  19.24 
Income from other services  515.97  320.96 
Commission fees  4.44  9.70 
Total  560.92  349.90 

Revenue from contract with customer
 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 For the Year 

ended
March 31, 2022 

 For the Year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

(i)	 Type of service
	 - Fees and commission income  44.95  28.94 
	 - Income from other services  515.97  320.96 
	 Total  560.92  349.90 
(ii)	 Primary geographical market
	 - Outside India  -    -   
	 - India  560.92  349.90 
	 Total revenue from contract with customer  560.92  349.90 
(iii)	 Timing of revenue recognition
	 - At a point in time upon rendering services  -    -   
	 - Over a period of time upon rendering services  560.92  349.90 
	 Total  560.92  349.90 
(iv)	Trade receivable towards contract with customers
	 - Opening balance  -    -   
	 - Closing balance  -    -   
(v)	 Impairment on trade receivables towards contract with customers  -    -   

As on 31st March 2022/2021, the Company doesn't have any unsatisfied/partially satisfied performance obligation.

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 For the Year 

ended 
March 31, 2022 

 For the Year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

A)	 Net gain/ (loss) on financial  instruments at fair value through  profit  or loss 
	 (i)	 On trading portfolio
		  - Investments  815.27  775.29 
		  - Derivatives  -    -  
		  - Others  -    -  
	 (ii)	 On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit  or  loss  0.09  -   
(B)	 Others ( to be specified) 
	 Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes (C)  815.36  775.29 
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 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 For the Year 

ended 
March 31, 2022 

 For the Year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

	 Fair Value changes:	 -Realised  815.27  840.56 
				    -Unrealised  0.09  (65.27)
	 Total net gain/(loss) on fair value changes(D) to tally with (C )  815.36  775.29 
	 Total  815.36  775.29 

Note 28: Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes (Contd..)

Note 30: Other operating Income

Note 29: Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category 
 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2022 For the year ended March 31, 2021

On 
financial 

assets  
measured 

at  
amortised 

cost

On 
financial 

assets  
measured 

at  fair 
value 

through 
OCI 

On 
financial 

assets 
classified at 

fair  value  
through 

profit  or 
loss 

Total

On 
financial 

assets  
measured 

at  
amortised 

cost

On 
financial 

assets  
measured 

at  fair 
value 

through 
OCI 

On 
financial 

assets 
classified at 

fair  value  
through 

profit  or 
loss 

Total

Net gain on 
assignment

 5,508.35  -    -    5,508.35  7,390.05  -    -    7,390.05 

Total  5,508.35  -    -   5,508.35  7,390.05  -    -   7,390.05 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 For the Year 

ended 
March 31, 2022 

 For the Year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

Processing fees  445.16  466.48 
Dividend income  0.41  -   
Bad debts recovered  203.19  242.57 
Other charges  862.64  353.93 
Total  1,511.40  1,062.98 
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Note 31: Other income

Note 32: Finance cost

Note 33: Impairment of financial assets

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 For the Year 

ended 
March 31, 2022 

 For the Year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

Gain on derecognition of property, plant  and equipment   1.25  4.59 
Interest on lease receivable  0.93  1.24 
Income from subleasing of right of use assets  7.23  69.19 
Interest on income tax refund  -    162.84 
Miscellaneous income  0.01  1.50 
Lease rent waiver  79.88  78.40 
Gain on remeasurement of Leases  1.03  3.39 
Total  90.33  321.15 

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

 For the year ended  March 31, 2022  For the year ended March 31, 2021 

On financial 
liabilities 

measured at 
amortised 

cost

On financial 
liabilities 

measured 
through profit 

or loss

Total

On financial 
liabilities 

measured at 
amortised 

cost

On financial 
liabilities 

measured 
through profit 

or loss

Total

Interest on bank borrowings  20,318.05  -    20,318.05  13,957.15  -    13,957.15 
Interest on loan from 
financial institutions

 2,320.52  -    2,320.52  1,498.55  -    1,498.55 

Interest on debt securities  4,783.67  -    4,783.67  4,778.69  -    4,778.69 
Interest on lease liability  96.02  -    96.02  94.73  -    94.73 
Interest on securitization 
loans

 539.68  -    539.68  384.07  -    384.07 

Guarantee commission  -    -    -    117.13  -    117.13 
Interest cost on net defined 
liability 

 2.11  -    2.11  3.41  -    3.41 

Total  28,060.05  -   28,060.05  20,833.73  -    20,833.73 

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

 For the year ended  March 31, 2022  For the year ended March 31, 2021 

On financial 
instrument 

measured at 
amortised 

cost

On financial 
instrument 

measured 
at fair value 

through OCI

Total

On financial 
liabilities 

measured at 
Amortised 

cost

On financial 
instrument 

measured 
at fair value 

through OCI

Total

Loans and advances to 
customers

 397.27  -    397.27  1,253.16  -    1,253.16 

Loan undrawn commitments  164.25  -    164.25  (21.93)  -    (21.93)
Investments  5.47  (0.55)  4.92  0.79  (0.58)  0.21 

Annual Report 2021-22146



Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

 For the year ended  March 31, 2022  For the year ended March 31, 2021 

On financial 
instrument 

measured at 
amortised 

cost

On financial 
instrument 

measured 
at fair value 

through OCI

Total

On financial 
liabilities 

measured at 
Amortised 

cost

On financial 
instrument 

measured 
at fair value 

through OCI

Total

Excess interest spread 
receivable on assignments

 (242.43)  -    (242.43)  185.53  -    185.53 

Lease receivables  (0.16)  -    (0.16)  (0.22)  -    (0.22)
Bad debts written off 
(including on assets held for 
sale)

 755.95  755.95  596.52  596.52 

Total  1,080.35  (0.55)  1,079.80  2,013.85  (0.58)  2,013.27 

Note 33: Impairment of financial assets (Contd..)

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

 For the year ended March 31, 2022  For the year ended March 31, 2021 

 General approach 
 Simplified 
Approach 

Total

 General approach 
 Simplified 
approach 

Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Additional 
provision

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Additional 
provision

Loans and advances 
to customers

 1,016.90  (56.68)  437.05  (1,000.00)  397.27  935.90  (30.45)  347.71  -    1,253.16 

Loan undrawn 
commitments

 163.28  0.97  -    -    164.25  (23.71)  1.78  -    -    (21.93)

Investments  4.92  -    -    -    4.92  0.21  -    -    -    0.21 

Excess interest 
spread receivable on 
assignments

 (197.56)  (14.95)  (29.92)  -   (242.43)  126.08  23.18  36.27  -    185.53 

Lease receivables  -    -    -    (0.16)  (0.16)  -    -    -    (0.22)  (0.22)

Total impairment 
loss 

 987.54  (70.66)  407.14  (1,000.00)  (0.16)  323.86  1,038.48  (5.49)  383.98  -    (0.22)  1,416.75 

The table below shows the ECL charges on financial instruments for the year recorded in the profit and loss based on 
evaluation stage:

Note 34: Employee benefit expenses
 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 For the Year 

ended 
March 31, 2022 

 For the Year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

Salaries and wages  7,740.65  5,983.82 
Contribution to provident and other fund  204.27  210.58 
Gratuity expenses  78.15  71.41 
Share based payments to employees  149.93  105.14 
Interest expenses on staff loan  23.73  22.91 
Staff welfare expenses  327.04  252.80 
Total  8,523.77  6,646.66 
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Note  35:  Depreciation, amortization &  impairment

Note 36: Other expenses

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 For the Year 

ended 
March 31, 2022 

 For the Year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

Depreciation of tangible assets  163.72  164.76 
Amortization of intangible assets  138.76  137.49 
Depreciation of right of use assets  484.54  426.07 
Total  787.02  728.32 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 For the Year 

ended 
March 31, 2022 

 For the Year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

Rent   112.69  109.10 
Printing & stationery  128.53  73.08 
Travelling and conveyance   489.90  233.82 
Business promotion  32.30  37.37 
Communication  107.44  56.91 
Director's sitting fees  22.34  12.26 
Electricity  54.55  50.04 
Insurance  15.16  20.54 
Bank charges  21.22  12.80 
Payment to auditors 
- Statutory audit fees  30.52  16.49 
- Tax audit fees  4.09  5.45 
- Out of pocket expenses  0.06  -   
- Certification fees  -    2.18 
Royalty  597.52  461.16 
Professional charges  944.89  739.84 
Office maintenance  285.95  191.18 
Business commission  1,754.12  867.80 
Postage & courier  61.86  40.26 
Rates, duties & taxes  13.42  93.86 
Mortgage guarantee Fee  92.61  117.56 
Corporate social responsibility  128.12  78.64 
Loss on derecognition of property, plant and equipment  7.71  58.62 
Advertisement  59.27  0.79 
Collection & recovery  479.51  238.21 
Miscellaneous expenditure  108.71  70.49 
Total  5,552.49  3,588.45 
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Note 37: Income Tax

Note 36: Other expenses (Contd..)

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 For the Year 

ended 
March 31, 2022 

 For the Year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

Current tax  2,092.65  935.98 
Tax relating to earlier  years  143.16  (190.33)
Deferred tax  644.48  1,439.66 
Total tax charge  2,880.29  2,185.31 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 For the Year 

ended 
March 31, 2022 

 For the Year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

Profit before tax  10,914.42  8,423.62 
Statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Expected income tax expense  2,746.94  2,120.06 
Tax effect of adjustment to reconcile expected income tax expense to 
reported income tax expense
Effect of change in tax rate  -    (144.00)

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2022
Year ended 

March 31, 2021

a)	 Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year  117.24  89.52 
b)	 Amount spent during the year 
	 i)	 On purposes of construction/acquisition of any asset  -    -   
	 ii)	 On purposes other than (i) above

		  - Contribution to various Trust/NGOs/Societies/Agencies and utilisation 
thereon *

 100.81  60.00 

		  - Expenditure towards COVID testing, Rapid test kit, masks, PPE kits, 
RTPCR, Vaccination

 27.31  18.64 

c)	 The amount of shortfall at the end of the year **  -    10.87 
d)	 The total of  previous years' shortfall amounts  -    -   
Total amount spent during the year  128.12  78.64 

Details of CSR expenditure:

*There is no contribution to related party (March 31, 2021 Rs. Nil)		

**During the last year the company was generally expending the CSR amount as per the plan, however due to Covid 19 situation emerging in last quarter of 
2020-21 an amount of Rs. 10.87 Lakh could not be expensed and was subsequently transferred to PM CARES Fund.

The components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2022 are:

Reconciliation of the total tax charge:

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits had been 
charged at India corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s 
domestic tax rate for the periods ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 is, as follows: 
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 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 For the Year 

ended 
March 31, 2022 

 For the Year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

Earlier year tax effect  143.16  (190.33)
Non deductible expense  32.25  13.50 
Deduction 80JJAA  (4.23)  (3.88)
Others  (37.83)  389.96 
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit & Loss  2,880.29  2,185.31 

Note 37: Income Tax (Contd..)

Note 38: Deferred Tax

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022:
 (H in Lakh)  (H in Lakh) 

Particulars

Deferred tax 
Income 

statement
OCI Deferred tax 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

2021-22 2020-21
As at 

March 31, 2022

Deferred tax asset/ (liabilities) in relation to :
Property plant equipment's & intangible assets  22.80  (14.02)  36.82 
ECL provision on undrawn loan 
commitments & investments

 27.34  (41.03)  68.37 

Unamortized income  20.99  7.37  13.62 
ESOP fair value  47.66  (34.28)  81.94 
ECL on loan & advances  1,106.78  74.60  1,032.18 
ECL on interest reversal on NPA  84.40  (10.39)  94.79 
Provision for employee benefits  (44.52)  20.28  (4.84)  (69.64)
Unamortized expenses  (56.79)  (28.60)  (28.19)
Provision for lease rental  12.38  (2.03)  14.41 
NCD expenses &  borrowing cost as per EIR  (17.85)  (8.52)  (9.33)
Special reserve u/s 36 1(viii)  (607.70)  225.52  (833.22)
Net right to use asset and future rent liability  21.55  9.31  12.24 
Excess interest spread receivables on 
assignments

 (3,153.99)  446.28  (3,600.27)

Total  (2,536.95)  644.49  (4.84)  (3,186.28)
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 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 For the Year 

ended 
March 31, 2022 

 For the Year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company (Rs in Lakhs)  8,034.13  6,238.31 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share  
(No in Lakh)

 2,844.19  2,141.60 

Effect of dilution:
Stock options granted under ESOP (Nos.in Lakh)  13.95  9.92 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for effect of dilution  2,858.14  2,151.52 
Earnings per share
	 Basic earnings per share (Rs.)  2.82  2.91 
	 Diluted earnings per share (Rs.)  2.81  2.90 

Note 39: Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of company by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of company (after adjusting for interest on 
the convertible preference shares and interest on the convertible bond, in each case, net of tax wherever applicable) by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares 
that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. 

 (H in Lakh) 

Details of Employee Stock 
Option Schemes

ESOP Scheme 
2013 (Tranche 

I - 13)

ESOP Scheme 
2013 (Tranche 

II - 13)

ESOP Scheme 
2016 (Tranche 

I - 16)

ESOP Scheme 
2013 (Tranche 

III - 13)

ESOP Scheme 
2016 (Tranche 

II - 16)

Date of shareholder’s 
approval of plan

March 28, 
2013

March 28, 2013 December 13, 
2016

March 28, 2013 December 13, 
2016

Date of grant "August 28, 
2013 & 

 April 20, 2015"

December 19, 
2018

February 01, 
2020

February 23, 
2021

01 November, 
2021

Number of options granted  3,50,000  25,00,000  12,40,000  5,00,000  15,70,000 
Method of settlement Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity
Vesting period 3 - 5 years 3 - 10 years 1 - 3 years 1 - 8 years 1 - 3 years
Exercise price  10.00  10.00  35.00  10.00  35.00 
Exercise period Not later than 

5 years from 
the date of 
vesting of 

options

Not later than 5 
years from the 

date of vesting of 
options

Not later than 3 
years from the 

date of vesting of 
options

Not later than 5 
years from the 
date of vesting 

of options

Not later than 3 
years from the 

date of vesting of 
options

Vesting conditions Employee remaining in the employment of the enterprise during the vesting period

Note 40: Employee stock option scheme (ESOS)

The company provides share-based payment schemes to its employees.  For the year ended March 31, 2022 following 
employee stock option plans (ESOPs) were in existence. The relevant details of the schemes and the grants are as below :
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Note 40: Employee stock option scheme (ESOS) (Contd..)

Details of vesting
 (H in Lakh) 

Vesting period from the grant date
ESOP Scheme 
2013 (Tranche 

I - 13)

ESOP Scheme 
2013 (Tranche 

II - 13)

ESOP Scheme 
2016 (Tranche 

I & II - 16)

ESOP Scheme 
2013 (Tranche 

III - 13)

Completion of 1 year  -    -   33.33% 12.50%
Completion of 2 year  -    -   33.33% 12.50%
Completion of 3 year  -   12.50% 33.33% 12.50%
Completion of 4 year 50% 12.50%  -   12.50%
Completion of 5 year 50% 12.50%  -   12.50%
Completion of 6 year  -   12.50%  -   12.50%
Completion of 7 year  -   12.50%  -   12.50%
Completion of 8 year  -   12.50%  -   12.50%
Completion of 9 year  -   12.50%  -    -   
Completion of 10 year  -   12.50%  -    -   

  (H in Lakh) 

Particulars

ESOP Scheme 2013 
(Tranche I - 13)

ESOP Scheme 2013 
(Tranche II - 13)

ESOP Scheme 2016 
(Tranche I & II - 16)

ESOP Scheme 2013 
(Tranche III- 13)

No. of 
Options

Weighted 
Avg. 

Exercise 
Price

No. of 
Options

Weighted 
Avg. 

Exercise 
Price

No. of 
Options

Weighted 
Avg. 

Exercise 
Price

No. of 
Options

Weighted 
Avg. 

Exercise 
Price

Outstanding as at March 
31, 2021

 60,000  10 25,00,000  10 12,40,000  35 5,00,000  10 

Vested as at March 31, 
2021

 5,000  -    -    4,13,333 

Opening Balance in ESOP 
Reserve
Outstanding as at 1 April 
2021

 60,000  10  25,00,000  10 12,40,000  35 5,00,000  10 

Granted during the year  -    -    -    -   15,70,000  35  -    -   
Forfeited during the year  -    10  -    -    (45,000)  35  -    -   
Exercised during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Outstanding as at March 
31, 2022

 60,000  10 25,00,000  10 27,65,000  35 5,00,000  10 

Vested  as at March 31, 
2022

 -    -    3,12,500  -    4,13,333  -    62,500  -   

Details of activity under each plan
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Note 40: Employee stock option scheme (ESOS) (Contd..)

The value of the underlying shares has been determined by an independent valuer. The following assumptions were used 
for calculation of fair value of grants in accordance with Black Scholes model, for options granted during the financial year:

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
ESOP Scheme 
2013 (Tranche 

I - 13)

ESOP Scheme 
2013 (Tranche 

II - 13)

ESOP Scheme 
2016 (Tranche 

I - 16)

ESOP Scheme 
2013 (Tranche 

III - 13)

ESOP Scheme 
2016 (Tranche 

II - 16)

Risk-free interest rate 7.26% - 7.42% 7.08% - 7.68% 5.75% - 6.03% 5.45% - 6.46% 4.96% - 5.70%
Expected life of options 
(years) [(year to vesting) + 
(contractual option term)/2]

6.50 - 7.50 
Years

5.5 - 12.5 Years 3.5 - 5.5 Years 3.5 - 10.5 Years 2.50 - 4.50 
Years

Expected volatility (%) 40.56% - 
43.90%

36.58% - 42.21% 40.76% - 42.76% 36.00% - 
40.16%

31.01% - 
36.98%

Dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Weighted average remaining 
contractual life (in years)

 -    3.26  0.28  3.26  1.59 

The risk free interest rates are determined based on the Government bond yields with maturity equal to the expected term of 
the option. Volatility calculation is based on historical stock prices of comparable listed companies using standard deviation of 
daily change in stock price. The historical period is taken into account to match the expected life of the option. Dividend yield 
has been considered taking into account the historical and expected rate of dividend on equity share price as on grant date.

For details of options granted to the key managerial employees refer note 43.

The expense recognised for employee services received during year ended March 31, 2022 is shown in the following table:

 (H in Lakh) 

year ended 
March 31, 2022

year ended  
March 31, 2021

Expense arising from equity-settled share based payment transactions  149.93  105.14 
Expense arising from cash-settled share based payment transactions  -    -   
Total expense arising from share based payment transactions  149.93  105.14 

Note 41: Retirement benefit plan

Defined contribution plan

The Company makes Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions which are defined contribution 
plans, for qualifying employees. Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the 
payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognized Rs. 194.34 Lakh  for year ended March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021 
Rs. 199.03 Lakh)  for Provident Fund contributions and Rs. 9.93 Lakh for the year ended March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021  Rs 
11.55 Lakh) for Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions in the statement of profit and loss. The contributions payable 
to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the Schemes.	

Defined benefit plan	

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years of service is eligible for a 
gratuity on separation at 15 days basic salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with 
the insurance companies in the form of qualifying insurance policy.
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During the year 2015-16 the Company created "Shriram Housing Finance Company Employees' Group Gratuity Fund". The 
Trust is recognised by income tax authorities and administered through trustees. Contributions to the Trust are invested in a 
scheme with a insurance Company as permitted by law in India. 

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and 
the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan.

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed 
below:

1.	 Interest rate risk: The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond 
yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.

2.	 Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation

3.	 Demographic risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, 
withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight 
forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to 
overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically costs 
less per year as compared to a long service employee.

4.	 Investment risk : For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer 
may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent 
of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant 
changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

5.	 Legislative risk : Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in 
the legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, thus requiring the companies 
to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the present value of the defined benefit obligation and 
the same will have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Net employee benefit expense recognised in the employee cost 

Note 41: Retirement benefit plan (Contd..)

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
year ended 

March 31, 2022
year ended  

March 31, 2021

Current service cost 79.87 71.27
Interest cost on benefit obligation 13.83 11.08
Expected return on plan assets  (11.72)  (8.23)
Net (benefit) / expense  81.98  74.12 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

Defined benefit obligation  (261.82)  (211.52)
Fair value of plan assets  230.51  118.92 
Asset/(liability) recognized in the balance sheet  (31.31) (92.60)

*Gratuity expenses as per note 34 of the statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 is after providing for shortfall in Gratuity Fund account

Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of plan assets:

*Gratuity Provision is in excess of Fair Value of Assets as on March 31, 2022 as disclosed under "Note 22 - Provisions"   is after netting off amount paid to trust.
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Note 41: Retirement benefit plan (Contd..)

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

Due to change in financial assumptions  10.98  5.10 
Due to change in experience adjustments  7.13  3.10 
(Return) on plan assets (excl. interest income)  1.14  (1.92)
Total Other Comprehensive Income  19.25  6.28 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

Investments with insurer 100% 100%

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

Opening defined benefit obligation  211.52  159.72 
Transfer in/Out  (2.69)  (2.40)
Interest cost 13.83 11.08
Current service cost  79.87  71.28 
Liability transferred in/on account of transfer of employees 
Benefits paid  (22.60)  (25.04)
Actuarial loss / (gain) on obligation  (18.11)  (3.12)
Closing defined benefit obligation  261.82  211.52 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

Opening fair value of plan assets  118.92  138.27 
Interest Income  11.72  8.23 
Expected return  (2.69)  (2.54)
Contributions by employer & others Exp  124.02  0.00 
Adjustment / transfer  -    -   
Benefits paid  (22.60)  (25.04)
Actuarial loss / (gain) on obligation  1.14  -   
Closing fair value of plan assets  230.51  118.92 

Amount recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: 

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

The Company intends to contribute to the trust the amount as per the actuarial valuation  in the next year

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Note 41: Retirement benefit plan (Contd..)

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

Discount rate 7.34% 6.91%
Salary escalation 5.00% 5.00%
Attrition rate 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality table IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)
Normal retirement age 58 Years 58 Years

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at 

March 31, 2017

Define benefit 
obligation

 (261.82)  (211.52)  (159.72)  (144.44)  (191.06)  (150.42)

Plan assets  230.51  118.92  138.27  158.54  180.03  150.42 
Surplus/(deficit)  (31.31)  (92.60)  (21.45)  14.10  (11.03)  -   

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation are on account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factor, such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to 
the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

Amounts for the current year and previous four years are as follows:

 (H in Lakh)

Assumptions As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2021

 Discount rate 
 Future salary 

increases 
 Discount rate 

 Future salary 
increases 

Sensitivity Level 
1% 

Increase
1% 

Decrease
1% 

Increase
1% 

Decrease
1% 

Increase
1% 

Decrease
1% 

Increase
1% 

Decrease

 Impact on defined benefit 
obligation 

 23.10  (26.64)  (27.90)  24.87  20.25  (23.57)  (24.85)  21.64 

 (H in Lakh) 

Expected payment for future years
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

 Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)  8.73  6.60 
 Between 2 and 5 years  71.98  50.48 
 Between 6 and 10 years  132.94  93.12 
Total expected payments  213.65  150.20 
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Note 41: Retirement benefit plan (Contd..)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2022 is  10.62 Years (March 31, 2021: 14.61 
Years)

The fund is administered by "Shriram Housing Finance Company Employees Group Gratuity Trust". The overall expected rate 
of return on assets is determined  based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the 
obligation is to be settled.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for 
the estimated term of the obligations.	

The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and 
other relevant factors.

Note 42: Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or 
settled. 	

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total
Within 12 

months
After 12 
months

Total

Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  2,676.51  2,500.86  5,177.37  10,113.47  -    10,113.47 
Bank balance other than 
above

 16,800.09  977.27  17,777.36  2,922.54  1,478.50  4,401.04 

Loans  1,16,899.58  3,35,315.17  4,52,214.75  87,181.76  2,50,586.47  3,37,768.23 
Investments  7,509.66  6,533.51  14,043.17  5,137.07  2,265.50  7,402.57 
Other financial assets  3,857.23  11,692.70  15,549.93  2,791.08  10,107.64  12,898.72 
Non-financial assets
Tax Assets  -    570.72  570.72  -    418.95  418.95 
Investment property  -    0.28  0.28  -    0.28  0.28 
Property, plant and 
equipment

 -    540.43  540.43  -    403.77  403.77 

Other intangible assets  -    309.83  309.83  -    438.98  438.98 
Right of use assets  30.30  1,391.41  1,421.71  -    920.49  920.49 
Other non financial assets  596.80  558.82  1,155.62  698.13  694.49  1,392.62 
Asset held for Sale  2,691.06  5,382.13  8,073.19  7,116.63  -    7,116.63 
Total assets  1,51,061.23  3,65,773.13 5,16,834.36  1,15,960.68  2,67,315.07 3,83,275.75 
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 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total
Within 12 

months
After 12 
months

Total

Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial 
instrument

 5.49  -    5.49 

Trade payables  1,227.15  26.08  1,253.23  1,127.68  -    1,127.68 
Debt securities  14,170.88  39,158.74  53,329.62  27,193.14  30,696.68  57,889.82 
Borrowings (other than debt 
security)

 1,01,477.84  2,34,859.55  3,36,337.39  60,850.35  1,99,343.47 2,60,193.82 

Lease liabilities  249.73  1,220.63  1,470.36  450.37  555.75  1,006.12 
Other financial liabilities  4,739.88  158.52  4,898.40  2,390.83  -    2,390.83 
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions  261.81  50.12  311.93  119.34  98.12  217.46 
Deferred tax liabilities (net)  213.11  2,973.17  3,186.28  -    2,536.95  2,536.95 
Other non-financial liabilities  282.35  -    282.35  266.02  -    266.02 
Total liabilities  1,22,628.24  2,78,446.81 4,01,075.05  92,397.73  2,33,230.97 3,25,628.70 
Net  28,432.99  87,326.32  1,15,759.31  23,562.95  34,084.10  57,647.05 

Note 42: Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (Contd..)

Note No 43:  Related party disclosures	

Classification of assets & liabilities under maturity buckets is based on estimates, assumptions and derived from MIS prepared 
by the company. The same is also approved by the ALM committee of the Company

Relationship Name of the party

(i) Holding : Shriram City Union Finance Limited

(ii) Enterprises  having significant influence : Valiant Mauritius Partners FDI Ltd. (VMPL)
over the Company / Associates Shriram Fortune Solutions Limited (SFSL)*

Shriram Financial Products Solutions (Chennai) Private Limited (SFPSPL)*
Shriram General Insurance Company Limited (SGICL)*
Shriram Insight Share Brokers Limited (SISBL)*
Shriram Life Insurance Company Limited (SLICL)*
Novac Technology Solutions Pvt. Ltd (NTSPL)*
Shriram Capital Limited

(iii) Key Management Personnel : Mr.Subramanian Jambunathan, MD & CEO
Mr.Gauri Shankar Agarwal - Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Bhavita Ashiyani - Company Secretary (upto 31.01.2022)
Ms. Puja Shah - Company Secretary (w.e.f 11.02.2022)
Mr. Venkataraman Murali, Director
Ms. Lakshminaryanan Priyadarshini , Director
Mr.Yalamati Srinivasa Chakravarti, Director

(iv) Relatives of Key Management Personnel : Nil

*The company neither holds any shares in the above entities nor these entities hold any shares in the company. However these entities are "subsidiaries" of  
Shriram Capital Limited and these entities are treated as "associates" as per para 9 (b)(ii) of Ind AS 24 and transactions made with these entities are disclosed.

There are no transactions with relatives of Key Management Personnel as at March 31, 2022.	
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Related party transactions during the year: 
 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

 Holding Company 

 Associates / 
Enterprises 

having significant 
influence over 
the Company 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel  
 Total 

For the 
year 

ended 
Mar 31, 

2022

For the 
year 

ended 
Mar 31, 

2021

For the 
year 

ended 
Mar 31, 

2022

For the 
year 

ended 
Mar 31, 

2021

For the 
year 

ended 
Mar 31, 

2022 

For the 
year 

ended 
Mar 31, 

2021 

For the 
year 

ended 
Mar 31, 

2022 

For the 
year 

ended 
Mar 31, 

2021

Remuneration to independent 
directors (Sitting fees)
Mr. V Murali  10.36  5.45  10.36  5.45 
Ms. Lakshminaryanan Priyadarshini  11.99  6.81  11.99  6.81 
Equity contribution -SCUF 50,000.00  -   50,000.00  -   
Remuneration to other KMPs
Employee Benefits - Mr. 
Subramanian Jambunathan - Short 
term benefit

 214.15  185.69  214.15  185.69 

Employee Benefits - Mr. 
Subramanian Jambunathan - Share 
based payment

 80.46  53.73  80.46  53.73 

Employee Benefits - Mr. Gauri 
Shankar Agarwal

 85.89  96.17  85.89  96.17 

Employee Benefits - Mr. Gauri 
Shankar Agarwal - Share based 
payment

 7.64  6.63  7.64  6.63 

Employee Benefits - Ms. Bhavita 
Ashiyani

 12.73  11.56  12.73  11.56 

Employee Benefits - Ms. Puja Shah  2.04  -    2.04  -   
Reimbursement of rent & 
expenses
Rent - SCUF  50.67  44.06  50.67  44.06 
Rent - SFPSPL  1.37  -    1.37  -   
Expenses reimbursements - SCUF  12.24  13.47  12.24  13.47 
Expenses reimbursements - SFPSPL  465.57  -    465.57  -   
Expenses reimbursements - SCL  -    1.48  -    1.48 
Expenses reimbursements - SISBL  1.14  1.32  1.14  1.32 
Expenses reimbursements - SLIC  28.90  23.90  28.90  23.90 
Expenses reimbursements - SGIL  14.05  -    14.05  -   
Expenses reimbursements - 
NOVAC

 547.96  373.60  547.96  373.60 

Royalty fees - SVS  597.52  461.16  597.52  461.16 

Note No 43:  Related party disclosures (Contd..)
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 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

 Holding Company 

 Associates / 
Enterprises 

having significant 
influence over 
the Company 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel  
 Total 

For the 
year 

ended 
Mar 31, 

2022

For the 
year 

ended 
Mar 31, 

2021

For the 
year 

ended 
Mar 31, 

2022

For the 
year 

ended 
Mar 31, 

2021

For the 
year 

ended 
Mar 31, 

2022 

For the 
year 

ended 
Mar 31, 

2021 

For the 
year 

ended 
Mar 31, 

2022 

For the 
year 

ended 
Mar 31, 

2021

Other payments
Transfer of liability for Gratuity/
Leave - SCUF

 2.20  -    2.20  -   

Other receipts
Transfer of liability for Gratuity/
Leave - SCUF

 4.89  -    4.89  -   

Rent received 
Rent - SCUF  6.33  68.38  6.33  68.38 
Rent - SFSL  -    0.80  -    0.80 
Electricity, telephone and printing 
charges and others received 
Expenses reimbursement - SCUF  3.50  10.16  3.50  10.16 
Expenses reimbursement - SLIC  5.57  2.27  5.57  2.27 
Expenses reimbursement - SGLI  0.00  -    0.00  -   
Received on assignment deal - 
SCUF

 4,195.44  
2,550.74 

 4,195.44  
2,550.74 

Payment on assignment deal - 
SCUF

 4,570.02  4,570.02  -   

Loans given and repayments
Loan disbursement  - Mr. Gauri 
Shankar Agarwal

 -    -    -    130.00  -    130.00 

Loan EMI received - Mr. Gauri 
Shankar Agarwal

 15.26  8.45  15.26  8.45 

Advances - Mr. Gauri Shankar 
Agarwal

 20.00  -    20.00  -   

Note No 43:  Related party disclosures (Contd..)
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Note No 43:  Related party disclosures (Contd..)

Note 44: Contingent liabilities & commitments

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

 Holding company 

 Associates / 
enterprises 

having significant 
influence over the 

Company 

 Key 
management 

personnel  
 Total 

As at  
Mar 31, 

2022

As at  
Mar 31, 

2021 

As at  
Mar 31, 

2022

As at  
Mar 31, 

2021 

As at  
Mar 31, 

2022

As at  
Mar 31, 

2021 

As at  
Mar 31, 

2022

As at  
Mar 31, 

2021 

Share Capital - SCUF 27,655.11  16,544.00 27,655.11  16,544.00 
Share Capital - VMPL 4,872.00 4,872.00 4,872.00  4,872.00 
Expenses payable to SCUF  23.29  21.20  23.29  21.20 
Expenses receivable  from 
SCUF

 51.46  46.69  51.46  46.69 

Expenses payable to SFPSPL  3.25  -    3.25  -   
Expenses payable to SVS 
Royalty

 164.83  119.45  164.83  119.45 

Expenses payable to SISBL  0.14  0.38  0.14  0.38 
Expenses payable to NOVAC  15.30  9.23  15.30  9.23 
Advances receivable from Mr. 
Gauri Shankar Agarwal

 20.00  20.00  -   

Loan receivable from Mr. Gauri 
Shankar Agarwal

 118.55  126.45  118.55  126.45 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

Income tax*  67.66  -   
Bank guarantees / mortgage loan**  135.00  135.00 

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account  92.90  24.56 
Undrawn Commitments  46,402.48  18,408.21 

(A)	 Contingent liabilities

(B)	 Commitments

	 *Disputed income tax demand is on account of disallowance of  royalty as an expense and  by treating it as intangible asset, disallowance of bonus payments 
u/s 43B and Employers contribution to PF. The above demands are determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forums/
authorities. The company is of the opinion that the above demands are not sustainable and expects to succeed in its appeals.

	 **Fixed Deposit is under lien for Bank Guarantee  purpose to the extent for Rs 25.00 Lakh (March 31, 2021 Rs. 25.00 Lakh) 			 

	 **Fixed Deposit is under lien with bank pending completion of formalities relating to a borrower to the extent of Rs. 110.00 Lakh (March 31, 2021 Rs. 110.00 Lakh) 
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Note 45: Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID 19

The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s performance will depend on the ongoing as well as future developments, 
including, among other things, any new information concerning the COVID-19 pandemic and any measure to contain its 
spread or mitigate its impact, whether mandated by the Government or adopted by us.

Note 46(a): Disclosures pertaining to fund raising by issuance of debt securities by large corporate

The Company, as per the SEBI circular SE131/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144, and the definitions therein, is a Large Corporate and 
hence is required to disclose the following information about its borrowings.

 (H in Lakh) 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

1 Name of the company Shriram Housing Finance Limited
2 CIN U65929TN2010PLC078004
3 "Outstanding borrowing of the Company 

 (Rs. in Lacs)"
3,89,667.00 3,18,083.64

4 Highest Credit Rating During the previous FY along with name of the Credit Rating Agency
Sr 
No.

Agency Rating Date of Rating Purpose

(i) CRISIL CRISIL AA/watch positive(Placed on 'Rating watch 
with positive implications') 

20-12-2021 Long Term Bank 
Term Loans and 
Non-Convertible 
Debentures

(ii) India Ratings IND AA / positive 07-03-2022
(iii) CARE Ratings CARE AA (CWP)* (under Credit watch with positive 

implications
17-12-2021

*Credit Watch Positive

5 Name of Stock Exchange in which the fine shall be paid, in case of shortfall in the required 
borrowing under the framework

BSE Ltd.

Note 46(b): Annual Disclosure to be made by an entity identified as a large corporate
 (H in Lakh) 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Details

1 2-year block period (specifying financial 
years)

FY 2022 and FY 2023 FY 2021 and FY 2022

2 Incremental borrowing done in FY (a)* 1,65,500.00  1,79,800.00 
3 Mandatory borrowing to be done through 

issuance of debt securities (b) = (25% of a)
41,375.00  44,950.00 

4 Actual borrowings done through debt 
securities in FY (c)

21,000.00  27,800.00 

5 Shortfall in the mandatory borrowing 
through debt securities, if any (d) = (b) - (c) 

37,525.00 17,150.00
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Note 46(b): Annual Disclosure to be made by an entity identified as a large corporate

Details of penalty to be paid, if any, in respect to previous block

 (H in Lakh) 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Details

6 Reasons for short fall, if any, in mandatory 
borrowings through debt securities

SHFL has been continuously 
putting attempts for on taping 
debt capital market. The 
Company has successfully 
raised Rs. 210 Crore in FY 22.

The Market sentiments to NBFC 
/ HFC sector was negative , 
which was further deteriorated 
by Covid-19 Pandemic. 

SHFL is committed towards 
raising funds through the debt 
market and putting constant 
efforts to raise funds from debt 
capital market

SHFL has been putting attempts 
to raise funds through the debt 
market which has resulted 
into increase in borrowings to 
Rs.278 Crore in FY 21 from Rs.75 
crores in FY 20. The borrowings 
from debt capital market is 
mainly under TLTRO and PCGS 
schemes announced by Reserve 
Bank of India.

The sentiments to NBFC / HFC 
sector was negative due to the 
IL&FS and DHFL crisis, which is 
further deteriorated by Covid-19 
Pandemic. 

SHFL is committed towards 
raising funds through the debt 
market and putting constant 
efforts to raise funds from debt 
capital market. 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Details

1 2-year block period (specifying financial years) FY 2021 and FY 2022
2 Amount of fine to be paid for the block, if applicable fine = 0.2% of {(d)-(e)} Nil

*Notes:

(i)	 Figures pertain to long term borrowing basis original maturity of more than one year (excludes funds raised by way of direct assignment, securitisation)

(ii)	 Figures are taken on the basis of cash flows/principal maturity value, excluding accrued interest, if any.
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 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

Carrying amount Fair value

As at  
 March 31, 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets at amortised costs:
Cash and cash equivalents  5,177.37  5,177.37 
Bank balance other than above  17,777.36  17,777.36 
Loans*  4,52,214.75  4,13,259.92 
Investment in commercial paper  7,444.64  7,444.64 
Investment in treasury bill  4,901.02  4,901.02 
Investment in state development loan  5.00  5.00 
Other financial assets  15,549.93  15,549.93 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments in mutual funds  -    -   
Investments in security receipts**  819.72  819.72 
Financial assets at fair value through OCI:
Investments in pass through certificate  879.74  879.74 
Total  5,04,769.53  22,954.74  14,050.12  4,28,809.85 
Financial liabilities at amortised costs:
Trade payables  1,253.23  1,253.23 
Debt securities***  53,329.62  52,731.82 
Borrowings  3,36,337.39  3,36,337.39 
Lease liabilities  1,470.36  1,470.36 
Other financial liabilities  4,898.40  4,898.40 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Derivative financial instrument  5.49  5.49 
Total  3,97,294.49  5.49  3,89,069.21  7,621.99 
Off balance sheet items
Other commitments  46,402.48  46,402.48 
Total off-balance sheet items  46,402.48  -    -    46,402.48 

Note 47 :Fair value measurement - Financial assets and liabilities

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information 
on the balance sheet.

Financial assets and liabilities	

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories and valuation hierarchy as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:

*Fixed rate loans & advances having carrying value of Rs 2,45,155.92 Lakh (Fair Value Rs 2,06,201.10 Lakh) on March 31, 2022 have been included above.

**The instruments included in level 2 of fair value hierarchy have been measured based on their net asset value (NAV) as published in their year end 
statement	

***Fixed rate debt Securities having carrying value of Rs 31,800.00 Lakh (Fair Value Rs 32,731.82 Lakh) on March 31, 2022 have been included above.	

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars
 As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021 

Fixed Floating Fixed Floating

Loans & advances  2,45,155.92 2,07,058.82  1,30,653.88  2,07,114.36 
Borrowings & debt securities  33,058.13  20,271.49  57,889.82  -   
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 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

Carrying amount Fair value

As at  
 March 31, 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets at amortised costs:
Cash and cash equivalents  10,113.47  10,113.47 
Bank balance other than above  4,401.04  4,401.04 
Receivables  -    -   
Loans*  3,37,768.23  2,79,039.49 
Investment - Deposits with financial institutions  5,027.50  5,027.50 
Other financial assets  12,898.72  12,898.72 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments in mutual funds  -    -   
Investments in security receipts**  980.24  980.24 
Financial assets at fair value through OCI:
Investments in pass through certificate  1,396.86  1,396.86 
Total  3,72,586.06  14,514.52  7,404.59  2,91,938.21 
Financial Liabilities at amortised costs:
Trade payables  1,127.68  1,127.68 
Debt securities  57,889.82  56,580.68 
Borrowings  2,60,193.82  2,60,193.82 
Lease liabilities  1,006.12  1,006.12 
Other financial liabilities  2,390.83  2,390.83 
Total  3,22,608.27  -    3,16,774.50  4,524.63 
Off balance sheet items
Other commitments  18,408.21  18,408.21 
Total off-balance sheet items  18,408.21  -    -    18,408.21 

Note 47 :Fair value measurement - Financial assets and liabilities (Contd..)

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories and valuation hierarchy as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:

*Fixed Rate Loans & Advances having carrying value of Rs 1,30,653.88 Lakh (Fair Value Rs 71,925.14 Lakh) on March 31, 2021 have been included above.	

**The instruments included in level 2 of fair value hierarchy have been measured based on their net asset value (NAV) as published in their year end statement.

Fair Value Measurement - Assets held for sale	

Assets held for sale are  measured at fair value through profit and loss. At the time of initial classification as assets held for 
sale, these assets were measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. The fair value of the assets is 
determined by an independent valuer. These assets are carried at the fair value as per the terms of approved valuation policy.

The non-recurring fair value measurement for the assets held for sale has been categorized as a Level 2 fair value based on 
the inputs to the valuation techniques used. Refer note on Assets held on sale for details, Note no 15

 (H in Lakh)

Particulars

Fair Value Hierarchy - Level 2

As at  
 March 31, 2022

As at  
 March 31, 2021

Assets held for sale  8,073.19  7,116.63 
Total  8,073.19  7,116.63 
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Note 48: Accounting policy 

The Accounting policies adopted in the preparation and presentation of  these financial statements are the same as those 
adopted in the preparation and presentation of the preceding annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 49: Risk Management

The Company is registered with the National Housing Bank (NHB), and is in the business of lending to individuals and non 
individual clients whether on secured or unsecured basis. The Company faces various risks in its gamut of operations. The 
Company has out in place a Risk Management Policy to ensure that the risks that the Company faces are identified and dealt 
/ controlled in a manner that the Company can continue its operations in a profitable and sustainable manner.

Risk-taking is an inherent element of business and, indeed, profits are in part the reward for successful risk taking in business. 
On the other hand, excessive and poorly managed risk can lead to losses and thus endanger the safety of the Company.  
Accordingly, the Company places significant emphasis on the adequacy of management of risk. This document is set to 
outline the approach towards risk and the process of oversight and management of the risks.

The Risk Management policy has laid down the various guidelines for risk identification, measurement, monitoring and control 
at each risk level.

The Board would have the ultimate responsibility in relation to the oversight of the risk management process. The Board of the 
Company also draws support from the Audit & Risk management committee (ARMC) of the Board which provides oversight over 
the risk management process. The ARMC has put in place a risk management policy which is implemented in the Company.

Senior management would be responsible for implementing strategies in a manner that limits risks associated with each 
strategy and that ensures compliance with laws and regulations, risk policies and control limits, on both a long-term and day-
to-day basis.  Accordingly, management would be fully involved in the activities and possess sufficient knowledge of all major 
products to ensure that appropriate policies, controls, and risk monitoring systems are in place and that accountability and 
lines of authority are clearly delineated. Senior management would also responsible for establishing effective internal controls 
and high ethical standards.

The Company has ensured that adequate policies and procedures are in place for each of the key risks, further a detailed MIS 
and monitoring mechanism is in place. Further the Company has also put in place internal control mechanisms to review 
monitor and control risks.

Some of the key risks faced by the Company include –

Credit Risk –

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their 
contractual obligations. The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing 
to accept for individual counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in 
relation to such limits.

Credit risk is monitored by the credit risk department of the Company’s independent Risk Controlling Unit. It is their 
responsibility to review and manage credit risk, including environmental and social risk for all types of counterparties. Credit 
risk consists of line credit risk managers who are responsible for their business lines and manage specific portfolios and 
experts who support both the line credit risk manager, as well as the business with tools like credit risk systems, policies, 
models and reporting. The Company has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible 
changes in the creditworthiness of the Customer.

A detailed credit policy has been designed by the Company for each product type and customer segment. 
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Credit risk on loans and advances –

Credit risk is controlled by analysing the credit limits and credit worthiness of the customer on a continuous basis to whom the 
credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date 
on a portfolio basis. The Company holds collateral as security against all the loans advanced. The Company obtains the possession 
of these collaterals in case of default by customer to meet its obligation. These assets are then sold in to recover the loan value.

The impairment of the credit risk on the loans is carried out through a detailed ECL model. The ECL model provides for the 
ECL on a 12 month ECL basis for standard to stage 1 assets whereas the same is calculated based on a lifetime ECL for stage 
2 & 3 level assets. The ECL is calculated based on a

Probability of default (PD) X Exposure at Default (EAD) X (Loss given default X discount rate – (LGD)).

Company calculates the PD by taking into account the past historical trends of the portfolio and its credit performance based 
on a homogenous characteristic of the underlying portfolio. This is calculated based on a 12 month PD perspective. In case of 
impaired assets where lifetime PD is to be applied, the PD is extrapolated to take into account the probability of default over 
the lifetime of the asset.

The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount of the financial instruments subject to the impairment 
calculation, addressing both the client’s ability to increase its exposure while approaching default and potential early 
repayments too.

The Loss Given Default (LGD) is reviewed by the credit and collections teams every 3 months if not earlier. The credit risk 
assessment is based on a standardised LGD assessment framework that results in a certain LGD rate. These LGD rates take 
into account the expected EAD in comparison to the amount expected to be recovered or realised from any collateral held.

The Company segments its retail lending products into smaller homogeneous portfolios, based on key characteristics that 
are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows. The applied data is based on historically collected loss data and involves a 
wider set of transaction characteristics (e.g., product type, wider range of collateral types) as well as borrower characteristics.

The Company continuously monitors all assets subject to ECLs in order to determine whether an instrument or a portfolio 
of instruments is subject to 12m ECL or LTECL, the Company assesses whether there has been an event which could cause a 
significantly impair the underlying asset or the customers ability to pay and accordingly increase the 12 month ECL to a LTECL.

The Company’s internal credit rating grades on days past due (dpd) basis:

Internal rating grade Internal rating description

High grade 0 dpd
Standard grade 1 to 30 dpd
Sub-standard grade 31 to 60 dpd
Past due but not impaired 61 to 89 dpd
Non-performing 90+ dpd

Credit risk on investment  –

The Company carries out investments in pass through certificates (PTC). The Company recognises the credit risk in the PTC by 
estimating the probability of default (PD). The investment is classified as a Stage 1 in case there is no change in the credit rating 
or a change of one notch in the credit rating. 12 month PD rates are applied for Stage 1 investments. Further in case there is a 
higher notch down in credit rating, the investment is taken as at Stage 2 and life time PD is applied. Any investment which is 
non performing or in default or restructured is taken to be as at Stage 3.	

Note 49: Risk Management (Contd..)
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PD is estimated based on various external information including information available through the CRISIL default study reports 
among others. The exposure at default (EAD) is the carrying value of the investment as at the reporting date. The loss given 
default (LGD) is calculated as per the RBI FIRB report which stipulates the LGD rates for secured or unsecured investments.

The Company continues to evaluate other external information and data on the Company and the underlying assets to 
evaluate any changes to the ECL methodology applied.	

Internal rating grade on Investment

Note 49: Risk Management (Contd..)

Internal rating grade Basis

High grade Government Securities & A+ rating, NR 2 
rating  and above

Standard grade  A rating

Credit risk on other financial assets – 	

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance 
with the Company’s policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits 
assigned to each counterparty.

Liquidity risk – 

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The Company’s objective is to 
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and 
bank loans. The Company also enters into securitization deals (direct assignment as well as pass through certificates) of their 
loan portfolio, the funding from which can be accessed to meet liquidity needs. The treasury department reporting into the 
CFO monitors the cash flows on a regular basis. Treasury department is divided into the resource mobilisation and the ALM 
team. The resource mobilisation team reviews the cash flows, business growth expected and accordingly works with the 
ALMT to ensure that adequate liquidity is available.

Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s financial assets and 
liabilities as at March 31, 2022	

Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2022:
 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 Less than 
3 months 

 Over 3 
months 

& upto 6 
months 

 Over 6 
months 

& upto 1 
year 

 Over 1 
year & upto 

3 years 

 Over 3 
years & 
upto 5 

years 

 Over 5 
years 

 Total 

Financial assets  -   
Cash and cash 
equivalents and other 
bank balances

 6,468.68  -    99.32  10,504.86  6,061.38  -    23,134.24 

Loans at amortised cost  24,225.79 18,897.07  37,782.60 1,52,937.85 1,43,922.89  5,11,561.23 8,89,327.43 
Financial investments at 
amortised cost

 7,500.00  -    -    5,000.00  -    8.26  12,508.26 
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Note 49: Risk Management (Contd..)
 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 Less than 
3 months 

 Over 3 
months 

& upto 6 
months 

 Over 6 
months 

& upto 1 
year 

 Over 1 
year & upto 

3 years 

 Over 3 
years & 
upto 5 

years 

 Over 5 
years 

 Total 

Financial investments at 
FVTPL

 -    -    -    273.24  273.24  273.24  819.72 

Financial investments at 
FVOCI

 42.49  41.29  80.42  332.57  338.74  563.69  1,399.20 

Other financial assets  1,305.72  954.61  1,833.94  5,843.04  3,642.40  2,027.97  15,607.68 
Total undiscounted 
financial assets

39,542.68 19,892.97  39,796.28 1,74,891.56 1,54,238.65 5,14,434.39 9,42,796.53 

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial 
instruments

 5.49  -    -    -    -    -    5.49 

Trade payables  1,210.61  6.09  10.44  3.05  13.25  9.79  1,253.23 
Deposits  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Debt securities  13,982.71  257.33  2,050.75  38,868.77  908.27  6,626.93  62,694.76 
Borrowings (other than 
debt securities)

 36,450.19  29,311.53  56,451.44 1,56,310.28  66,226.45  49,835.31  3,94,585.20 

Subordinated liabilities  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Lease liabilities  81.06  55.83  112.84  400.85  403.83  415.95  1,470.36 
Other financial liabilities  4,586.32  153.57  -    26.79  -    131.74  4,898.40 
Total undiscounted 
financial liabilities

 56,316.38 29,784.35 58,625.47 1,95,609.74  67,551.80  57,019.71 4,64,907.44 

Net undiscounted 
financial assets/
(liabilities)

(16,773.70) (9,891.38) (18,829.19)  (20,718.18)  86,686.85 4,57,414.68 4,77,889.09 

Classification of assets & liabilities under maturity buckets is based on estimates, assumptions and derived from MIS prepared 
by the company. The same is also approved by the ALM Committee of the company

Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2021:
 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 Less than 
3 months 

 Over 3 
months 

& upto 6 
months 

 Over 6 
months 

& upto 1 
year 

 Over 1 
year & upto 

3 years 

 Over 3 
years & 

upto 5 years 

 Over 5 
years 

 Total 

Financial assets  -   
Cash and cash 
equivalents and Other 
Bank Balances

 12,871.34  60.27  698.46  1,019.00  -    -    14,649.07 

Loans at amortised cost  20,072.10  14,411.77  27,778.80 1,08,928.54  1,01,405.06  4,10,345.18  6,82,941.45 
Financial investments at 
amortised cost

 3,031.28  -    2,112.69  -    -    -    5,143.97 

Financial investments at 
FVTPL

 -    -    -    326.75  326.75  326.75  980.25 
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 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
 Less than 
3 months 

 Over 3 
months 

& upto 6 
months 

 Over 6 
months 

& upto 1 
year 

 Over 1 
year & upto 

3 years 

 Over 3 
years & 

upto 5 years 

 Over 5 
years 

 Total 

Financial investments at 
FVOCI

 51.91  57.34  112.86  435.26  453.18  973.23  2,083.78 

Other Financial Assets  692.99  951.20  1,172.18  3,806.05  2,665.37  3,616.99  12,904.78 
Total undiscounted 
financial assets

 36,719.63 15,480.58  31,874.98  1,14,515.60  1,04,850.36 4,15,262.15  7,18,703.30 

Financial liabilities
Deriavative Financial 
Instruments

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Trade payables  1,055.36  72.32  -    -    1,127.68 
Deposits  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Debt securities  8,567.74  6,534.08  20,683.39  26,644.77  5,102.96  2,219.08  69,752.02 
Borrowings (other than 
debt securities)

 14,730.86  15,500.57  24,671.18  56,581.86  1,26,467.12  81,048.86  3,19,000.45 

Subordinated Liabilities  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Lease liabilities  110.56  113.59  226.21  251.68  160.62  143.46  1,006.12 
Other Financial Liabilities  2,172.26  109.72  -    26.79  -    82.06  2,390.83 
Total undiscounted 
financial liabilities

26,636.78 22,330.28  45,580.78  83,505.10 1,31,730.69  83,493.46  3,93,277.10 

Net undiscounted 
financial assets/
(liabilities)

10,082.84  (6,849.71) (13,705.79)  31,010.49  (26,880.33) 3,31,768.70  3,25,426.20 

Note 49: Risk Management (Contd..)

Interest rate risk –

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates.

We are subject to interest rate risk, principally because we lend to clients at fixed interest rates also and for periods that may 
differ from our funding sources, while our borrowings are at both fixed and variable interest rates for different periods.  We 
assess and manage our interest rate risk by managing our assets and liabilities. Our Asset Liability Management Committee 
evaluates asset liability management, and ensures that all significant mismatches, if any, are being managed appropriately.

As at March 31, 2022
 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars Carrying amount
Favourable change 

1% increase
Unfavourable 

change 1% decrease

Debt instrument  20,000.00  200.00  (200.00)
Term Loans - Bank  2,57,002.37  2,570.02  (2,570.02)
Term Loans - National Housing Bank  55,463.27  554.63  (554.63)
Term Loans - Financial institution  6,643.81  66.44  (66.44)
Loans & advances  2,10,315.57  (2,103.16)  2,103.16 
Total  1,287.93  (1,287.93)
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Note 49: Risk Management (Contd..)

As at March 31, 2022
 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars Carrying amount
Favourable change 

1% increase
Unfavourable 

change 1% decrease

Debt instrument  -    -    -   
Term Loans - Bank  2,24,569.47  2,245.69  (2,245.69)
Term Loans - National Housing Bank  8,981.52  89.82  (89.82)
Term Loans - Financial institution  14,706.42  147.06  (147.06)
Loans & advances  2,49,808.10  (2,498.08)  2,498.08 
Total  (15.51)  15.51 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company’s fixed rate instruments are carried at amortised cost and are not measured for interest rate risk, as neither the 
carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Currency Risk								      

The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its borrowings in foreign currency. The fluctuation currency of the 
Company is Indian Rupee. The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its currency risk, most with a maturity of 
less than one year from the reporting date.								     

The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Following are the forward contracts to hedge the foreign exchange rate as March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars Purpose Currency Cross currency March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Forward contract (principal) Term loan USD Rs. 5218.44 NA

Note 50 : No Funds raised through Preferential allotment of shares (March 31, 2021 -NIL).

Note 51 : Value of Imports on CIF basis- NIL (March 31, 2021-NIL).

Note 52: Foreign exchange earnings - NIL (March 31, 2021 - NIL) and out go - NIL (March 31, 2021 - NIL).

Note 53: Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by SHFL

The company has not lent to any Single Borrower exceeding 15% ( March 31, 2021- Nil ) of its owned funds.

The company has not lent to any Single group of Borrowers exceeding 25% (March 31, 2021 - Nil) of its owned funds.

Note 54: The company has not made any unsecured advances during the current or previous year.
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Note 55: The company obtained  registrations from other financial sector regulators.

Regulator Registration Number

"Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(SEBI)"

10788

Legal Entity Identifier (LEI) 335800ZKQETKBOF4YT05
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) U65929TN2010PLC078004

Note 56: No penalties have been imposed by NHB/RBI and other regulators during the current and previous year. There were 
no adverse comments in writing from RBI/NHB on regulatory compliance requiring disclosures.

Note 57: There are no such circumstances in which revenue recognition has been postponed pending the resolution of 
significant uncertainties	

Note 58: There has been no case of draw down of any specific reserves. Please refer "Note 25 - Other Equity"

Note 59: Details of financing of parent company products								      

During the year the Company has not financed product of the parent company

Note 60 : IND AS 110 - There are no subsidiaries of the company, hence the Consolidated financial Statement is not applicable 
to a company.

Note 61(a):  Forward rate agreement (FRA) / Interest rate swap (IRS)
 (H in Lakh) 

Sr. 
No.

Expected payment for future years
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

(i) The notional principal of swap agreements

NA NA

(ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their 
obligations under the agreements

(iii) Collateral required by the SHFL upon entering into swaps
(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps
(v) The fair value of the swap book

 (H in Lakh) 

Sr. 
No.

Expected payment for future years
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken 
during the year (instrument wise)

NA NA

(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as 
on March 31, 2022 (instrument-wise)

(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding 
and not "highly effective" (instrument-wise)

(iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not 
"highly effective" (instrument-wise)

(b)  Exchange traded interest rate (IR) derivative
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 (H in Lakh) 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

(i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible 
debentures and units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is 
not exclusively invested in corporate debt.

 -    -   

(ii) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on 
clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs /ESOPs), 
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented 
mutual funds.

 -    -   

(iii) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or 
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as 
primary security.

 -    -   

(iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral 
security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units 
of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other 
than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity 
oriented mutual funds’ does not fully cover the advances.

 -    -   

(v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on 
behalf of stockbrokers and market makers.

 -    -   

(vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares/ bonds / 
debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's 
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising 
resources.

 -    -   

(vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues.  -    -   
(viii) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)  -    -   

Total exposure to capital market  -    -   

  (H in Lakh) 

Sr. 
No.

Expected payment for future years

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Currency 
derivatives

Interest rate 
derivatives

Currency 
derivatives

Interest rate 
derivatives

(i) Derivatives (notional principal amount)  5,218.44 

NA NA NA

(ii) "Marked to market positions [1] 
(a) Assets (+) 
(b) Liability (-)"

 5.49 

(iii) Credit exposure [2]  -   
(iv) Unhedged exposures  -   

(c) Disclosures on Risk exposure in derivatives

Note 61 (Contd..)

Note 62: Exposure to capital market								      
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 (H in Lakh) 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

NA NA NA

Note 63: Overseas assets

 (H in Lakh) 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

(i) Domestic NA NA
(ii) Overseas NA NA

(o)  Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored

Note 64: Based on the intimation received by the Company, some of the suppliers have confirmed to be registered under 
“The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (‘MSMED’) Act, 2006”. Accordingly, the disclosures relating to 
amounts unpaid as at the year ended together with interest paid /payable are furnished below: 

 (H in Lakh) 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

(i) The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the year  -    -   
(ii) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the 

year
 -    -   

(iii) The amount of interest paid in terms of Section  16, along with the amount 
of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

 -    -   

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act

 -    -   

(v) The amount of interest accrued during the  year and remaining unpaid at 
the end of the year

 -    -   

(vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date  when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprise Development Act, 2006

 -    -   

Note 65: Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business 
  (H in Lakh) 

Sr. 
No.

Description

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Amount (Rs 
Lacs)

% of owned 
fund

Amount (Rs 
Lacs)

% of owned 
fund

(i) Exposure to any single entity in a group 
engaged in real estate business

Nil Nil Nil Nil

(ii) Exposure to all entities in a group engaged 
in real estate business

Nil Nil Nil Nil
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Sr. 
No.

As At
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

1 % of total asset towards housing finance 57.78% 56.33%
2 % of total asset towards housing finance for individuals 51.63% 51.48%

Sr. 
No.

Description

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Amount 
(Rs Lacs)

Amount 
(Rs Lacs)

(i) Prior period items NA NA
(ii) Changes in accounting policies. Refer Notes 1,2 

& 3
Refer Notes 1,2 

& 3

Note 66: Remuneration of directors - Pecuniary relationship  of non executive directors

Remuneration paid to directors is reflected in Note 43 "Related Party Transaction".   There is no pecuniary relationship or 
transactions of the non-executive directors with the company or its directors, senior management or group companies.

Note 67: Prior period items and changes in accounting policies.

Note 68: Events after reporting date

There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements (March 31, 2021 Rs. Nil) 

Note 69							     

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (the Code) has been enacted, which would impact contribution by the Company towards 
applicable social security schemes. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has also released draft rules thereunder on 
November 13, 2020 and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The 
actual impact on account of this change will be evaluated and accounted for when notification becomes effective.

Note 70: Principal business criteria							     

RBI vide its circular Number RBI/2020-21/60/DOR/NBFC (HFC) CC No 118/03.10.136/2020-21 dated October 22, 2020 
has defined Principal Business Criteria for HFCs. 

Details of principal business criteria as on March 31, 2022 is as follows	
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Note 71: Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally 
imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and 
to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and 
the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount 
of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been made 
to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board.

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

Common Equity Tier1 (CET1) capital  99,782.12  56,298.33 
Other Tier 2 capital instruments  3,395.08  2,434.85 
Total capital  1,03,177.20  58,733.18 
Risk weighted assets  3,34,085.78  2,55,003.58 
Tier I CRAR (%)  29.87  22.08 
Tier II CRAR (%)  1.02  0.95 
Total capital ratio (%)  30.89  23.03 

Regulatory capital consists of CET 1 capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained earnings including current 
year profit . Certain adjustments are made to Ind AS–based results and reserves, as prescribed by the National Housing Bank. 
The other component of regulatory capital is other Tier 2 Capital , which includes provision for  standard assets

Note 72(a):.Transfer to reserve fund:

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
	 a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987  2,509.01  1,522.08 
	 b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken 

into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under section 29C of the 
NHB Act 1987.

 2,476.48  2,209.41 

	 c) Total  4,985.49  3,731.49 
Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year
Add: a) Amount transferred uls 29C of the NHB Act, 1987  779.63  986.93 
	 b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken 

into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under section 29C of the 
NHB Act 1987.

 834.09  267.07 

Less: a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 
1987

 -    -   

	 b) Amount withdrawn from the Special Reserve ul s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax 
Act, 1961 which has been taken into account for the purpose of provision 
u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

- -

As per Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is required to transfer at least 20% of net profits 
every year to Reserve Fund. The Company has transferred an amount of  Rs. 1613.72 Lakh (March 31, 2021 Rs. 1254.00 Lakh).
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 (H in Lakh) 

Items                                                                                      
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

1.CRAR(%) 30.89% 23.03%
2.CRAR(%)Tier I capital   29.87% 22.08%
3.CRAR(%)Tier II capital 1.02% 0.95%
4.Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- II Capital  -    -   
5.Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments  -    -   

 (H in Lakh) 

Category
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

(i) Housing loan to individuals upto Rs. 15 lacs  61,238.87  42,031.47 
(ii) Housing loan to individuals more than Rs. 15 lacs  2,14,464.51  1,54,186.71 
(iii) Non housing loan against residential property  1,24,254.51  1,05,839.24 

 (H in Lakh) 

Category
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real - estates (office 
buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family 
residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial 
or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and 
construction, etc.) exposure includes non-fund based (NFB) limits.

 52,256.85  36,710.82 

Note 72(a):.Transfer to reserve fund: (Contd..)

Note 72(b): Capital to risk ratio (CRAR)

Note 72(c): Exposure to real estate sector

I)	 Direct exposure

	 i)	 Residential mortgages

		  Lending fully secured by mortgage on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

Balance at the end of the year
	 a) Statutory reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987  3,288.64  2,509.01 
	 b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income tax act, 1961 taken into 

account for the purposes of statutory reserve under Section 29C of the NHB 
Act, 1987

 3,310.57  2,476.48 

	 c) Total  6,599.21  4,985.49 

	 (ii)	 Commercial real estate
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 (H in Lakh) 

Category
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

a) Residential  -    14.15 
b) Commercial real estate  -    -   

 (H in Lakh) 

Break up of 'Provisions and contingencies' shown under the head expenditure 
in Profit and Loss Account

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

1.	 Provisions for depreciation on investment**  4.92  0.21 
2.	 Provision made towards Income tax  2,092.65  935.98 
3.	 Provision towards NPA*  437.05  347.71 
4.	 Provision for standard assets*( with details like teaser loan, CRE , CRE RH etc.)
	 (i)	 Teaser loans  -    -   
	 (ii)	 CRE  1.54  -   
	 (iii)	 CRE - RH  98.27  11.56 
	 (iv)	Other loans  1,024.66  871.96 
5.	 Provision for Covid-19 impact  (1,000.00)  -   
6.	 Provision for interest receivables on assignment  (242.43)  185.53 
7.	 Other provision and contingencies 
       Provision for gratuity  58.91  68.30 
       Provision for leave benefits  -    (25.62)

Note 72(c): Exposure to real estate sector (Contd..)

	 iii)	 Investment in mortgage backed securities (MBS) and other securitized exposures

Note 73: Provisions & Contingencies

II)	 Indirect exposure

	 Fund based and non-fund based exposure on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) – 
NIL (March 31, 2021- NIL)	

*Amount shown is as per expected credit loss(ECL) of  loans & non funded exposure as per Ind AS

**Amount shown is as per expected credit loss(ECL) of investment & ECL on interest on investment  as per Ind AS 

 (H in Lakh)

Break up of loan & advancesand 
provisions thereon

Housing Non-Housing

As at  
 March 31, 2022

As at  
 March 31, 2021

As at  
 March 31, 2022

As at  
 March 31, 2021

Standard Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount  2,94,790.27  2,15,039.98  1,54,783.58  1,21,147.58 
b) Provisions made*  2,130.36  1,533.29  1,264.70  901.55 
Sub-Standard Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount  2,650.82  1,239.01  2,161.82  1,781.79 
b) Provisions made*  609.29  274.50  447.97  429.14 
Doubtful Assets – Category-I
a) Total Outstanding Amount  256.68  627.41  829.10  888.10 
b) Provisions made*  78.57  142.50  224.70  189.79 
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 (H in Lakh) 

Break up of 'Provisions and contingencies' shown under the head expenditure 
in Profit and Loss Account

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Value of Investments
(i)	 Gross value of investments
	 (a)	 In India  14,050.12  7,404.60 
	 (b)	 Outside India  -    -   
(ii)	 Provisions for depreciation *
	 (a)	 In India  (6.95)  (2.03)
	 (b)	 Outside India  -    -   
(iii)	 Net value of investments
	 (a)	 In India  14,043.17  7,402.57 
	 (b)	 Outside India  -    -   
Movement of provisions held towards
depreciation on investments*
(i)	 Opening balance  2.03  1.81 
(ii)	 Add: Provisions made during the year*  6.26  0.79 
(iii)	 Less: Write-off / Written-back of  (1.34)  (0.57)
excess provisions during the year*
(iv)	Closing balance  6.95  2.03 

Note 73: Provisions & Contingencies (Contd..)

Note 74: Investments

 (H in Lakh)

Break up of loan & advancesand 
provisions thereon

Housing Non-Housing

As at  
 March 31, 2022

As at  
 March 31, 2021

As at  
 March 31, 2022

As at  
 March 31, 2021

Doubtful Assets – Category-II
a) Total Outstanding Amount  324.25  234.43  929.31  1,635.95 
b) Provisions made*  91.83  54.40  224.80  312.94 
Doubtful Assets – Category-III
a) Total Outstanding Amount  35.83  14.14  691.87  1.35 
b) Provisions made*  9.11  3.10  157.46  0.30 
Loss Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount  -    -    -    -   
b) Provisions made*  -    -    -    -   
TOTAL
a) Total Outstanding Amount  2,98,057.85  2,17,154.97  1,59,395.69  1,25,454.77 
b) Provisions made*  2,919.15  2,007.79  2,319.63  1,833.72 

*Amount shown under "provisions made" is expected credit loss(ECL) on loans as per IND AS

During the year, additional ECL of  Rs.1000.00 Lakh provided earlier on account of Covid 19 pandemic has been reversed.

*Amount shown is as per expected credit loss(ECL) on investment in PTC as per Ind AS
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 (H in Lakh)

Period

Liabilities Assets

Borrowings 
from banks*

Market 
borrowings

Advances Investment

1 day to 7 days(one month)  354.89  -    2,788.62  -   
8 days to 14 days(one month)  142.72  34.18  2,788.62  -   
15 days to 30 days(one month)  3,007.87  10,559.50  5,577.23  67.71 
Over one month to 2 months  5,772.43  3,038.59  10,875.61  5.14 
Over 2 months upto 3 months  17,231.07  -    10,603.72  7,382.88 
Over 3 months to 6 months  26,049.44  -    30,246.94  20.61 
Over 6 months to 1 year  48,919.42  538.61  54,018.84  33.30 
Over 1 year to 3 years  1,41,922.92  34,385.76  1,49,940.06  5,607.28 
Over 3 to 5 years  67,886.83  -    85,273.99  486.75 
Over 5 to 7 years  21,656.05  -    45,245.61  200.42 
Over 7 to 10 years  1,322.37  4,772.98  35,407.21  159.07 
Over 10 Years  2,071.38  -    19,448.30  80.01 
Total  3,36,337.39  53,329.62  4,52,214.75  14,043.17 

Note 75 : Asset Liability Management:		

Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities

*includes Borrowing from Financial institution	

Classification of assets & liabilities under maturity buckets is based on estimates, assumptions and derived from MIS prepared 
by the company. The same is also approved by the ALM Committee of the company

Details of non- performing financial assets sold :
 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
year ended 

March 31, 2022 
year ended 

March 31, 2021

1. No. of accounts sold  -    -   
2. Aggregate outstanding    ((H in Lakh))  -    -   
3. Aggregate consideration received (H in Lakh)  -    -   

Note 76: Concentration of public deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs

(i)	 Concentration of public deposits (for public deposit taking/holding HFCs)

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

Total deposits of twenty largest depositors N.A.
N.A.Percentage of deposits of twenty largest depositors to total deposits of the 

HFC
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Note 76: Concentration of public deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs (Contd..)

(ii)	 Concentration of Loans & Advances

(iii)	 Concentration of all exposure (including off-balance sheet exposure)

(iv)	 Concentration of NPAs

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

Total loans & advances to twenty largest borrowers  26,669.12  22,940.75 
Percentage of loans & advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total 
Advances of the HFC

5.90% 6.77%

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers /customers  35,637.12 26,779.85
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to total 
exposure of the HFC on borrowers / customers

7.15% 7.50%

 (H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

Total exposure to top ten NPA accounts  1,494.77  1,556.24 

(v)	 Sector-wise NPAs

 

Particulars

Percentage of 
NPAs to Total 

Advances in 
that sector

Percentage of 
NPAs to Total 

Advances in 
that sector

Particulars 2022 2021

A. Housing Loans:

1 Individuals 0.74% 0.59%
2 Builders/project loan  -   0.17%
3 Corporates 0.13%
4 Others (specify)  -   -

B. Non-Housing Loans:
1 Individuals 1.84% 2.13%
2 Builders/project loan  -   
3 Corporates 0.37% 0.60%
4 Others (specify)  -   -
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(H in Lakh)

Rating 
instrument

Rating assigned  
as on March 31, 

2022

Rating assigned  
as on March 31, 

2021

India Rating & Research Pvt Ltd Long-term 
(NCDs)

IND AA IND AA 

Bank loan 
ratings

IND AA IND AA 

Credit Analysis & Research Limited Long-term 
(NCDs)

CARE AA CARE AA

Short-term (CP) CARE A1+ CARE A1+
Long-term bank 
loan ratings

CARE AA CARE AA

Subordinate 
debts

CARE AA CARE AA

CRISIL Bank loan 
ratings

CRISIL AA CRISIL AA

Long-term 
(NCDs)

CRISIL AA CRISIL AA

Note 77 : Rating assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

(vi)	 Movement of NPAs
(H in Lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

 March 31, 2022
As at  

 March 31, 2021

(I) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 1.32% 1.47%

(II) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
	 a) Opening balance  6,422.18  4,884.02 
	 b) Additions during the year  4,730.70  3,003.58 
	 c) Reductions during the year  (3,273.20)  (1,465.42)
	 d) Closing balance  7,879.68  6,422.18 

(III) Movement of Net NPAs
	 a) Opening balance  5,015.51  3,825.08 
	 b) Additions during the year  3,556.54  2,305.64 
	 c) Reductions during the year  (2,536.09)  (1,115.21) 

	 d) Closing balance  6,035.96  5,015.51 
(IV) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard 

assets)
	 a) Opening balance  1,406.67  1,058.94 
	 b) Provisions made during the year  1,174.16  720.14 
  	 c) Write-off/write-back of excess provisions  (737.11)  (372.41)
	 d) Closing balance  1,843.72  1,406.67 
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(H in Lakh)

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars
year ended 

March 31, 2022
year ended 

March 31, 2021

a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year  -    -   
b) No. of complaints received during the year  114  82 
c) No. of complaints redressed during the year  114  82 
d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year  -    -   

(H in Lakh)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2022
As at  

March 31, 2021

1 No of transactions assigned by the Company  22  12 
2 Total amount of outstanding  77,522.81  50,034.13 
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the company to comply with 

MRR as on the date of Balance Sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures

	 First loss  -    -   
	 Others  -    -   

b) On-balance sheet exposures
	 First loss  -    -   
	 Others  11,234.59  8,923.94 

4 Amount of exposures to assigned transaction other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures

i)	 Exposure to own securitisations
	 First loss  -    -   
	 Others	  -    -   
ii)	 Exposure to third party securitisations
	 First loss  -    -   
	 Others  -    -   

b) On-balance sheet exposures
i)	 Exposure to own securitisations
	 First loss  -    -   
	 Others  -    -   
ii)	 Exposure to third party securitisations
	 First loss  -    -   
	 Others  -    -   

Note 78: Disclosure of complaints

Note 79(a):  Disclosure relating assignment 						    

Customers complaints

(i)	 The information on direct assignment of the Company as an originator in respect of outstanding amount of assets 
assigned under par structure is given below

(ii)	 Direct assignment of the Company as an originator in respect of outstanding amount of assets assigned under 
premium: Nil  (March 31, 2021: Nil)
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(H in Lakh)

Particulars
year ended 

March 31, 2022
year ended 

March 31, 2021

No. of accounts  10 6
Aggregate value (net of provision) of account sold  42,649.74  30,411.59 
Aggregate consideration  42,649.74  30,411.59 
Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts transferred in earlier 
years

 -    -   

Aggregate gain / (loss) over net book value  -    -   
Consideration received including new financial asset obtained at fair value  42,649.74  30,411.59 
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost 
category

 5,508.35  7,390.05 

(H in Lakh)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at

March 31, 2021

Direct assignment
Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at amortised cost  77,522.81  50,034.13 
Carrying amount of exposures retained by the Company at amortised cost  11,234.59  8,923.94 

Note 79 (b):  No financial assets are sold to securitisation/reconstruction company for asset reconstruction as 
on  March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

Note 79 (c):  Details of assignment transactions undertaken by the Company

Note 79 (d):  The Company has not purchased/sold non-performing assets for the year ended March 31, 2022 
and March 31, 2021

Note 79 (e): Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety but where the Company has 
continuing involvement	

The Company has not transferred any assets that are derecognised in their entirety where the Company continues to have 
continuing involvement.

The Company has assigned loans (earlier measured at amortised cost) by way of direct assignment. As per the terms of 
these deals, since substantial risk and rewards related to these assets were transferred to the extent of 90% /80%/87% of the 
assets transferred to the buyer, the assets have been de-recognised from the Company’s Balance Sheet. The table below 
summarises the carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets :	
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Note 79 (f): Disclosure relating assignment (Non-STC Transaction)

The information on direct assignment of the Company as an originator in respect of outstanding amount of assets 
assigned under par structure is given below

(H in Lakh)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2022
As at  

March 31, 2021

1 No of transactions assigned by the Company  22  12 
2 Total amount of outstanding  77,522.81  50,034.13 
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the company to comply with MRR 

as on the date of Balance Sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures

First loss  -    -   
Others  -    -   

b) On-balance sheet exposures
First loss  -    -   
Others  11,234.59  8,923.94 

4 Amount of exposures to assigned transaction other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures

i) Exposure to own securitisations
First loss  -    -   
Others  -    -   
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
First loss  -    -   
Others  -    -   

b) On-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
First loss  -    -   
Others  -    -   
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
First loss  -    -   
Others  -    -   

5 Sale consideration received for the securitised assets and gain/ loss on 
sale on account of securitisation

(a) Sale consideration  42,649.74  30,411.59 
(b) Gain/Loss on securitisation  5,508.35  7,390.05 

6 Form and quantum (outstanding value) of services provided by way of, 
liquidity support, post-securitisation asset servicing, etc.

7 Performance of facility provided - credit enhancement
a) Amount paid
b) Repayment received
c) Outstanding amount

8 Average default rate of portfolios observed in the past. Please provide 
breakup separately for each asset class i.e. RMBS, Vehicle Loans etc.                               
a) Housing loans 0.19% 0.06%
b) Non- housing loans 0.15% 0.03%
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Note 79 (f): Disclosure relating assignment (Non-STC Transaction)
(H in Lakh)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2022
As at  

March 31, 2021

9 Amount and number of additional / top up loan given on same underlying 
asset. Please provide breakup separately for each asset class i.e. RMBS, 
Vehicle Loans etc.

 -    -   

10 Investor complaints (a) Directly / Indirectly received and; (b) Complaints 
outstanding

 -    -   

Note 80(a). Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety

The following table provides a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part or all of the 
transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the associated liabilities	

Note 80 (b):  Disclosure relating to securitisation

The information on securitisation of the Company as an originator in respect of securitisation transaction done during the 
year is given below

(H in Lakh)

Particulars
year ended 

March 31, 2022
year ended 

March 31, 2021

Securitisations
Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at amortised cost(Held as 
collateral)

 5,773.16  7,161.27 

Carrying amount of associated liabilities {Borrowings (other than debt securities)- 
measured at amortised cost}

 5,777.43  7,412.99 

Fair value of assets  5,773.16  7,161.27 
Fair value of associated liabilities  5,777.43  7,412.99 
Net position at FV  (4.27)  (251.72)

(H in Lakh)

Particulars
year ended 

March 31, 2022
year ended 

March 31, 2021

Total number of transactions under par structure  -    1 
Total book value of assets  -    4,068.74 
Sale consideration received  -    4,068.74 
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Note: 80 (c):   Disclosure relating to securitisation 

The information on securitisation of the Company as an originator in respect of outstanding amount of securitized assets is 
given below:

80 (d) Disclosures to be made in notes to accounts by originators (Non-STC transactions)

 (H in Lakh) 

S. 
No.

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

1 No of SPVs sponsored by the company for securitisation transactions ( in 
No.)

 2  2 

2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by  5,771.36  7,384.25 
the company

3 Total amount of exposures retained by the company to comply with MRR as 
on the date of balance sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures

First loss  -    -   
Others  -    -   

b) On-balance sheet exposures
First loss  1,298.50  1,298.50 
Others  -    -   

4 Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures

i)	 Exposure to own securitisations	
	 First loss  -    -   
	 Others  -    -   
ii)	 Exposure to third party securitisations
	 First loss  -    -   
	 Others  -    -   

b) On-balance sheet exposures
i)	 Exposure to own securitisations
	 First loss  -    -   
	 Others  -    -   
ii)	 Exposure to third party securitisations
	 First loss  -    -   
	 Others  -    -   

 (H in Lakh) 

S. 
No.

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

1 No of SPEs holding assets for securitisation transactions originated by the 
originator (only the SPVs relating to outstanding securitisation exposures to 
be reported here)

 2  2 

2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPEs  5,771.36  7,384.25 
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the originator to comply with MRR 

as on the date of balance sheet
 1,298.50  1,298.50 

a) Off-balance sheet exposures
First loss
Others
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80 (d) Disclosures to be made in notes to accounts by originators (Non-STC transactions) (Contd..)

 (H in Lakh) 

S. 
No.

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2022
As at 

March 31, 2021

b) On-balance sheet exposures
First loss  1,298.50  1,298.50 
Others

4 Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures

i)	 Exposure to own securitisations
	 First loss  -    -   
	 Others  -    -   
ii)	 Exposure to third party securitisations
	 First loss  -    -   
	 Others  -    -   

b) On-balance sheet exposures
i)	 Exposure to own securitisations
	 First loss  -    -   
	 Others  -    -   
ii)	 Exposure to third party securitisations
	 First loss  -    -   
	 Others  -    -   

5 Sale consideration received for the securitised assets and gain/ loss on sale 
on account of securitisation

 -    -   

(a) Sale consideration  -    4,068.74 
(b) Gain/Loss on securitisation  -    -   

6 Form and quantum (outstanding value) of services provided by way of, 
liquidity support, post-securitisation asset servicing, etc.

 -    -   

7 Performance of facility provided. Please provide separately for each facility 
viz. Credit enhancement, liquidity support, servicing agent etc. Mention 
percent in bracket as of total value of facility provided.
a) Amount paid  -    651.00 
b) Repayment received  -    -   
c) Outstanding amount  1,298.50  1,298.50 

8 Average default rate of portfolios observed in the past. Please provide 
breakup separately for each asset class i.e. RMBS, Vehicle Loans etc.

 -    -   

a) Housing Loan 0.20%  0.00 
9 Amount and number of additional / top up loan given on same underlying 

asset. Please provide breakup separately for each asset class i.e. RMBS, 
Vehicle Loans etc.

 -    -   

10 Investor complaints (a) Directly / Indirectly received and; (b) Complaints 
outstanding

 -    -   
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Note 81: Disclosure of frauds reported

Instances of fraud for the year ended March 31, 2022:

Instances of fraud for the year ended March 31, 2021:

(H in Lakh)

Nature of fraud No. of cases
Amount of 

fraud
Recovery

Amount 
written-off

Fraud committed by borrowers and 
outsiders

 -    -    -    -   

(H in Lakh)

Nature of fraud No. of cases*
Amount of 

fraud
Recovery

Amount 
written-off

Fraud committed by borrowers and 
outsiders

2 22.4 0 22.4

*In one of the case, the fraud was detected before the disbursement of loan and hence there was no principal loss to the Company.

(H in Lakh)

Particulars

Amount outstanding Amount overdue

As at  
 March 31, 2022

As at  
 March 31, 2021

As at  
 March 31, 2022

As at  
 March 31, 2021

Liabilities side  
(1) Loans and advances availed by the 

HFC inclusive of interest accrued 
thereon but not paid:
(a)	 Debentures : Secured  48,324.47 50412.97  -    -   
	 : Unsecured  5,005.15 7476.85  -    -   
	 (other than falling within the 

meaning of public deposits*)
(b)	 Deferred Credits  -    -    -    -   
(c)	 Term Loans  3,17,700.33 246795.76  -    -   
(d)	 Inter-corporate loans and 
borrowing

 -    -    -    -   

(e)	 Commercial Paper  -    -    -    -   
(f)	 Public Deposits*  NA  NA  -    -   
(g)	 Other Loans (Cash Credit, 

WCDL, Securatization)
 18,637.06 13398.06  -    -   

(2) Break-up of (1)(f) above 
(Outstanding public deposits 
inclusive of interest accrued 
thereon but not paid):

 NA  NA  NA  NA 

(a)	 In the form of Unsecured 
debentures

 NA  NA  NA  NA 

Note 82: Schedule to the Balance Sheet of an HFC
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Note 82: Schedule to the Balance Sheet of an HFC (Contd..)
(H in Lakh)

Particulars

Amount outstanding Amount overdue

As at  
 March 31, 2022

As at  
 March 31, 2021

As at  
 March 31, 2022

As at  
 March 31, 2021

(b)	 In the form of partly secured 
debentures i.e. debentures 
where there is a shortfall in the 
value of security

 NA  NA  NA  NA 

(c)	 Other public deposits  NA  NA  NA  NA 

(H in Lakh)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars

Amount outstanding

As at  
 March 31, 2022

As at  
 March 31, 2021

Assets side 
(3) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than 

those included in (4) below]:
(a)	 Secured  4,57,453.53  3,42,609.74 
(b)	 Unsecured

(4) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting 
towards asset financing activities
(i)	 Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors 
	 (a)	 Financial lease  -    -   
	 (b)	 Operating lease  -    -   
(ii)	 Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors 
	 (a)	 Assets on hire  -    -   
	 (b)	 Repossessed Assets  -    -   
(iii)	 Other loans counting towards asset financing activities
	 (a)	 Loans where assets have been repossessed  -    -   
	 (b)	 Loans other than (a) above  -    -   

(5) Break-up of Investments
Current Investments
1.	 Quoted
(i)	 Shares
	 (a)	 Equity
	 (b)	 Preference
(ii)	 Debentures and Bonds
(iii)	 Units of mutual funds  -    -   
(iv)	Government Securities
(v) Others (please specify)
     -- Investment in Commercial Paper  7,444.64  -   
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(H in Lakh)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars

Amount outstanding

As at  
 March 31, 2022

As at  
 March 31, 2021

2.	 Unquoted
(i)	 Shares
	 (a)	 Equity
	 (b)	 Preference
(ii)	 Debentures and Bonds
(iii)	 Units of mutual funds
(iv)	Government Securities
(v)	 Others (please specify)
Long Term investments
1.	 Quoted
(i)	 Share
	 (a)	 Equity
	 (b)	 Preference
(ii)	 Debentures and Bonds
(iii)	 Units of mutual funds
(iv)	Government Securities
(v)	 Others
	 -- Investment in Treasury Bill  4,901.02  -   
	 -- Investment in State Development Loan  5.00  -   
2.	 Unquoted
(i)	 Share
      (a)	 Equity
      (b)	 Preference
(ii)	 Debentures and Bonds
(iii)	 Units of mutual funds
(iv)	Government Securities
(v)	 Others
	 -- Pass through certificates  879.74  1,396.86 
	 -- Security Receipts  819.72  980.24 

(H in Lakh)

Category Amount 

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Total

Amount net of provisions Amount net of provisions

Secured  Unsecured Secured  Unsecured Secured Unsecured

1.	 Related Parties
	 (a)	 Subsidiaries
	 (b)	 Companies in the same 

group
	 (c)	 Other related parties  118.55  126.45  118.55  126.45 
2.	 Other than related parties 4,57,334.99 3,42,483.30 4,57,334.99 3,42,483.30 

(6)	 Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:

Note 82: Schedule to the Balance Sheet of an HFC (Contd..)
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(H in Lakh)

Category

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Market Value 
/ Break up or 
fair value or 

NAV

Book Value 
(Net of 

Provisions)

Market Value 
/ Break up or 
fair value or 

NAV

Book Value 
(Net of 

Provisions)

1. Related Parties
    (a) Subsidiaries
    (b) Companies in the same group
    (c) Other related parties
2. Other than related parties  12,350.66  12,344.40  -    -   
Total

(H in Lakh)

Particulars 
As at  

 March 31, 2022
As at  

 March 31, 2021

(i)	 Gross Non-Performing Assets
	 (a)	 Related parties
	 (b)	 Other than related parties  7,879.68  6,422.18 
(ii)	 Net Non-Performing Assets
	 (a)	 Related parties
	 (b)	 Other than related parties  6,035.96  5,015.51 
(iii)	 Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt  8,073.19  7,116.63 

(7)	 Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and 
unquoted) :

(8)	 Other information

Note 82: Schedule to the Balance Sheet of an HFC (Contd..)
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Note No: 83 Group Structure

Shriram Housing Finance Limited (SHFL) is Housing Finance Company registered with the National Housing Bank. Shriram City 
Union Finance Ltd. (SCUF) is the promoter of SHFL and holds 85.02% shares in the Company. The balance 14.98% shares are 
held by a prestigious private equity investor Valiant Mauritius Partners Limited.

SCUF is a public listed company and its promoter is Shriram Capital Limited (SCL), which is also registered as a NBFC – CIC 
with RBI.

For the ease of understanding, given below is a graphical representation of the ownership structure of the SHFL

Shriram Transport Finance 
Company Ltd.

Shriram City Union 
 Finance Ltd.

Shriram Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

Shriram General Insurance Co. 
Ltd.

Shriram Overseas Investment 
Pvt. Ltd.

Way2Wealth Insurance Brokers 
Pvt. Ltd.

Shriram Investment Holding 
Ltd.

Shriram Credit Co. Ltd. (SCCL)

Shriram Value Services Ltd.

Shriram Gi Holdings Pvt. Ltd.

%   Shriram LI Holdings Pvt. Ltd.

Shriram Housing Finance Ltd.

Valiant Mauritius Partmers Ltd.

Shriram Capital 
Limited

20.04%   

33.73%   

74.56%   

76.63%   

100% 

100%

100%   

99.00%   

100%   

100%   

100%   

85.02%

14.98%
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Note 84(a): Disclosure on Liquidity Risk for the twelve months ended March 31, 2022 pursuant to RBI circular 
dated 4 November 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management Framework

(i)	 Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

(ii)	 Top 20 large deposits (amount in Rs. in lakh and % of total deposits)

(iii)	 Top 10 borrowings (amount in Rs. in lakh and % of total borrowings)

(iv)	 Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

(H in Lakh)

Nature of fraud
Number of 
Significant 

Counterparties

Amount (Rs. 
In Lakh)*

% of Total 
deposits

% of Total 
liabilities

1 19 3,57,372.83 NA 91.71%

	 *Includes securitisation liabilities exposure

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2022

Total amount of top 20 large deposits NA
Percentage of amount of top 20 large deposits to total deposits NA

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2022

Total amount of top 10 borrowings * 2,89,076.17
Percentage of amount of top 10 borrowings to total borrowings 74.19%

	 *Includes securitisation liabilities exposure

Sr. 
No

Name of the instrument/product
Amount (Rs. in 

Lakh)
% of Total 
Liabilities

1 Public Issue of Redeemable non-convertible debentures NA NA
2 Privately placed Redeemable non-convertible debentures  53,329.62 13.69%
3 Term loan from banks  2,55,785.70 65.64%
4 Term loan from National Housing Bank  55,463.27 14.23%
5 Term loan from financial institutions/corporates  6,451.36 1.66%
6 Loans repayable on demand from banks (Cash credit from banks & 

Working capital demand Loan)
 12,859.64 3.30%

7 Other loans - Securitisation liabilities  5,777.43 1.48%
8 Public deposits NA NA
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Note 84(a): Disclosure on Liquidity Risk for the twelve months ended March 31, 2022 pursuant to RBI circular 
dated 4 November 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management Framework (Contd..)

(v)	 Stock Ratios:

(vi)	 Institutional set-up for liquidity risk Management

Sr. 
No

Name of the instrument/product
as a % of Total 

public funds
as a % of Total 

liabilities
as a % of Total 

assets

1 Commercial papers - - -
2 Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of 

less than one year)
- - -

3 Other short-term liabilities NA 3.30% 2.49%

1 The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk 
management strategies and principles.

2 The Board has constituted the Audit and Risk Management Committee (ARMC) which is responsible for monitoring 
the overall risk process within the Company.

3 The (ARMC) is responsible for managing risk decisions and monitoring risk levels. The meetings of ARMC are held 
at quarterly interval.

4 The Risk owners are responsible for monitoring compliance with risk principles, policies and limits across the 
Company. Each department has its Risk owner who is responsible for the control of risks, including monitoring the 
actual risk of exposures against authorised limits and the assessment of risks.

5 The Company’s Treasury is responsible for managing its assets and liabilities and the overall financial structure. It 
is also primarily responsible for the funding and liquidity risks of the Company.

6 The Board of Directors also approves constitution of Asset Liability Committee (ALCO), Asset Liability Management 
Committee (ALCO) reviews or monitors Asset Liability Management (ALM) mismatch. ALCO conducts periodic 
reviews relating to the liquidity position and stress test assuming various what if scenarios. The ALCO is responsible 
for ensuring adherence to the limits set by the Board as well as for deciding the business strategy of the Company 
in line with the Company's budget and decided risk management objectives. The ALCO is a decision-making unit 
responsible for balance sheet planning from risk-return perspective including strategic management of interest rate 
and liquidity risks. The ALCO also evaluates the Borrowing Plan of subsequent quarters on the basis of previous 
borrowings of the company. The ALCO will be responsible for ensuring the adherence to the target set by the Board 
of Directors. The meetings of ALCO are held at quarterly intervals. The ALM Support Groups consisting of operating 
staff are responsible for analysing, monitoring and reporting the risk profiles to the ALCO. ALCO support group meets 
every fortnight.

7 In assessing the company's liquidity position, consideration is given to: (1) present and anticipated asset quality (2) 
present and future earnings capacity (3) historical funding requirements (4) current liquidity position (5) anticipated 
future funding needs, and (6) sources of funds. The Company maintains a portfolio of marketable assets that are 
assumed to be easily liquidated and undrawn cash credit limits which can be used in the event of an unforeseen 
interruption in cash flow. The Company also enters into securitisation deals (direct assignment as well as pass 
through certificates) of its loan portfolio, the funding from which can be accessed to meet liquidity needs. In 
accordance with the Company’s policy, the liquidity position is assessed under a variety of scenarios, giving due 
consideration to stress factors relating to both the market in general and specifically to the Company. Net liquid 
assets consist of cash, short–term bank deposits and investments in mutual fund available for immediate sale, 
less issued securities and borrowings due to mature within the next month. Borrowings from banks and financial 
institutions, issue of debentures and bonds are considered as important sources of funds to finance lending to 
customers. They are monitored using the advances to borrowings ratio, which compares loans and advances to 
customers as a percentage of secured and unsecured borrowings.
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Note 84(a): Disclosure on Liquidity Risk for the twelve months ended March 31, 2022 pursuant to RBI circular 
dated 4 November 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management Framework (Contd..)

8 The minutes of ALCO meetings are placed before the ARMC and the Board of Directors in its next meeting for its 
ratification.

9 The liquidity was Rs. 78965.13 lakh including sanction lines.

1 Significant counterparty is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties 
accounting in aggregate for more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total liabilities as defined in RBI Circular 
RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 4, 2019 on Liquidity Risk 
Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies.

2 Significant instrument/product is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar instruments/products 
which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total liabilities, as defined in RBI 
Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 4, 2019 on Liquidity 
Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies.

3 Public funds includes funds raised either directly or indirectly through public deposits, inter-corporate deposits, 
bank finance and all funds received from outside sources such as funds raised by issue of Commercial Papers, 
debentures etc. but excludes funds raised by issue of instruments compulsorily convertible into equity shares 
within a period not exceeding 5 years from the date of issue, as defined in Master Direction - Non-Banking 
Financial Company Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve 
Bank) Direction, 2016.

4 The amount stated in this disclosure is based on the audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022.

	 *Notes:

(H in Lakh)

Ratio Year ended March 31, 2022
Year ended 

March 31, 2021
% Variance

Reasons for Variance 
(If above 25%)

Numerator 
(H in Lakh)

Denominator 
(H in Lakh)

Ratio(%) Ratio(%)

Capital to risk-weighted 
assets ratio (CRAR)

 1,03,177.20  3,34,085.78  30.89  23.03  7.86 NA

Tier I CRAR  99,782.12  3,34,085.78  29.87  22.08  7.79 NA
Tier II CRAR  3,395.08  3,34,085.78  1.02  0.95  0.06 NA
Liquidity Coverage Ratio  8,068.03  10,526.20  76.65 NA NA NA

Note 84 (b): Analytical Ratios

Note 84 (c):Liquidity Coverage Ratio Disclosure
 (H in Lakh)

Sr. 
No

Particulars

Year ended March 31st 2022

Total Unweighted 
Value (average)

Total weighted  
Value (average)

High Quality Liquid Assets
1 Cash and Bank Balance  3,162.02  3,162.02 
2 Investment in Government securities  4,906.01  4,906.01 
3 Total High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA)  8,068.03  8,068.03 
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 (H in Lakh)

Sr. 
No

Particulars

Year ended March 31st 2022

Total Unweighted 
Value (average)

Total weighted  
Value (average)

Cash Outflows
4 Deposits (for deposit taking companies)  -    -   
5 Unsecured wholesale funding  -    -   
6 Secured wholesale funding  13,993.69  16,092.75 
7 Additional requirements, of which

(i) Outflows related to derivative exposures and other collateral 
requirements

 -    -   

(ii) Outflows related to loss of funding on debt products  -    -   
(iii) Credit and liquidity facilities  -    -   

8 Other contractual funding obligations  10,005.53  11,506.36 
9 Other contingent funding obligations  -    -   
10 Other  1,779.14  2,046.01 
11 TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS  25,778.36  29,645.12 
Cash Inflows
12 Secured lending  8,000.00  6,000.00 
13 Inflows from fully performing exposures  11,239.35  8,429.51 
14 Other cash inflows  6,252.55  4,689.41 
15 TOTAL CASH INFLOWS  25,491.90  19,118.92 

Note 84 (c):Liquidity Coverage Ratio Disclosure (Contd..)

Note 85: The Company has  103 branches as at March 31, 2022 (82 branches as at March 31,2021). The list of 
branches is given below.

(H in Lakh)

Sr. 
No

Particulars
Total Adjusted 

value year ended  
March 31, 2022"

Total Adjusted 
value year ended  

March 31, 2022

16 TOTAL HQLA  8,068.03  8,068.03 
17 TOTAL NET CASH OUTFLOWS  10,526.20  10,526.20 
18 LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO (%) 76.65% 76.65%

SHRIRAM HOUSING FINANCE LTD.		

LIST OF BRANCHES

Sr. 
No

State Name of Branch

1 Andhra Pradesh  Vijayawada
2 Andhra Pradesh Visakhapatnam
3 Andhra Pradesh Kurnool
4 Andhra Pradesh Nellore
5 Andhra Pradesh Rajahmundry
6 Andhra Pradesh Guntur
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Note 85: The Company has  103 branches as at March 31, 2022 (82 branches as at March 31,2021). The list of 
branches is given below. (Contd..)

Sr. 
No

State Name of Branch

7 Andhra Pradesh Tirupathi
8 Chattisgarh Raipur
9 Chattisgarh Bilaspur
10 Delhi Delhi
11 Gujarat Surat
12 Gujarat Rajkot
13 Gujarat Vadodara
14 Gujarat Mehsana
15 Gujarat Palanpur
16 Gujarat Bhavnagar
17 Gujarat Bharuch
18 Gujarat Ahmedabad
19 Gujarat Ahmedabad - Mani Nagar
20 Gujarat Veraval
21 Gujarat Jamnagar
22 Gujarat Jetpur
23 Gujarat Morbi
24 Gujarat Vapi
25 Karnataka Bengaluru
26 Karnataka Mysore
27 Karnataka Banashankari
28 Karnataka Hubli
29 Karnataka Davangere
30 Karnataka Indira Nagar, Bengaluru
31 Karnataka Tumkur
32 Karnataka Belgavi
33 Karnataka Mangalore
34 Karnataka Shimoga
35 Karnataka Balgalkot
36 Karnataka Hassan
37 Karnataka Mandya
38 Karnataka Bangalore Whitefield
39 Kerala Ernakulam
40 Kerala Thrissur
41 Madhya Pradesh Indore
42 Madhya Pradesh Bhopal
43 Madhya Pradesh Ujjain
44 Madhya Pradesh Mandsaur
45 Madhya Pradesh Gwalior
46 Madhya Pradesh Jabalpur
47 Madhya Pradesh Ratlam
48 Maharashtra Nagpur
49 Maharashtra Aurangabad
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Sr. 
No

State Name of Branch

50 Maharashtra Nasik
51 Maharashtra Kolhapur
52 Maharashtra Pune
53 Maharashtra Amaravati
54 Maharashtra Mumbai
55 Maharashtra Ahmednagar
56 Maharashtra Solapur
57 Maharashtra Pimpri
58 Maharashtra Vasai (W), Palghar
59 Maharashtra Thane
60 Pondicherry/ Puducherry Pondicehrry/ Puducherry
61 Punjab Ludhiana
62 Punjab Mohali  (Chandigarh)
63 Rajasthan Jodhpur
64 Rajasthan Jaipur
65 Rajasthan Alwar
66 Rajasthan Kota
67 Rajasthan Ajmer
68 Rajasthan Udaipur
69 Rajasthan Bikaner
70 Rajasthan Sikar
71 Rajasthan Bhiwadi
72 Tamil Nadu Chennai
73 Tamil Nadu Thiruchirapalli
74 Tamil Nadu Coimbatore
75 Tamil Nadu Madurai
76 Tamil Nadu Tirunelveli
77 Tamil Nadu Hossur
78 Tamil Nadu Vellore
79 Tamil Nadu Salem
80 Tamil Nadu Tiruvallur
81 Tamil Nadu Tiruppur
82 Tamil Nadu Krishnagiri
83 Tamil Nadu Chengalpet
84 Tamil Nadu Nagercoil
85 Tamil Nadu Theni
86 Tamil Nadu Karur
87 Tamil Nadu Kanchipuram
88 Tamil Nadu Erode
89 Tamil Nadu Kumbakonam
90 Tamil Nadu Udumalaipet
91 Tamil Nadu Dindigul
92 Telengana Karimnagar

Note 85: The Company has  103 branches as at March 31, 2022 (82 branches as at March 31,2021). The list of 
branches is given below. (Contd..)
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Sr. 
No

State Name of Branch

93 Telengana Hyderabad
94 Telengana Warangal
95 Telengana Secunderabad
96 Telengana Nizamabad
97 Telengana Khammam
98 Uttar Pradesh Lucknow
99 Uttar Pradesh Meerut
100 Uttar Pradesh Agra
101 Uttarakhand Dehradun
102 West Bengal Kolkata
103 West Bengal Siliguri

Note 85: The Company has  103 branches as at March 31, 2022 (82 branches as at March 31,2021). The list of 
branches is given below. (Contd..)

Note 86: Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities during 2021-22
(H in Lakh)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2021
Net Cash 

Flows
Exchange 
difference

Other *
Year ended 

March 31, 2022

At Amortised Cost
Debt Securities
	 -NCD Public Issue
	 -NCD Retail  57,889.82  (4,500.00)  (60.20)  53,329.62 
	 -NCD Institutional
Subordinated Liabilities
	 - Sub Debt Retail
	 - Sub Debt Institutional
Borrowings other than debt securities
	 - Term Loan from Banks  2,23,308.91  32,429.68  115.14  (62.54)  2,55,791.19 

	 - Term Loan from National Housing 
Bank

 8,981.52  46,481.75  -    55,463.27 

	 - Term Loan from  Institution  14,505.33  (8,062.61)  8.64  6,451.36 
	 - Commercial paper  -    -   
	 - Cash Credit form Banks  985.94  10,371.90  1.12  11,358.96 
	 - Working Capital Demand Loans  4,999.13  (3,500.00)  1.54  1,500.67 

	 - Term Loan from Bank- 
Securitisation

 7,412.99  (1,658.70)  23.14  5,777.43 

	 - Term Loan from financial 
Institution/ NBFC- Securitisation

 -    -    -    -    -   

Deposits
	 -Public Deposits  NA  NA  NA  NA  NA 
Total  3,18,083.64  71,562.02  115.14  (88.30)  3,89,672.50 

*Represents non cash adjustments on account of amortisation of processing fees and other transaction costs
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Note 86: Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (Contd..)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities during 2020-21
(H in Lakh)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2020
Cash Flows

Exchange 
difference

Other*
As at 

March 31, 2021

At Amortised Cost
Debt Securities
	 - NCD Public Issue
	 - NCD Retail  38,497.28  18,800.00  -    592.54  57,889.82 
	 - NCD Institutional
Subordinated Liabilities
	 - Sub Debt Retail
	 - Sub Debt Institutional
Borrowings other than debt securities
	 - Term Loan from Banks  1,22,570.12  1,01,691.61  -    (952.82)  2,23,308.91 

	 - Term Loan from National Housing 
Bank

 13,480.37  (4,498.85)  -    -    8,981.52 

	 - Term Loan from  Institution  -    14,706.42  -    (201.09)  14,505.33 
	 - Commercial paper  -    -    -    -   
	 - Cash Credit form Banks  5,001.69  (3,999.91)  -    (15.84)  985.94 
	 - Working Capital Demand Loans  3,499.65  1,500.00  -    (0.52)  4,999.13 

	 - Term Loan from financial 
Institution/ NBFC- Securitisation

 4,019.31  3,410.82  -    (17.14)  7,412.99 

Deposits
	 - Public Deposits  NA  NA  NA  NA  NA 
Total  1,87,068.42  1,31,610.09  -    (594.87)  3,18,083.64 

*Represents non cash adjustments on account of amortisation of processing fees and other transaction costs

Note 87 Details of stressed loans transferred/acquired during the year (to be made separately for loans 
classified as NPA and SMA)

The Company has neither acquired nor transferred any stressed loans during the year ended March 31, 2022.

There is no change in policy for impairment of financial instruments during the financial year.

Note 88: Change in policy for impairment of financial instruments

There is no change in policy for impairment of financial instruments during the financial year.

Note 89 Change in the process of NPA classification	

Pursuant to RBI circular RBI/2021-22/125 DOR/STR/REC.68/21.04.048/2021-22 dated November 12, 2021, on Prudential 
norms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances – Clarifications, the Company 
has revised its process of  NPA classification to  flagging of the borrower accounts as overdue  as part of  the day-end 
processes for the due date. Had  the Company followed the earlier method, the profit before tax for the year ended on March 
31, 2022 would have been higher by Rs. 346.63 Lakhs.
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Note 90 Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in the business of providing loans for purchase, construction, repairs and renovation etc., of houses/ 
flats to individuals and corporate bodies and has its operations within India. There being only one ‘business segment’ and 
‘geographical segment’, hence the segment information is not provided.

Note 91 Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

All charges or satisfaction are registered with ROC within the statutory period for the financial years ended March 31, 2022 and 
March 31, 2021. No charges or satisfactions are yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Note 92 Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

The Company, as part of its normal business, grants loans and advances, makes investment, provides guarantees to and 
accept from its customers, other entities and persons. These transactions are part of Company’s normal housing finance 
business, which is conducted ensuring adherence to all regulatory requirements.  

Other than the transactions described above, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including 
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall 
lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate beneficiaries). The Company has also not received 
any fund from any parties (Funding party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the funding party (“Ultimate beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

Note 93 Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies 
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 for the financial years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

Note 94(a) Undisclosed income

There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Note 94(b) Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the Company

The Company does not possess any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the 
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company during 
the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

Note 94(c) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency	

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the financial years ended March 31, 
2022 and March 31, 2021.
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Notes to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022

Note 94(d) Details of benami property held

No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder in the financial years ended March 31, 2022 and 
March 31, 2021.

Note 94(e) Wilful defaulter

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender in the financial 
years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

Note 94(f) Relationship with struck off companies

The Company has not been undertaken any transactions with any company whose name is struck off under section 248 of 
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 in the financial years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

Note 95 : The figures of previous year have been rearranged/ regrouped to conform to the current year.

In terms of our report attached
For T R  Chadha & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 Shriram Housing Finance Limited
Firm Registration No: 006711N/N500028

Pramod Tilwani	 Subramanian Jambunathan	 Y. S. Chakravarti
Partner	 Managing Director and CEO	 Director
Membership No:076650	 DIN:00969478	 DIN:00052308

	 Gauri Shankar Agarwal	 Puja Shah
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai	 Place: Srinagar
Date: 25th April , 2022	 Date: 25th April , 2022
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Notice of the 12th Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 12th Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM”) of the Members of Shriram Housing Finance Limited 
(the “Company”), will be held at shorter notice on Tuesday, 
June 7, 2022 at 12.00 P.M. at 144, Santhome High Road, 
Shriram City Business Solution Centre, Mylapore, Chennai - 
600 004 to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1.	 To consider and adopt the audited financial statements 
of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 
2022 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon.

2.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Srinivasa Chakravarti 
Yalamati (DIN: 00052308), who retires by rotation under 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and eligible, 
offer himself for re-appointment.

3.	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of 
Sections 139 and 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with guidelines no. RBI/2021-22/25 Ref.No.DoS. CO.ARG/
SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 on appointment of Statutory 
Central Auditors (SCAs) / Statutory Auditors (SAs) of 
Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs 
(including HFCs) (“RBI Guidelines”) issued by Reserve 
Bank of India, M/s. T. R. Chadha & Co. LLP., Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 006711N/N500028), 
be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company for a period of three years till the conclusion 
of the 14th Annual General Meeting, on such remuneration, 
in addition to reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 
and payment of applicable service tax as may be fixed by 
the Board in consultation with such Auditors.”

Special Business:

4.	 Private Placement of Non-Convertible Debentures 
and / or other Debt Securities.

	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as Special 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of the Sections 
42, 71 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with the Rules made 
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or 
re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) 

(Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, 
as amended, Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as 
amended time to time, and other applicable SEBI 
regulations and guidelines, and the circulars and 
clarifications issued by National Housing Bank (“NHB”) 
from time to time and subject to such other applicable 
laws, rules and regulations, approval of the Members of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board 
of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as 
“Board”, which term shall include any duly constituted 
Committee of the Board), which the Board may have 
constituted or hereinafter constitute from time to time 
by whatever name called to exercise its power including 
the power conferred by this resolution), for making 
offer(s) or invitation(s) to subscribe and to allot Secured 
/ Unsecured / Redeemable / Non-Redeemable / Market 
Linked Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) including 
but not limited to subordinated debentures, bonds, 
Commercial papers and / or other debt securities, etc., 
on a private placement basis, in one or more series / 
tranches during the period commencing from the date 
of this Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) hereof until 
the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company to 
the Qualified Institutional Buyers, Foreign Institutional 
Investors, Foreign Portfolio Investors, Banks, Mutual 
Funds, Provident Funds, Corporates and such other 
entities / persons eligible to apply / subscribe the 
securities on such terms and conditions as may be 
decided, from time to time, determine and consider 
proper and most beneficial to the Company for 
refinancing of existing debt within the overall borrowing 
limits of the Company, as may be approved by the 
Members from time to time.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving 
effect to this resolution, the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to do determine, negotiate, modify and 
finalize the terms of issue including the class of investors 
to whom NCDs are to be issued, time of issue, securities 
to be offered, the number of NCDs, tranches, issue 
price, tenor, interest rate, premium / discount, listing, 
redemption period, utilization of issue proceeds and to 
do all such acts and things and deal with all such matters 
and take all such steps as may be necessary and to sign 
and execute any deeds / documents / undertakings / 
agreements / papers / writings, as may be required in 
this regard.
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	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to delegate all or any of the powers herein 
conferred to any director(s) and/or officer(s) of the 
Company and/or any Committee, to give effect to the 
resolution.”

5.	 Revision in remuneration of Mr. Subramanian 
Jambunathan (DIN: 00969478), Managing Director & 
CEO of the Company.

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of 
Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
(including any statutory modification or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force), the provisions of 
the Article of Association of the Company and such 
other permissions, sanction(s) as may be required and 
as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and the Board of Directors, approval 
of the Members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded for revision in remuneration payable to Mr. 
Subramanian Jambunathan, Managing Director & CEO 
of the Company (DIN - 00969478) w.e.f. April 1, 2022, as 
detailed below:

	 A.	 Remuneration: 

		  (i)	 Salary: INR 9,31,700/- per month;

		  (ii)	 Special Allowance – INR 3,57,693/- per month.

	 B.	 Perquisites: 

		  (i)	 Housing – Rent free accommodation owned 
/ leased / rented by the Company or Housing 
Allowance in lieu thereof as per the Rules of the 
Company, viz. 50% of the Salary per month;

		  (ii)	 Payment of water, gas, electricity and 
furnishing charges for residence, to be valued 
in accordance with Income Tax Rules, subject 
to a maximum of 10% of the salary;

		  (iii)	 Medical Reimbursement – Reimbursement of 
medical, surgical and hospitalization expenses 
for the Managing Director & CEO and family 
subject to a maximum of INR 34,939/- per 
annum;

		  (iv)	 Reimbursement of personal motor vehicle(s) 
expenses, including maintenance, parking/toll 

charges as well as drivers’ salary on Company’s 
business on actual basis subject to a maximum 
of INR 11,18,040/- per annum;

		  (v)	 Leave Travel Concession – for the Managing 
Director & CEO and family, subject to a 
maximum of INR 4,79,160/- per annum;

		  (vi)	 Club Fees – Subscription limited to a maximum 
of two clubs. Reimbursement of actual fees. 
All official expense in connection with such 
membership incurred would be reimbursed by 
the Company;

		  (vii)	 Expenditure on Business development would 
be on actual basis subject to a maximum of INR 
5,80,760/- per annum;

		  (viii)	Free telephone at residence;

		  (ix)	 Employees Stock Options – As may be decided 
by the NRC/Board of Directors from time to 
time according to the Employee Stock Option 
Schemes of the Company;

		  (x)	 Leave as per the Company’s Rules;

		  (xi)	 Other Terms – As per the Company’s Rules and 
as may be agreed to by the Board from time to 
time;

		  (xii)	 Eligible for Variable Pay – As per the Company’s 
Rules.

	 C.	 Other Applicable Terms:

		  (i)	 The Managing Director & CEO shall not be paid 
any sitting fees for attending General Meetings 
and Meetings of the Board or Committee 
thereof;

		  (ii)	 Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation 
Fund or Annuity Fund – As per the rules of the 
Company. These will not be considered or 
included for the computation of ceiling on 
perquisites to the extent these either singly or 
put together are not taxable under the Income 
Tax Act, 1961;

		  (iii)	 Gratuity - Not exceeding half a month’s salary 
for each completed year of service;

		  (iv)	 Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure - 
As per rules of the Company;

		  (v)	 Group term life insurance premium of INR 
7,128/- per annum;
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		  (vi)	 Health Insurance premium of INR 9,998/- per 
annum;

		  (vii)	 The Board may revise, alter and vary the 
terms and conditions of his appointment, in 
accordance with the general policy of the 
Company including the Remuneration Policy in 
force from time to time, as it may deem fit and 
proper subject to the applicable provisions of 
Schedule V to the Act;

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the Board 
be and is hereby accorded for payment of performance 
bonus of INR 25,00,000 to Mr. Subramanian 
Jambunathan, Managing Director & CEO of the 
Company for the financial year 2021-22.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT except for the revision 
as stated above, all other terms and conditions of 
appointment, as approved earlier by the Members shall 
remain unaltered.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving 
effect to this resolution, the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 
things as may be deemed necessary and settle any/or 
all questions/matters arising with respect to the above 
matter, and to execute all such deeds, documents, 
agreements and writings as may be necessary for the 
purpose of giving effect to this resolution, take such 
further steps in this regard, as may be considered 
desirable or expedient by the Board in the best interest 
of the Company.”

6.	 Increase in the borrowing powers of the Company

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the special 
resolution passed at the Annual General meeting held 
on July 12, 2018 and pursuant to Sections 42, 62, 71 
and 180 (1) (c) and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and relevant Rules 
prescribed under the Act, (including any statutory 
modifications and re-enactment thereof for the time 
being in force) applicable regulations of Securities 
& Exchange Board of India, National Housing Bank 
and any other applicable regulations, consent of the 
Members of Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors of the Company or its Committee 
as may be authorized by the Board of Directors  
(hereinafter called “Board”, which term shall be deemed 
to include any duly authorised Committee thereof, 
which the Board may have constituted or hereinafter 

constitute from time to time by whatever name called 
to exercise its power including the power conferred 
by this resolution) to borrow for the purpose of the 
business of Company any sum or sums of moneys for 
and on behalf of the Company in Indian Rupees and/
or in any foreign currency (i) by way of availing of long/
short term loans and all kinds of financial assistance 
by all permissible methods, secured/ unsecured from 
banking companies, financial institutions, bodies 
corporate or any person(s), (ii) by way of issue of 
commercial papers, rupee denominated bonds/senior 
notes to eligible person(s), lenders, investor(s) (iii) by 
way of issue of redeemable nonconvertible debentures, 
subordinated debentures, bonds or any other security 
or instrument(s) on private placement basis as well 
as by way of public issue by issue of shelf-disclosure 
documents, prospectus, shelf prospectus, information 
memorandum, offering circular or otherwise, from 
persons, institutional investors, Foreign Institutional 
Investors, qualified institutional buyers, resident public 
financial institutions, multilateral financial institutions, 
regional financial institutions, statutory corporations, 
provident funds, pension funds, superannuation funds, 
gratuity funds, alternative investments funds, insurance 
companies, mutual funds, national investment fund, 
insurance funds, non-institutional investors, companies, 
bodies corporate, societies, educational institutions 
and association of persons, trusts, scientific and /or 
industrial research organizations, partnership firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships, Resident Individuals, High 
Net-worth Individuals (HNIs), Hindu Undivided Families 
(HUFs), retail individual investors, or (iv) by way of issuance 
of any other permissible instruments or methods of 
borrowing, whether unsecured or secured by mortgage, 
charge, hypothecation, lien, pledge or otherwise of the 
Company’s assets and properties, whether movable 
or immovable, notwithstanding that the monies to be 
borrowed together with the monies already borrowed 
by the Company, apart from temporary loans obtained 
and/or to be obtained from the Company’s bankers in 
the ordinary course of business, will or may exceed the 
aggregate of the paid up share capital of the Company 
and its free reserves, provided that the total amount 
borrowed and outstanding at any point of time shall not 
exceed 11,000 Crore (Rupees Eleven Thousand Crores 
only);

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or such Committee 
or person(s) as authorized by the Board of Directors be 
and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things as it/they may consider necessary, 
expedient, usual or proper to give full effect to the 
aforesaid resolution, including but not limited to settle 
any questions or resolve difficulties that may arise in this 
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regard, if any, as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem 
fit, without requiring the Board to secure any further 
consent or approval of the Members of the Company 
to the intent that they shall be deemed to have given 
their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this 
resolution.”

7.	 Creation of charge/providing security

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the Special 
resolution passed at the Eighth Annual General Meeting 
of the Company held on July 12, 2018, and pursuant to 
Section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as 
the “Act”), consent of the Members of the Company be 
and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the 
Company or its Committee as may be authorised by the 
Board of Directors, for mortgaging and/or charging in 
such form and manner and on such terms and at such 
time(s) as the Board of Directors or such Committee 
may deem fit, the immovable and movable properties, 

receivables of the Company, wherever situate, present 
and future, whether presently belonging to the Company 
or not, in favour of any person including, but not limited 
to, financial/ investment institution(s), bank(s), insurance 
Company(ies), mutual fund(s), corporate body(ies), 
trustee(s), agent(s) to secure the debentures, senior 
notes, bonds, loans, hire purchase and/or lease portfolio 
management transaction(s) for finance and other credit 
facilities up to a sum not exceeding INR 13,750 Crore 
(Rupees Thirteen Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty 
Crores only);

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or 
such Committee or person(s) as authorized by the Board 
of Directors be and are hereby authorized to finalize the 
form, extent and manner of, and the documents and 
deeds, as may be applicable, for creating the appropriate 
mortgages and/or charges on such immovable and/or 
movable properties, receivables of the Company on such 
terms and conditions as may be decided by the Board 
of Directors or such Committee in consultation with the 
lenders/ trustees and for reserving the aforesaid right and 
for performing all such acts, things and deeds as may be 
necessary for giving full effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Shriram Housing Finance Limited

Puja Shah
Date: June 3, 2022 	 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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Notes:

1.	 The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 relating to special businesses 
to be transacted at Annual General Meeting (the 
“Meeting”) is annexed herewith.

2.	 The Notice of the Meeting is also posted on the website 
of the Company i.e. www.shriramhousing.in.

3.	 A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting 
is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on 
a poll instead of herself / himself and a proxy need 
not be a Member of the Company. The instrument 
appoint the proxy in order to be effective, should be 
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly 
completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before 
the commencement of the Meeting.

4.	 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members 
not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not 
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the 
Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy to be 
appointed by a Member holding more than ten percent 
of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting 
rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any 
other person or shareholder. The holder of proxy shall 
prove her / his identity at the time of attending the 
Meeting.

5.	 Corporate Members intending to send their authorized 
representatives to attend the Meeting are requested 
to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board 
Resolution authorizing their representative to attend 
and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

6.	 Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and the route map of the 
venue of the Meeting are annexed hereto.

7.	 Members / Proxy holders are requested to produce at 
the entrance, the attached admission slip for admission 
to the Meeting hall. Duplicate admission slips will not be 
provided at the hall.

8.	 Shareholders are requested to intimate changes in their 
address, if any, quoting the folio number / DP-ID and 
Client ID, to the Company.

9.	 All documents referred to in the Notice and in the 
accompanying explanatory statement are open for 
inspection in electronic mode at the Registered Office 
of the Company during office hours on all working days, 
except holidays, between 10.00 A.M. and 5.00 P.M. up to 
the date of the Annual General Meeting.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013:

Item No.: 3

The Members of the Company had appointed M/s. T. R. 
Chadha Co. LLP.(“TRC”), Chartered Accountants, Statutory 
Auditors of the Company in its Extra Ordinary General 
Meeting held on August 20, 2021 in view of casual vacancy 
arising out of resignation of M/s Piyush Gupta & Co. 
Chartered Accountants on account of applicability of new 
RBI guidelines on appointment of Auditors. Since as per 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory 
Auditor of the Company can only be appointed in the 
Annual General Meeting of the Company, need was felt to 
regularize the appointment of M/s T R Chadha & Co. LLP, 
Statutory Auditors of the Company in this Annual General 
Meeting of the Company. 

The Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’), on 
the recommendation of the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee (‘the Committee’), recommended for the 
approval of the Members, the appointment of M/s. T. R. 
Chadha Co. LLP., Chartered Accountants, as the Auditors of 
the Company for a period of three years till the conclusion 
of the 14th AGM at a remuneration as may be decided by the 
Board of Directors in consultation with the Auditors. 

The Committee and Board considered various parameters 
like rending services in the field of Statutory Audits, 
Investigations / Forensic Audit, Financial due diligence, Stock 
Audits, Operational Audits, Business advisory, Internal Audits, 
IS Audit, SOX Compliance, Risk Assessments, Domestic and 
International Taxation, GST Service, Inbound & Outbound 
Investment and FEMA Advisory services, Company Secretarial 
Services and other Services viz. Concurrent Audit, CSR 
Audit, Quality Audit, etc. The firm has cumulative 99 years 
of audit experience as Statutory Central / Branch Auditor 
of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs) / AIFIs / NBFCs and 
Team TRC consists of 19 partners and over 600 employees 
with over 150 Chartered Accountants and other domain 
experts. Nation-wide they are spread across 10 different 
locations providing with a geographical advantage.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee and Board 
have confirmed that the auditor’s Independency have been 
assessed and also there is no conflict of interest in terms of 
relevant regulatory provisions, standards and best practices.

Further, pursuant to the aforementioned Provisions / 
Guidelines / Circulars, TRC have confirmed their eligibility 
for the appointment as statutory auditors and has given their 
consent to act as the Auditors of the Company. Also, they 
have confirmed that the said appointment, if made, will be in 

Annual Report 2021-22208



accordance with the conditions prescribed under Sections 
139 and 141 of the Act.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company, or their relatives, is interested in this Resolution. 
The Board recommends passing of the Ordinary Resolution 
at Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice for approval by 
the members of the Company.

Item No.:4

For the purpose of enhancing lending, to grow the asset 
book, for refinancing existing debt and other general 
purposes of the Company, it is proposed to raise funds by 
issue of securities namely, secured, Unsecured, Market 
Linked, redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs), 
Subordinated Debentures, Bonds or any other Debt 
Securities on private placement basis.

As per the provision of the Section 42 and any other 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules made thereunder, a Company offering or making an 
invitation to subscribe to Secured / Unsecured / Redeemable 
/ Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) on a private 
placement basis is required to obtain prior approval of the 
Members by way of Special Resolution. Such approval by a 
Special Resolution can be obtained once a year for all the 
offers and invitations for such NCDs to be made during the 
year, NCDs including subordinated debentures, bonds and / 
or other debt securities, etc., issued on a private placement 
basis constitute a significant source of borrowings for the 
Company and meet the ongoing funding requirements for 
the Company’s business activities and refinancing of the 
existing debt obligations of the Company.

The Board of Directors at their Meeting held on April 25, 2022, 
has considered the possibility of the Company being required 
to make an offer or invitation, to subscribe to securities 
through private placement subject to the shareholders’ 
approval at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

It is therefore, proposed to obtain an enabling approval 
of shareholders to offer or invite subscription for NCDs 
including subordinated debentures, bonds, and/or other 
debt securities, etc. on private placement basis, at appropriate 
time in one or more tranches, within the overall borrowing 
limits of the Company as approved by the Members with 
the authority to the Board to determine the terms and 
conditions, including the issue price of the NCDs, interest, 
repayment, security use of proceeds or otherwise, as it may 
deem expedient and to do all such acts, deeds, matters 
and things in connection therewith and incidental thereto 
and the Board in its absolute discretion deem fit. The Board 
would act on the basis of the enabling resolution without 
being required to seek any further consent or approval of the 

Members or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall 
be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by 
the authority of the Resolution. Accordingly, the approval of 
the Members is being sought by way of a Special Resolution 
under Sections 42, 71 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made 
thereunder as set out in Item No. 4 appended to this Notice.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise in this Resolution.

The Board accordingly, recommends the Special Resolution 
set out at Item No. 4 of accompanying Notice for the 
approval of the Members.

Item No.: 5

The Members of the Company at the Extra-Ordinary 
General Meeting held on December 18, 2018 had approved 
the appointment of Mr. Subramanian Jambunathan (DIN 
00969478) as Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer 
of the Company with effect from November 20, 2018 for a 
period of five years.

Mr. Subramanian Jambunathan, aged 52 years old, is a 
Management Graduate from IIM – Bangalore. He has a total 
work experience of over two decades in the banking and 
financial services sector across organizations like HSBC, 
Citibank, ANZ Grindlays Bank and IBM–India (then TISL). He 
successfully led independent businesses with complete P&L 
accountability, over the more than 15 years. He has served 
in Senior Management roles in diverse functions ranging 
from business process reengineering to heading a business. 
He has been instrumental in building businesses in Assets, 
Credit Cards, consumer finance and Mortgages, rebuilding 
and reengineering debt management infrastructure and 
has also led branch banking teams. Mr. Subramanian joined 
the Shriram Group in the year 2010. His role as an Executive 
Director at Shriram City Union Finance Limited entails building 
and growing the lending business across all the retail lending 
products (SME, Business Loans, Personal Loans, Mortgages 
and other collateralised loans), pan India. He has attended 
all the Board Meetings held during the year. He is a director 
in Sothern Equipment Finance Limited, K. P. I. Teleservices 
Private Limited and Volkswagen Finance Private Limited.

The remuneration proposed to be paid to Mr. Subramanian 
Jambunathan is in accordance with the Section 196 and 197 
read with Schedule V of the Act and requires the approval of 
the Members. The details of the proposed remuneration will 
be available for inspection by any Member of the Company 
without payment of fee at the Company’s Registered Office 
during the business hours.
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Except Mr. Subramanian Jambunathan, none of the other 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company nor 
their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise in this resolution.

The Board of Directors accordingly recommends Special 
Resolution set out at Item No.5 of the accompanying Notice 
for approval of the Members.

Item No. 6

Section 180(1) (c) of the Act, provides that the Board of 
Directors of a company shall not, except with the consent of 
the Company in General Meeting, borrow monies in excess 
of the Company’s paid up share capital, free reserves, and 
securities premium apart from temporary loans obtained 
and/or to be obtained from the Company’s bankers in the 
ordinary course of business. At the Annual General Meeting 
held on July 12, 2018, the shareholders of the Company 
had passed resolution authorizing the Board of Directors/ 
Committee of Directors to borrow upto a limit of `5,000 
Crores (Rupees FiveThousand Crore only) apart from 
temporary loans obtained /to be obtained from the bankers 
by way of cash credit limits and working capital demand loans 
in the ordinary course of business. Increase in mobilization 
of funds is necessary for the Company’s growing business. 
The Board of Directors therefore consider desirable to 
enhance the limit of borrowings to `11000 Crores (Rupees 
Eleven Thousand Crores only) apart from temporary loans 
obtained/to be obtained by the Company from its bankers 
in the ordinary course of business. 

The Board of Directors commends passing of the resolution 
as set out in Item no. 6 of the Notice. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company nor their relatives are concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise in the proposed resolution.

Item No. 7

Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, provides that 
the Board of Directors of a company shall not except with 
the consent of the Company in General Meeting, by way of 
Special Resolution, sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the 
whole, or substantially the whole, of the undertaking of the 
Company. 

Your Company would be borrowing monies from time 
to time for the purpose of its business by way of loans, 
debentures, bonds, commercial paper, hire purchase 
finance, lease portfolio management schemes and other 
financial assistance/credit facilities from various financial/
investment institution(s), bank(s), mutual fund(s), insurance 
company(ies), corporate body(ies) and other persons/
investors apart from the working capital facilities obtained/ 
to be obtained from banks in the ordinary course of 
business. This, in turn would necessitate further creation 
of security by way of mortgage and /or charges on all or 
some of the immovable and/or movable properties of the 
Company, both present and future in favour of the lenders/ 
trustees/agents. The resolution proposed at Item no.7 is to 
seek the permission of the members for empowering the 
Board/ Committee of Directors to create mortgage and/or 
charge up to an aggregate amount of INR 13,750 (Rupees 
Thirteen Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty Crores only) on 
the immovable and /or movable properties of the Company 
to secure the loans, debentures, bonds, financial assistances 
/ credit facilities obtained/to be obtained by the Company 
from the lenders of the Company. 

The Board of Directors commends passing of the resolution 
as set out in Item no. 7 of the Notice. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company nor their relatives are concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise in the proposed resolution.
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Shriram Housing Finance Limited
Registered Office: 123, Angappa Naicken Street, Chennai – 600 004

CIN: U65929TN2010PLC078004 | Website: www.shriramhousing.in | E-mail ID: sect@shriramhousing.in

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Annual General Meeting – (Day), (Date)

*DP Id. / Client Id. Name and Address of the registered 
Shareholder:

Regd. Folio No.

No. of Share(s) held

I / We hereby certify that I am / we are a Member / proxy for the Member of the Company.

I / We hereby record my / our presence for the Annual General Meeting of the Members of Shriram Housing Finance Limited 
held on Tuesday, June 7, 2022, at 12.00 p.m. at 144, Santhome High Road, Shriram City Business Solution Centre, Mylapore, 
Chennai - 600 004.

____________________________________	 _________________________
Name of the Member / Proxy (In Block Letters)	 Signature of the Member / Proxy

Note: Please fill up this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting venue. 
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Shriram Housing Finance Limited
Registered Office: 123, Angappa Naicken Street, Chennai – 600 004 (TN)

CIN: U65929TN2010PLC078004 | Website: www.shriramhousing.in | E-mail ID: sect@shriramhousing.in

Proxy Form No. MGT - 11

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19 (3) of the Companies  
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s).........................................................................	Registered Address..........................................................................................

E-mail ID.......................................................................................................Folio No...............................................................................................................

I / We, being the Member(s) of …….........……. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:

1. Name: ...........................................................

Address: ...........................................................

E-mail ID: ........................................................

Signature:………..................., or failing him 
/ her

2. Name: ..........................................................

Address: ...........................................................

E-mail ID: .........................................................

Signature:………..................., or failing him 
/ her 

3. Name: ...........................................................

Address: ............................................................

E-mail ID: .........................................................

Signature:………..................., or failing him 
/ her 

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, to be held at no. 144, Santhome High Road, Shriram City Business Solution Centre, Mylapore, Chennai - 600 004 
on Tuesday, June 7, 2022 at 12.00 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution(s) as indicated below:

Resolution No. & Matter of Resolution For Against

1.	 To consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2022 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Srinivasa Chakravarti Yalamati (DIN: 00052308), who 
retires by rotation under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and eligible, offer himself 
for re- appointment.

3.	 Appoint of M/s. T. R. Chadha Co LLP., Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company.

4.	 To approve private placement of Non-Convertible Debentures and/or other Debt Securities 
for refinancing of existing Debt.

5.	 Revision in remuneration of Mr. Subramanian Jambunathan (DIN: 00969478), Managing 
Director & CEO of the Company.

6.	 Increase in borrowing powers of the Company under Section 180(1)(c) of Companies Act, 
2013

7.	 Creation of Charge/Providing Security under Section 180(1)(a) of Companies Act, 2013

Signed this…….. day of……………..… 2022	

Signature of Member ……………………................................................... 

Signature of Proxy holder(s) ………………….........................................                                       

Notes: This form of proxy in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

Affix 
Revenue 

Stamp
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Route Map to AGM Venue

No. 144, Santhome High Road, 
Shriram City Business Solutions Centre

Mylapore, Chennai - 600 004
Landmark: Opposite to Bishop House Santhome Cathedral 
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Notes





Registered Office 
No. 123, Angappa Naicken Street, Chennai- 600 001.

Corporate Office 
Shriram Housing Finance Limited 

Wockhardt Towers, East Wing, Level-3, C-2, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla 
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051 

Email: contact@shriramhousing.in | Website: www.shriramhousing.in

Helpline: 1800-102-4345

https://www.kalolwala.com/
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